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Chapter | Report to Shareholders

Ladies and gentlemen, Dear Shareholders:
Thanks to the support and supervision of all sh@dehis, the Company continues to
grow and thrive under the impact of COVID-19 epidenThe management team
follows and develops in accordance with the 4A glines of Ahead, Able, Agile, and
Accountable to maximize the interests of all shal@érs. The summary report of the
Company’s 2022 annual operation and future busiplkessis as follows:
I. 2022 annual operation results:

() Implementation of the business plan:

The 2022 consolidated revenue of the Company wa$5NP1,467

thousand and the consolidated net profit aftemtag NT$930,323 thousand

with a earnings per share of NT$7.21 and a nett agdee per share of

NT$33.66. Through intensive development of bothstx and new

products and customers, improving production caypaatilization, and

other effective measures such as cost and quaditagement, the Company

maintained a steady profit in 2022.

(I)  Budget execution status:

The 2022 financial forecast has not been made @i there is no budget

achievement.

(1 Analysis of receipts, expenditures, and profitayaili

The Company’s consolidated liabilities accountedr 87% of its

consolidated assets and the consolidated curréatwas 165% which are

on a healthy level in financial structure, solveayl profitability indicators.
(IV) Research and development work:

1. Continuously development on the manufacturing pescemprovement
on production efficiency, and understanding matkestids and customer
demands to further increase market share.

2. Utilize the Company’s accumulated technology anovkedge related to
manufacturing processes and materials and develpapplication with
customers and products to solidify market positigni

[I.  Summary of 2023 business plan:
() Business strategy:

In addition to continuing to develop existing protllines, the Company is

-1 -
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()

(V)

(V)

actively collaborating with customers to developvrend high value-added

products.

Expected sales and basis of estimation:

The Company forecast the sales plan for 2023 basetthe sales in 2022

and the current industry overview. According to tberrent industry

information, it is estimated that the market wilintinue to grow, but with

rapid changes in the international trade envirortnam many uncertain
factors, the Company’s sales will be based on #test market changes,
customer operation, and the industry developments.

Important production and marketing policies:

1. Marketing strategy:

(1) Active collaboration with customers to strengtherviees. Seek to
establish strategic partnerships with customers.

(2) Continue to improve on the Company’s brand imageuih
product upgrades and lead the power semiconduattkaging and
testing market.

2. Production strategy:

(1) Maintain long-term partnership with automation gupent
manufacturers, and become strategic partners toelaev
specialized production processes, reduce produatmsts, and
develop high-quality, multi-functional and compiett products.

(2) Continue to collaborate with customers to strengttie planning
and management of production capacity and qualifyrovide the
services to the customer.

Future development strategy:

1. Combine the customer applications and develop tikgan the product
line to diversify the products and provide a tosalution for the
customers.

2. Continue to develop key technologies or patentsd alevelop
new-generation products in response to industndgdo maintain as an
industry leader.

The effect of external competition, the legal eamment, and the overall

business environment:

The demand for electronic products changes with dbresumer market,

-2-



trade environment, and government policies of werioountries. In recent
years, the size and performance of electronic commps have been
improved with the product life getting shorter wiihcrease in the
competition in the supply chain, and the relevamts and regulations have
included more requirements for products and fagsorithe Company pays
attention to relevant market demand and changeswamks closely with
customers to locate market opportunities and tad@essary measures to
respond to market changes and relevant regulasayinements, to reduce
the risks caused by market fluctuation.

Facing future challenges, the Company will contirtoe maximize the
interests of all shareholders with leading R&D amshnufacturing

capabilities with efficient business management.

May | wish you all

Chairman:

Good health and good luck

General Manager: Head-Finance & Accounting:

Chu-Liang, Cheng Yen-Chiang, Tang Jui-Ping ,Wang



Chapter |1 Company Profile

I. Company profile

() Establishment date

GEM Services, Inc. (GEM or the Company) was essablil on April 17,
1998 in the British Cayman Islands (Cayman).

() Group structure

GEM Services,
Inc.

GEM Tech
Limited

GEM Electronics
Company Limited

4 4

GEM Electronics GEM Tech Ltd.,

(L?Qanghai) Co., Taiwan Branch

GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

The shareholding ratio in the above figure is 100%.
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Year

Company history

Milestones

1998

2000

2002

2003
2006

2007
2008

2010
2011

2012

2013
2014

2016
2016
2018

2021

In April, GEM Services, Inc. was establislhed became the holding
company of the Group.

In December, GEM Electronics (Shanghai) Co., latds established to
manage the production. The primary business oGtfeeip is power
management components, IC packaging and testingesr

First released the TO252 (DPAK) power managémomponent package
test and commenced mass production.

Introduced SO8, GEM2021 (2.0mmx2.1mm), GEM2928r(Inx2.8mm)
and TSOP 3/5/6 miniaturized package products.

Established a strategic alliance with a ldagganese trading company in the
Japanese market.

Introduced lead-free process and began todaronass production services.
In June, the acquisition of Rexin Semiconaiu€echnology Co., Ltd. was
completed, and it was renamed as GEM Semicondurct®eptember.

In September, GEM Electronics (Hefei) Co., Ltéswestablished.
Introduced SO8 copper wire bonding process céipalgffectively
replacing the materials used for gold wire and iprezmetals.

Introduced GEMPAKS5060 (5.0mmx6.0mm) PDFN m&aekaging products.
GEM Semiconductor introduced GEM2021 and DR#ad&s production
services.

GEM Electronics (Hefei) introduced SO8, GEM2928d DPAK mass
production services.

Introduced GEMPAK3333 (3.3mmx3.3mm) small ROFoduct.

In August, established a joint venture witiisMbishi Electric Corporation,
Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power Device (Hefei) Compdamited.

In June, Elite Advanced Laser Corporatiotigipated in the cash capital
increase and became the largest shareholder.

In June, GEM Tech Limited was established.

In August, GEM Technologies Hong Kong Limited vessablished.

In SeptembelGEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Branch was established.
Introduced the GEMPAK5060 Ribbon aluminum cab&dding process
capability, providing mass production serviceslfov-resistance and
high-efficiency products.

Introduced TO251AA long 9mm guide pin masglpction service.
Introduced TO277 new packaging products.

GEM Electronics (Hefei) introduced TO220FP Higbidge mass
production service.

In January, GEM Services, Inc. was approwvegdblic offering by TWSE.
In April, the stock was officially listed ehe TWSE.

In January, the liquidation of GEM Semicortdugvas completed.

In October, the liquidation of GEM Technologies lgdfong Limited was
completed.

Building No.3 of GEM Electronics (Hefei) wastablished to expand the
mass production service and introduce the packagidgesting service of
medium and low voltage products.



(IV)  Risks

1. Risk factor

(1) The impact incurred by change in interest rateharge rate, inflation
upon the Company's profit and/or loss and the ftur
countermeasures:

A.

Changes in interest rates

The Company’s operation scale and profitability enamproved
with increasing self-owned capital, so it hasdittéliance on loans
from financial institutions. Thus, the Company withit experience
a significant increase in interest expenses ifitterest rate level
were to increase in the future. Thus, changesterest rates have
little impact on the Company’s profit.

Change in exchange rate

Most of the Company’s purchase and sales are dewabed in US
dollars, so the receivables and payables of thesaxdions can
offset each other, resulting in a natural hedgirifpce The

Company’s net exchange (losses) gains in 2021 &2@ vere
NT$(55,344) thousand and NT$227,904 thousand ré&sphc

accounting for (1.16%) and 4.36% of the net opegatevenue in
each period which is an insignificant impact on empany’'s
profit and loss.

The main functional currency of the Company isttf&dollar and

there has not been any significant exchange rake Tio reduce
the impact of exchange rate changes on the Compangfit and

loss, the Company will collect the exchange ratermation, and

strengthen the relationship with financial insidas through

online real-time exchange rate system to reseandhe exchange
rate fluctuation trend as a reference for foreigrchange

settlement. The Company also deploys strategy ®urenthe

balance of foreign currency assets and liabiliteesachieved as
much as possible as a natural risk hedging andceethe impact
of exchange rate fluctuations. In the future, darnixes for hedging
will be adopted depending on the changes in thbange market
and the demand for exchange funds to avoid rektebange rate
risks.



C. Inflation

The Company pays attention to market price fluobmat and
maintains good relationship with suppliers and @wgrs and
there has not been any significant impact due fiation in the
recent years.

(2) The major causes for engaging in high-risk, higretage investment,
lending of funds to others, endorsements/guararaees derivative
financial instruments, the profit or loss and thaitufe
countermeasures:

A. The Company does not engage in high-risk, highrbye
investments, unless hedging, or arbitrage can bieaed.

B. The policy of loaning funds, and endorsements/quess is
handled in accordance with the relevant regulatiaristhe
Company’s Procedure on Loaning of Funds and Makufg
Endorsements/Guarantees.

C. The policy of derivatives trading is implemented docordance
with the Company’s Procedure on the Acquisition Bigposal of
Assets, with hedging transactions as the mainrigadiethod. The
Company determines that hedging is not necessangss the
benefit of hedging is greater than the cost of megigf not, it will
become a burden.

(3) The future research & development plans and theresgs anticipated
to be invested into research & development

A. Future research & development programs

The Company will continue to invest in the devel@nm of
new-generation  products and technologies, including
high-efficiency, high-voltage applications and mahip modular
products. The Company will continue to make R&Dabtbrough

on process technology to develop power managemmmatupts
with higher efficiency, smaller size and enhancedicsural
performance, to expand the lead in the industryeartdr more the
high-performance application markets.

B. EXxpenses anticipated to be invested into researdbv&lopment



(4)

(5)

The Company’s estimated R&D investment is compdedording

to the development progress of new products and new

technologies. In the future, with the growth ineaue, the annual
R&D expenses will be gradually increased and @éssmated that
the R&D expenses be about NT$60,060 thousand ir8 262
support the development of new products in theréutand the
performance improvement of existing products amtease the
Company’s competitiveness.

The possible domestic and foreign impacts by gowent policies
and laws upon the Company’s financial conditiond gre@ Company’s
countermeasures

The Company’s daily operations are handled in a@wre with
relevant domestic and foreign laws and regulatems there has not
been any major domestic and foreign policy andllelganges that has
impacted the Company’s financial performance; amel Company
pays attention to the changes in domestic and dorepolicy
development trends and regulations, collects refewvdormation as a
decision-making reference for the management teanagpropriate
strategies.

The impacts generated by change in science andndkgy
(including ICT security risk) and change in indiesr upon the
Company’s financial conditions and the Company'sntermeasures

The Company has accumulated considerable amountR&D
technologies, and is recognized by the customedms. Management
team pays attention to changes in the market afthtdogy trends,
and evaluates its risks and impact on the Compamgduct strategy
to reduce all risk factors and maximize sharehgldeenefits. In
addition, the Company continues to invest in R&Djpcts for new
products, manages the product development schatdldormulates
relevant response plans, and maintains a staltdadial structure to
maintain the flexibility of capital allocation inesponse to future
market changes. Thus, in the latest year and tipetpublication date
of the annual report, technological and industf@nges did not have
a significant impact on the Company’s financialfpanance.

As the popularization of computers and the vigordegelopment of
the Internet brought a rapid and significant impactpeople, it also
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changed the way we live. Along with information genience comes
worrying information security issues. Thus, ensgrimformation
security in the information era is essential fog tireater challenges
and impacts in the future.

The types of information security protection candbeded into three
parts, physical security, software security anchdsgcurity. Factors
affecting information security include:

A.

C.

D.

Invasion from unauthorized persons (hackers) tocdbmputer
system, theft or alter information or change thiginal system
settings.

Intentional or unintentional usage of the computesulting in
data damage, theft or system damage.

Interception, eavesdropping or alteration of dataring
transmission.

Infection and transmission of virus.

(@)

(b)

(©)

Cyber security risks

The Company has a firewall to prevent illegal istom, and
illegal external access from the inside of the Canyp and
installs anti-virus software in all networked cortgrs to
prevent virus infection and transmission, and ensiie safety
of the computers and networks.

Hardware and data security risks

The Company has facilities such as uninterruptiptever
supply system and hardware redundancy to prevenipacted
power supply and hardware failures and ensure tiiailisy
and continuous system operation.

The Company has account authentication, permissooitrol,
account password complexity setting, password &ezgul
replacement policy, data backup/recovery systenprevent
malicious damage, human error and data loss cdsedtural
disasters, and protect the data integrity.

Software compliance risk



The Company regularly checks the software instafiadthe
computer, and monitors the installation and usthefsoftware
through tools to ensure the compliance of the saoiw

(d) Strengthen employees’ information security awargnasd
standardize organizational information securitydwbr.

Strengthen employees’ awareness of informationrggcand
advocate the restriction of using illegal softwane visiting
unknown websites.

With relative measures to maintain information sgguthe
Company believes that this risk is manageable,itbist still
necessary to remain vigilant to ensure the Compgany’
information security.

(6) The impacts created by a change in corporate imggmn the
management over crisis, and the Company’s countesunes

The Company operates under the spirit of ethicafpaate
management, and is committed to improving qualitg @fficiency
and strengthening internal management. The Compalds a good
reputation and corporate image in the industry, #meke is no
corporate crisis caused by changes in corporatgeniehe Company
will further commit to maintaining corporate govante and
transparent operations, paying more attention te tights and
interests of shareholders, and strengthening itellent corporate
image.

(7) Expected benefits, potential risks, and counteromeasof mergers
and acquisitions

In the latest year and up to the publication ddtthe annual report,
no mergers and acquisitions have occurred. Howef/ghere is a
merger and acquisition plan in the future, it whlé handled in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulationd the relevant
management measures formulated by the Company sareerthe
interests of the Company and shareholders’ equityeotected.

(8) The risks anticipated from the expansion of thenplauildings, and
the Company’s countermeasures
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(9)

The Company is a power semiconductor packaging w@sting
company. In addition to expanding production lirdegpending on
market changes, the Company has to avoid oversupghe market.
With actively developing new customers, R&D on negreducts and
new technologies, it will also improve yield andduee cost to
maximize the benefits of capacity expansion andbdish a long-term
competitive advantage in the market.

The risks anticipated from the centralized inpubotput undertakings
and the Company’s countermeasures

A. The risks anticipated from the centralized inputlemakings and

the countermeasures

The power semiconductor industry is a business hmfdeertical
professional division of labor. To avoid the risksopply shortage
or interruption, the Company has established augaskipply, and
maintains a certain procurement ratio to maintainody
relationship with the suppliers with is adjustedcading to
product technical specifications. The Company alsgs attention
to the production status at any time and maintalose contact
with the suppliers to reduce the concentration risk

B. The risks anticipated from the concentrated sateleakings and

the countermeasures

The Company’s largest customer in 2021 and 2028uated for
about 20% of the operating revenue, and the top ¢wstomers
combined accounted for about 50% which is a comagon risk,

but the Company continuously carry out credit eatan on the
financial status of customers, and recognize th@wahce loss
according to the expected credit loss of accoustgivable. The
Company continues to expand its customer base diti@a to

maintaining a stable collaborative relationship hwiexisting
customers.

(10) The impacts and risks anticipated from the massramsfer of

shareholding by directors, supervisors or key st@ders who hold
more than 10% in shareholding and the Company’steomeasures:

In the latest year and up to the publication ddtthe annual report,
there has not been any substantial transfer oacepient of directors,
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supervisors, or major shareholders holding more th@% of the
shares. Thus, it is not applicable.

(11) The impacts and risks anticipated from the changié managerial
powers and the Company’s countermeasures

In the latest year and as of the publication datthe@ annual report,
the Company has not had any change in the manbhgexgers. The
Company has strengthened various corporate govegnareasures
and introduced independent directors to enhanceptb&ection of
overall shareholders’ rights and interests. In @aoldlj the Company’s
daily operations rely mostly on professional mamagdhe current
team of professional managers has made considerabtabution to
the Company’s operating performance, and it shoaolttinue to win
the support of shareholders. Thus, if there is angk in the
management, it should not have a significant negatnpact on the
Company’s various management and operating advesitag

(12) Litigious and non-litigious matters. List majoridjiious, non-litigious
or administrative disputes that: (1) involve then@pany and/or any
company director, any company supervisor, the gessj any person
with actual responsibility for the firm, any majsinareholder holding
a stake of greater than 10%, and/or any companygoonpanies
controlled by the Company; and (2) have been calecliby means of
a final and unappealable judgment, or are stillaurigation. Where
such a dispute could materially affect shareholdecgity or the
prices of the Company’s securities, the annualntegiwll disclose the
facts of the dispute, amount of money at stakééndispute, the date
of litigation commencement, the main parties to dispute, and the
status of the dispute as of the publication dath@fannual report:

None.
(13) Other critical risks and response measures
A. Protection of shareholders’ equity

There are many different regulations between the@zmies Law
of the Cayman Islands and the Company Act of the
R.O.C.Although the Company has amended its Artictds
Association in accordance with the “Checklist ofa&dholder
Rights Protection by Foreign Issuers in Countryedar of
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Registration” stipulated by TWSE, there are stilmy differences
in the operating regulations due to the differenges the
regulations. Investors cannot apply the protectbregal rights
and interests of investing in Taiwan companiesh® Cayman
Islands companies they invest in. Investors shailddy and
consult experts to see if there is any sharehadarty protection
that cannot be obtained by investing in Cayman ntda
companies.

Risks of the economy, political environment, foreigxchange,
laws and regulations

The Company is registered in the Cayman Islandsevtie main
operation places are Samoa, the British Virginndt Mainland
China and Taiwan. Thus, changes in the economypathtical
environment of the place of registration and theeelof operation,
as well as fluctuations in foreign exchange willfeaf the
operating performance of the Company and its sidrsd.

Cash dividends distribution and taxation

According to the relevant laws of China, when asaliary in
China distributes profit, at least 10% of net ineomiter taxes
every year must be first set aside as the legatveqregarded as a
legal reserve that cannot be distributed as diddam shares until
it reaches 50% of the registered capital of a slidngi of the
Company). Thus, the Company’s subsidiaries in Chmest first
meet this condition before distributing the remagnafter-tax net
profit for the year.

A tax on any share dividend, bonus, interest, atteroincome
earned in and from China by a non-resident compéraycountry
or territory that has signed a tax agreement whin& according
to the provisions of the relevant tax agreemerr aftsubsidiary of
the Company’s applications are reviewed and approve a
competent tax authority, a subsidiary of the Comgparay be
eligible to the agreed tax rate. With the exceptioh the
aforementioned scenarios, and when the China sabgicemits
the share dividends to places outside China, asmecdax of 10%
shall be deducted on behalf of the shareholdersé& peovisions
may potentially reduce the ability of the Companydistribute
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share dividends to its shareholders. A subsidiarghina must

comply with local laws for overseas remittance ldres dividend.
If China changes laws related to the aforementicawtdities and

to dividend remittance so that a subsidiary of @@mpany in

China is unable to comply with the relevant lawsrarst acquire
permission or submit files related to the actigtithere may be a
risk of failure to remit share dividends.

Rapid changes in product scales in the market

The demand for electronic products depends on coessghoice
and preferences as well as government policies ariows
countries. The suppliers and market share of teimmmoducts
including the Company’s customer, change rapidiam@t given
time. The combination of the Company's products and
manufacturers, and the growth of the market shitieeoproducts,
in the past and the foreseeable future, depent@atility of the
end products to meet the consumer choices andrenefes, and
on the Company’s cost-effectiveness, design capgbénd the
ability to manufacture and sell products to endiauers of the
market.

The Company will pay attention on relevant markendnd at any
time, and closely collaborate with terminal brandnufacturers to
seize market opportunities, develop innovative awVanced
products, launch new products that meet consumefengnces
ahead of competitors and reduce the risk due toagd®min the
demand of electronic products.

Risk of decrease in average sale price

The Company’s packaging and testing is widely usedarious
electronic products, and the potential price pnessfrom
customers may cause the Company’s gross profitetdirek. In
anticipation of future competitive price pressurdge Company
may reduce the average sale price of its prodifdtise Company
is unable to compensate for the decrease in aveeggrice with
increase in sales volume, reduce in manufacturiogts¢ or
development of innovative and higher value-addextipets in a
timely manner, the Company’s gross profit and foiah
performance will be impacted.
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The Company will continue to understand customenalel to
create a market, and improve profitability throughflexible
low-cost business model, to reduce the risk of idecin the
average sale price of electronic products.

F. Risk of violating of intellectual property and pateights

As is common in other cases in the semiconducttugtry, from

time to time the Company or its customers may wecelaims of

infringement, or it may be found that the relevamatent or

intellectual property rights owned by others camthie technology,
products and services of the Company or its entbmess. The
semiconductor industry is characterized by many paoTes

owning a large number of patents and intellectwaperty rights,

and actively pursuing, protecting and enforcingrhe

The Company is currently not aware of any thirdtypaccusing

the Company of infringing its intellectual propertyghts.

However, allegations of intellectual property infjement are not
uncommon in the technology industry. The Companyy rha

accused by others of infringing on other peopleigellectual

property rights in the future. Regardless of whetbimers have
sufficient evidence, any allegations may affect empany’s

reputation, finances, business and revenue which caase the
Company high litigation costs resulting a negaimwpact on the
Company’s operations.

An issuing company with subsidiaries meeting on¢hefstandards of a
“major subsidiary” in the latest year or the fisgahr when it applies for
TWSE listing, it shall explain the risks of the éayn company’s

business base or subsidiary.

All subsidiaries of the Company meeting one of Htandards of a
“major subsidiary” .Risks related to the overalbeomy, any changes in
the political and economic environments, foreigrch@ange controls,
taxes and relevant laws and regulations of itseplafcregistration and
major places of operation, and whether such plemesgnize the effect
of conclusive judgments of R.O.C. civil courts, aatbo state the
response measures undertaken. Please refer to dive aountry of
operation.
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3.

A Foreign Issuing Company shall additionally explaiarious risks
clearly, such as the overall economy, any changeke political and
economic environments, foreign exchange contralsed and relevant
laws and regulations of its place of registratiord anajor places of
operation, and whether such places recognize tieetedf conclusive
judgments of R.O.C. civil courts, and also state thsponse measures
undertaken.

(1) Country of registration: Cayman

A.

Overall economy, changes in the political and eowno
environments

Cayman Islands is a British colony located in theikibean Sea.
The capital is George Town and its financial sexvi@ustry is the
main source of income. There are many legal, adouynand
professional service organizations that provide veorent
services.

Cayman Islands has long been politically stable English is the
official language. The company registration candneded into
five categories: Ordinary Company, Ordinary NoniBest
Company, Exempted Company, Exempted Limited Dunatio
Company, and Foreign Company. Among them, exempted
companies are mainly used by companies and indisdin
various countries for financial planning, but thegnnot operate
locally; in addition, the Cayman Islands governmieas actively
strengthened the credibility of its foreign finascoperations in
recent years, and signed a Mutual Legal Assistaneaty with the
United States and the United Kingdom in 1986 tovene
international criminal organizations from using tl@ayman
Islands’ financial system to conduct illegal monkyndering
transactions. In addition, in response to the Biglementation

of the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Action PI&@BEPS)
formulated by the Organization for Economic Co-apen and
Development (OECD), the Cayman Islands government
announced the International Tax Co-operation (Egooo
Substance) Act at the end of 2018.

In summary, the Company is registered in the Caymlamds as
an exempted company, and there is no real locah®ss activity.
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Moreover, the Cayman Islands has been politicatiyple for a
long time, so changes in the overall economy andiqa and

economic environment should not have a significapiact on the
Company’s overall operations. However, after thecamcement
of the International Tax Co-operation (Economic Sabce) Act,
it is still necessary to pay attention to the intpafcthe Act on the
Company and assess possible compliance costs.

Foreign exchange control, taxes and related lawgegulations

There are no foreign exchange restrictions in tagn@n Islands
except for the annual license fee and there isently no
corporate income tax or value-added tax for exethptampanies;
in addition, no decree enacted to impose taxeshenptofits,
income, gains or appreciations shall apply to tben@any, and no
profits, income, gains or appreciations tax shall gayable in
respect of the shares, bonds or other liabilitiethe Company, or
be withheld in accordance with tax incentives. Thain
regulations for exempted companies in the Caymiamds are as
follows:

(&) An exempted company may not trade in the Caymamdisl
with any person, firm or corporation except in figttance of
the business of the exempted company carried aideuthe
Cayman Islands unless such trade is beneficial tiar
Company’s foreign operation.

(b) An exempted company is prohibited from making any

invitation to the public in the Cayman Islands wbscribe for

any of its shares or debentures; nor may an exempte
company own land in the Cayman Islands unless the

Company is listed in Financial Secretary of the Gay
Islands.

(c) The Companies Law of the Cayman Islands does not

stipulate that the Company must hold an annual rgéne
meeting of shareholders. However, the Company shioaild
a Board meeting and a general meeting of sharefsoide
accordance with the provisions of the Articles asAciation
with the location not limited to the Cayman Islandswever,
the Company’s Articles of Association (Articles of
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Association) approved by the resolution of the shalders’

meeting on August 26, 2015 stipulates that the Gomp
should hold a shareholders’ meeting within six rherafter
the end of each year, and it is stipulated thar disted as a
public company, unless otherwise stipulated by lzamsl

regulations, the shareholders’ meeting of the Comshall

be held in the R.O.C. territory. If the shareholdeeting is
convened outside the R.O.C. territory, it shallorego the

TWSE for approval within two days after the resntof

the Board of Directors or the shareholder obtawesapproval
of the competent authority to convene, and a stegikstrar

and transfer agent in Taiwan shall be appointeuatalle the
stock affairs of the shareholder meeting. (inclgdbut not

limited to accepting proxy voting of shareholders).

(d) The Articles of Association stipulate that the essce of new
shares shall be subject to the approval of more tfaf of
the directors present at a Board meeting at whioherthan
two-thirds the directors are present, and the rssei&f new
shares shall be within the authorized capital ef@ompany.

(e) Exempted companies do not need to submit or declare
detailed information on shareholders to the Cayitséands
General Registry, but the Articles of Associatidipdate
that the Board of Directors should prepare a list o
shareholders at the office of the Company’s stadistrar
and transfer agent in Taiwan, and it shall be pexpat an
appropriate place inside or outside the Caymanndsia
which shall record the details of the shareholderd the
number of shares they hold, as well as other detaquired
by the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

() The list of shareholders of an exempted company chme
have to be open to public inspection.

(g) Exempted companies can apply for deregistration ad
transfer their registration to other countries.

(h) Exempted companies can be registered as exempiaddi
duration companies. Exempted limited duration camgsa
require at least two shareholders and is valicafanaximum
period of 30 years.
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(i) Since the laws of the Cayman Islands are diffefrem those
of other jurisdictions in Taiwan in relation to theguity
protection of the minority shareholders, the Conyplaas, in
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Adtaofan,
the Company Act and other laws and the requiremafntise
competent authority, amend the Articles of Assaoarat
within the limits of the laws and regulations oetRayman
Islands to protect the shareholders’ equity of Eamese
investors.

In summary, since the Cayman Islands adopts an ppkcy on

foreign exchange and has no relevant restrictidinste is no
significant impact on the Company’s use of fundse TTayman
Islands government also grants preferential pdit¢e exempted
companies in taxation. In addition to the above-ioeed

restrictions on trading in Cayman Islands, making iavitation to

the public in the Cayman Islands to subscribe for @f its shares
or debentures, purchasing land and company nameslemant

laws and regulations, there are no major restristion exempted
companies’ operations, and the Company is only ecallp

registered company and does not engage in localndsss
activities. Thus, the Cayman Islands where the Guoypis

registered, has no significant impact on the Coryijsaoperation

in terms of taxation and related laws and regutetio

Whether the country recognizes the binding effett cwvil
judgments of the courts of the Republic of China

(@) Risk of litigation

The Articles of Association stipulate that, prowddéat it
does not violate the laws and regulations, the Gomshall,
in accordance with the resolution of the Board aettors,
designate a natural person with domicile or residein the
R.O.C. territory as its litigious and non-litigious
representative in the R.O.C. territory in accoragandth the
public offering company law and to serve as itpoesible
person in the Republic of China. The Company shblb
report the designation and changes to the compatghority
of the Republic of China in accordance with the lgub
offering company law.
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(b)

Since the Company is an exempted company regisiertée
Cayman Islands and has not applied for the approfvéhe
Ministry of Economic Affairs in accordance with the
Company Act, if the investor files a lawsuit agairitke
Company or the responsible person in the court haf t
Republic of China. The court may judge the existent
jurisdiction and the delivery method according lte nature
and circumstances of the case, and may requirestiongeto
provide explanation of the foreign laws involvedtie case.
Thus, not all cases can be guaranteed to obtaistative
judgments in the courts of the Republic of China.

Risks of judgment recognition and enforcement

The law of the Cayman Islands does not expresgiylate
that civil judgments made by the courts of the Rdipuof
China (R.O.C. court judgments) may be enforced ha t
Cayman Islands, but according to its Common Lave th
R.O.C. court judgments must comply with the follogi
elements for the Cayman Islands courts to constter
recognition:

I. The foreign court that rendered the judgment has

jurisdiction;
ii. The judgment clearly states that the debtor isgehlito
pay the liquidated sum specified in the judgment;

lii. The final judgment;
Iv. No taxes, fines or penalties are involved; and

v. The manner in which the judgment was obtained ts no
contrary to the natural justice or public policy tbie
Cayman Islands, and the recognition and enforcewfent
the judgment is not contrary to the natural justoze
public policy of the Cayman Islands.

If the court of Cayman Islands does not recognize t
judgment of the court of R.O.C., the judgment aiedi by
the investor will not be enforced. Thus, the ingestay
encounter the risk of being unable to claim the pensation.
Investors should understand the legal risks of msing
securities issued by foreign issuers.
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Whether the government of R.O.C. can extraditedgfendants to
stand trial

The Cayman Islands Monetary Authority, where then@any is
registered, has signed the I0SCO Multilateral Meandum of
Understanding, and the Taiwan Financial Supervisory
Commission may request relevant information orsfifeom the
CIMA based on the memorandum, including but notiteoh to:
sufficient record to reconstruct all current setbesiand derivative
financial product transactions (including bank atmdnsaction
records of all funds and asset transfers). Howeube
memorandum does not contain provisions relatedtiadition, so
R.O.C. does not have the right to request the Cayislands to
extradite the defendant based on the memoranduraddition,
Taiwan and the Cayman Islands have not signed saergnt on
international mutual legal assistance in criminatters. Thus, in
summary, Taiwan may face the risk of being unableejuest the
Cayman Islands to extradite the defendant to stdeald

The risk of the law application arising from theffeliences
between Cayman'’s laws and the laws of the Repoblizhina

(@) The Company is established under the laws of thgm@a
Islands and to be listed on the TWSE, it has annbe
Articles of Association in accordance with the regonents
of the relevant laws and regulations of the RepudiChina
to protect the shareholders’ equity. As for the terat not
stipulated in the Articles of Association, the Canp will
handle in accordance with the relevant laws of Glagman
Islands and the laws of the Republic of China agblie to
foreign issuers. There are many differences betileetaws
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the liwthe
Republic of China on the Company's operation where
investors cannot apply the legal equity protecodmaiwan
company investments to the Cayman Islands companies
Investors should understand and consult with egpetien
necessary on whether investing in a Cayman Islands
company provides the shareholder equity protection.

(b) Differences between the laws of the Cayman Islamdsthe
laws of the Republic of China and the securitiestesy may
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still cause conflicts of law application or integpation, and
the resolution such conflicts is still subject tud judgment.
Thus, investors are reminded that if they requsstcourt of
the Cayman Islands to enforce the judgment of R, @Crile

a lawsuit in the court of the Cayman Islands orossd
relevant rights, the court of the Cayman Islandghtinot
recognize the laws and transaction practices of .®R.O
(including but not limited to method of transfersifares and
record of share holders), so there may be risksxefcising
rights against foreign companies.

Investors should carefully assess whether theiranial
capabilities and economic conditions are suitableifivestment
before buying or selling listed, emerging stockearerging stock
foreign securities, and should pay special attentio the
following matters:

(@) The Company is registered in the Cayman Islands iand
regulated by local laws and regulations. Its coap®r
governance, accounting standards, taxation systehrother
relevant regulations may be different from thoseRdaD.C.,
and there are differences in listing standardsevewnethods,
information disclosure, shareholder equity protectiand
supervision standards, etc. Investors should utatetsthis
characteristics and potential investment risks.

(b) The company law of the country where the Company is
registered differs from the laws and regulation®kdD.C. in
terms of the exercise and protection of sharehsldsguity.
Investors should read the Company's annual repod a
Articles of Association in detail to understand #ygplicable
capital increase and decrease procedures, handiing
acquisition of the Company’s shares, restrictionssbare
transfers, notice time limit for shareholders’ niegs,
attendance at shareholders’ meetings and exertigetiog
rights, dividend distribution percentage and proced,
election and dismissal of directors, powers of Board of
Directors, powers of independent directors and Allit
Committee, remuneration of directors and managgsts of
directors and managers to claim compensation from t
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(€)

(d)

Company, etc., are important matters related tgarete
governance and shareholder rights. When necessagey,
opinions of professionals such as lawyers and atteots
who have obtained local licenses should be cordulte

Before investing, investors should understand tbe@any’s
characteristics and risks, including: liquidity kriswhen
trading in the R.O.C. market, the Company’s finahand
business risks, political, economic, and sociainges in the
country of registration and main business locatabranges in
the industry cycle, legal compliance and othersisk

It is impossible to list all foreign securities gstment risks
and market factors in detail. Investors should fcélseread
relevant information such as annual reports anderoth
announcements before trading, carefully considenerot
factors that may affect investment judgments, aoddact
financial planning and risk assessment to avoideardble
losses.

(2) Main country of operation: Samoa

A.

Changes in the overall economy and political emmment

Samoa is an island country in the South Pacificatied between
Hawaii and New Zealand, west of American Samoa, trel
center of the Polynesian Islands, formerly known“@&estern

Samoa”. Samoa was a German colony until 1914 béftwecame
independent in 1962, and was later ruled by Newabek In 1997,
the Samoan government amended the constitutiomgaig the

name of the country from “Independent State of \@lesSamoa”
to “Independent State of Samoa”, with Apia as d@pital. Samoa
has a stable society with stable political and eotio

environment. Samoan and English are the officiahleges of
which English is very popular in the country. Santwas not
announced an Economic Substance Act or new taxiatigus.

Although it seems that it will not be affected fible time being,
the European Union has prepared specific sanctidosever, the
Company has no business activities in Samoa, wélchuld not
have a significant impact on the overall operatibhe Company
will continue to pay attention to its possible imopa

-23 -



B. Exchange control, taxation, laws and regulations

The currency of Samoa is the Samoa Tala (WST)exthange
rate is quite stable and there is no foreign exglarontrol for
international companies. For international compsnigey are
tax-exempt companies according to law and do netine pay
taxes. Thus, there is no tax risk. In addition, 8arhas no foreign
exchange control for international companies, soetls no risk of
foreign exchange control.

C. The risk basis of not recognizing the binding dffec civil
judgments of R.O.C. courts

According to the legal opinion of Samoa lawyersthalgh there
is no law in Samoa that stipulates that the judgmarade by the
courts of the Republic of China can be enforce@amoa, if the
parties file a request to the Supreme Court of Sarfoo the
enforcement of foreign court judgments and if syetigment
meets the following requirements, the Samoan aeilirhot have
a hearing on the disputes involved in the foreigartjudgment,
and will recognize and enforce the foreign coumdgjment in
accordance with common law:

(@) The foreign court that made the judgment has jiatigoh
over the case;

(b) The judgment imposes on the losing party an ohbbgato
pay the liquidated sum,;

(c) The final judgment;
(d) No taxes, fines or penalties are involved; and

(e) The manner in which the judgment was obtained it no
contrary to the natural justice or public policySémoa, and
the recognition and enforcement of the judgmentnad
contrary to the natural justice or public policySdmoa.

(3) Main country of operation: British Virgin Islands
A. Changes in the overall economy and political emmment

The British Virgin Islands is located in the Cailalm Sea and is a
British Overseas Territory. After gaining self-gowment in 1967,
it became a member of the Commonwealth of Natiork leas a
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stable political environment. Financial serviced &urism are the
main income sources for the British Virgin Island&nce the
promulgation of the International Business CompAugy (IBCA)
in 1984, the registration of foreign companies basn opened,
and its overseas financial service industry haeldg@ed rapidly. It
is now one of the most popular offshore jurisdietion the world.

The British Virgin Islands is actively strengthegithe credibility
of its overseas financial operations. The MutuajdleAssistance
Treaty signed between the United Kingdom and thigedrStates
in 1986 was extended in 1989 to prevent internati@miminal

organizations from using the financial system @ British Virgin

Islands to conduct illegal transactions. The Bmitidrgin Islands
established an independent BVI Financial Services@ission in
2001 and joined the International Organization afciBities
Commissions (IOSCO) in 2007 to regulate its finahservices
industry. In addition, in response to the EU’s iementation of
the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Action PlanEHS)

formulated by OECD, the British Virgin Islands annmced the
International Tax Co-operation (Economic Substars) at the
end of 2018. The Company will continue to pay ditento its

possible impact.

Exchange control, taxation, laws and regulations

The British Virgin Islands have no exchange comstrot other
currency restrictions. Commercial companies reggsitén British
Virgin Islands are exempt from taxation on overs@ame.
Companies only need to pay the annual governmegnde fee to
the local government, costs for using the registeddress and the
cost of the registered agent. There are no otheceti@neous fees.
Commercial companies registered in British Virgslahds only
need to pay government license fees every year, omedseas
income is exempt from tax. In terms of laws andutagons, the
BVI Business Companies Act promulgated in 2004ts$s most
important company laws and regulations.

Whether the country recognizes the binding effett cwvil
judgments of the courts of the Republic of China
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The law of the British Virgin Islands does not eegsly stipulate
that civil judgments made by the courts of the Réipuof China
(R.O.C. court judgments) may be enforced in theidriVirgin
Islands, but according to its Common Law, if a fgnecourt in the
British Virgin Islands has no reciprocal agreemamd has made a
definite judgment on monetary payment, the courthef British
Virgin Islands may recognize the judgment of thesifign court if
the following requirements are met:

(@) The judgment has not been fully implemented toilfutfie
claims of the winning party;

(b) the foreign court that determined the judgment has
jurisdiction, and the defendant has a domicileesidence, or
doing business in that jurisdiction, and has baén served;

(c) the winning party did not obtain the favorable jodt by
fraud;

(d) the recognition or enforcement of the judgment wauwbt be
contrary to the public policy of the BVI, or thedgment
would not be enforceable by the courts of the BWlather
similar grounds; and

(e) the trial process of the judgment did not violate natural
justice under the laws of the British Virgin Island

If the court of the British Virgin Islands does n@icognize the
judgment of the court of R.O.C., the judgment aiedi by the
investor will not be enforced. Thus, the invest@ynencounter the
risk of being unable to successfully claim the cengation.
Investors should understand the legal risks of masing securities
issued by foreign issuers.

(4) Main country of operation: Mainland China
A. Changes in the overall economy and political emmment

China is one of the fastest growing economies i@ wWorld.
China’s economic development is determined by theidr
expansion of domestic labor, capital and resourgesyell as the
improvement of technology and systems, thereby awipg
various domestic production efficiency. The Chingsgernment
is promoting the popularization of education, uibation,
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infrastructure, and consumption upgrading, andag participated
in international events and organizations. Chinalbecome more
and more influential in the world where its constimp on global

resources is also increasing. Thus, under therectbthe Chinese
government, the Chinese economy is expected toinema state

of high growth in the future.

The Company’s development strategy is to set thleradipn base
in the Mainland China market. Thus, the Companysrfcial
performance, operation results and prospects wilafiected by
China’s political, economic, and legal changes.

Foreign exchange control, taxes and related lawgegulations

(&) Foreign exchange control

Before the reform, the Chinese foreign exchange
management system was highly centralized undeplémed
economy system with centralized and unified managerof
foreign exchange transactions. It was not until réferm in
1978 that it gradually moved towards market managegm
Since 1994, China has carried out a series of dorei
exchange management system reforms to utilize twkeh
mechanism. The first is to realize the unificatadrexchange
rates and implement a managed floating exchange rat
system based on market supply and demand. Thedectm
implement the bank’s foreign exchange settlemedt sates
system. The foreign exchange income of institutionShina
under the current account, except for the foreigohange
that is allowed to be retained according to thell&gpns and
can open foreign exchange accounts at designatedyiio
exchange banks, must be immediately transferred bac
China, and sell to designated foreign exchange abkhe
listed exchange rate. At the same time, RMB curaesbunt
can be conditionally converted. Companies can @seh
foreign exchange from designated foreign exchargekd
with valid certificates within the specified scopkhis is to
gradually realize the free conversion of RMB undiee
current account. The last is to establish an ib#etk foreign
exchange market, improve the exchange rate mechaarsd
maintain a reasonable and relatively stable RMBharge

-27 -



(b)

rate. The exchange of RMB and foreign currencigsedds

on the influence of Chinese politics and internagiqoolitical
economy. Since the Chinese government adoptedaénitp
exchange rate policy on July 21, 2005, the RMB axrge
rate has officially decoupled from the USD and duated
with reference to the currency basket. Under tloiscp, the
RMB exchange rate can fluctuate slightly, but is Haeen
underestimated as the Chinese government has [forcib
prevented its appreciation to ensure its export
competitiveness. As a result, international poveerstinue to
put pressure on the Chinese government to adopitefur
floating currency policies, thereby appreciating tSD.
Changes in the exchange rate of RMB to the USD haae

an uncertain impact on the Company's cash flow,
profitability, earnings distribution, and financiaérformance,
and its foreign exchange control measures may tresul
challenges to the Company’s overall capital allocat

The Chinese government has enacted a number affore
exchange control rules, regulations, and noticéschwallow
limited conversion of RMB. Accordingly, foreign-fdad
companies can only exchange RMB into foreign cuaiesn
for current account transactions through design&beeign
exchange banks. China’s State Administration ofefgor
Exchange has always had strict regulations on darei
exchange control under the capital account. The amyis
local subsidiaries have been established througial le
registration procedures, and previous capital emee have
been approved by relevant local authorities.

The characteristics of land and properties

There is no private ownership of land in China. d.an
China is owned by collectives, except for state enship as
stipulated by law. According to the Constitution tife
People’s Republic of China enacted by the Natiéteadple’s
Congress, the subject of land ownership in Chirngpeific,
including the state and the collective where lamth@rship is
divided into state land ownership and collectivendia

-28-



(€)

ownership accordingly. The state may expropriate or
requisition land according to law.

Pursuant to the “Urban Real Estate Management Lfatleo
People’s Republic of China” (*Real Estate Manageimen
Law”) and the “Administrative Measures for Commedit
House Leasing” promulgated by the Ministry of Hogsand
Urban-Rural Development on December 1, 2010 and
implemented on February 1, 2011, the parties toséou
leasing shall sign a leasing contract; house |gasinall
implement a registration and filing system. Accaglio the
relevant provisions of the “Contract Law of the Pplets
Republic of China” and the “Interpretations of tBapreme
People’s Court on Certain Issues Concerning thdiégtpon

of the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of@h{l)”, if
the relevant law or administration regulation regsithat a
certain contract be registered without subjecting i
effectiveness to such registration, then failure etibect
registration shall not impair the effectivenesdhaf contract.
In view of the relevant laws such as the “Real tésta
Management Law” and the “Administrative Measures fo
Commodity House Leasing”, administrative regulasicio
not stipulate that the lease contract shall be stegd
subjecting its effectiveness to such registratemnthe failure
to effect registration shall not impair the effgetiess of the
contract.

Corporate income tax and value added tax

According to the newly implemented “Enterprise ImmTax
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Entéspr
Income Tax Law Implementation Regulations” (“NewxTa
Law”) on January 1, 2008, the income tax rate for
domestic-funded enterprises and foreign-fundedrpnses is
25%, and a number of tax reductions and incentiees
foreign-funded enterprises have been canceled windeax
incentives enjoyed by foreign-funded enterprisesn ca
gradually increase from the preferential tax rate26%
within five years after the implementation of thewN Tax
Law. Non-Chinese resident enterprises (refers torasident
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enterprises are enterprises which are set up iordaace
with the law of a foreign country (region) and waaasctual
administrative institution is not in China, but whi have
institutions or establishments in China, or whicivda no
such institutions or establishments but have incgereerated
from inside China.) are required to pay enterptéseon its
income generated from both inside and outside Chira
December 26, 2007, the State Council of the Pesple’
Republic of China issued the Notice by the PRC eStat
Council on the Implementation of the Grandfathering
Preferential Policies under the PRC Enterprise rnmed ax
Law (Decree No. [2007] 39). the enterprises thatehlaeen
granted the “2-year exemption and 3-year half paymiax
concessions shall continue to enjoy the tax commessintil
the expiry day in accordance with the tax prefeesnender
the old income tax law, regulations and relevavsions.
However, for those enterprises that did not enjbe t
preferential, as they did not make profits duringe t
transitional period, the tax preferential period alkh
commence from the implementation of the new law.

For value-added tax, the Chinese government impigde
the “Provisional Regulations of the People’s Rejuulalf
China on Value-added Tax” on January 1, 2009 wiladire
units and individuals engaged in the sales of gopasision
of processing, repairs and replacement serviced, the
importation of goods within the territory of the dpée’s
Republic of China are taxpayers of Value-Added Taxd
taxpayers selling or importing goods, other thamséh
exporting goods with the tax rate of 0% or as otie
stipulated by the State Council, the tax rate dhall7%. On
April 4, 2018, the State Taxation Administratiorsued a
notice on adjusting the VAT rate to adjust the ioad
applicable tax rate of 17% to 16% effective as cdyML,
2018. In addition, on March 21, 2019, the State afiax
Administration announced the (STA Announcement 201
No. 14) “Announcement of the Ministry of Financleg tState
Taxation Administration and the General Administatof
Customs on Relevant Policies for Deepening the
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Value-Added Tax Reform”, and the original appliGatéx

rate of 16% was adjusted to 13%. From April 1, 20th@

VAT rate of 13% is applicable to the transactiomtipers of

GEM Electronics (Shanghai) and GEM Electronics @ief
that are local manufacturers in Mainland China.

(d) Labor contract law

On January 1, 2008, China implemented the new labor
contract law which stipulates that employer shosign
written labor contracts with employees on the dafe
employment. If no written labor contract is con@ddat the
time when a labor relationship is established, suclntract
shall be concluded within one month as of the edten the
employer employs an employer. Where an employés ftai
conclude a written labor contract with an emplofggrmore
than a month but less than a year from the dataits
employing him, it shall pay the employee two tinmas
salary for each month. If an employer fails to dode a
written labor contract with an employer within oyear as of
the date when it employs the employee, it shallié&emed to
have concluded an open-ended labor contract weHatter.
In addition, in order to prevent employers from idbily
dismissing workers, the labor contract law cleatiypulates
the financial compensation shall be paid on thesbasthe
number of years a person works in an entity, tie b&ing
one month’s salary for the work of one full yedrhé has
worked for six months or more but less than one,yde
time shall be calculated as one year; and if heNtaked for
less than six months, he shall be paid half of rhanthly
salary as financial compensation; if the employmexists
for more than a month but less than a year, thdampshall
pay the employee two times his salary for each mamd
compensation according to the above calculationhatkt
when the employment expires and is terminated;
compensation shall also be paid when terminatirglabor
contract without a fixed term; If the contract errhinated
due to the inability to work or incompetence foe fjob after
the medical treatment period (depending on theorggi
generally ranging from three months to two yeatbp
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employer shall pay the employee compensation. thitiad,
according to the Labor Contract Law, when working o
statutory holidays, the overtime pay shall be atsiehree
times the salary; if 20 or less than 20 peopledisenissed
but account for more than 10% of the total numbér o
employees in the enterprise, the employer shalsiden the
trade union’s or employees’ opinion and notify Mmistry.

If the contract is violated or terminated, the enypl must
pay twice the compensation standard; In the evérthat
employee has been working for the employer contislyo
for 15 years in full and is less than 5 years aivay the
statutory retirement age where the employee hastatatory
fault, the employer may not revoke the labor cartra
concluded with the employee.

In summary, the implementation of the Labor Corittaov
may increase the Company’s labor costs and canaadial
uncertainty. However, the labor-management relatiosll
become increasingly harmonious due to the cleanlaggn
of the law.

(e) Social insurance and housing provident fund
I.  Social insurance payments

“Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China” refers to the regulations on social insueaint
the Chinese government, including the “Interim
Regulation on the Collection and Payment of Social
Insurance Premiums”, the “Social Insurance Lawhef t
People’'s Republic of China” and the “Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance”. There are detailed
regulations according to each type of insuranceach
region and the Company has participated in pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insetanc
work-related injury insurance and maternity insgean
according to law.

ii. Housing provident fund payment

The “Guiding Opinions on Some Specific Issues
Concerning the Management of Housing Provident
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Funds” implemented in Mainland China on January 10,
2005 stipulates that the management of housing
provident funds should be carried out in accordamte

the “Regulation on the Administration of Housing
Accumulation Funds”. However, the housing provident
fund system is still in the process of establishtreard
improvement with different implementation in each
region. Thus, each province and city combines the
experience and applies the basic concept of the
“Regulation on the Administration of Housing
Accumulation Funds”, to formulate specific regubaits

on the collection and withdrawal of housing provite
funds, issue policies on the payment base and odtio
housing provident funds each year, and realizédesal
management of housing provident funds. The uséef t
housing provident fund is limited to the purchade o
houses and house repairs in the area where thsitiepo
made. The HPF cannot be used when buying a house in
another place, and the participating employees mneed
allocate the same proportion of salary as the Compa
deposit in the HPF account. The Company pays HPF
accordingly, and there is no record of administeati
punishment involving violation of laws and regubeis
related to HPF in Shanghai and Hefei Housing Peavid
Fund Management Center.

Risks and countermeasures that the Company may face

According to Article 84 of the “Social InsuranceviLaf

the People’s Republic of China”: Where an employer
fails to handle social insurance registration, soeial
insurance administrative department shall ordetoit
make correction within a prescribed time limit; ahd
fails to do so within the prescribed time limit,pose a
fine of 1-3 times the amount of the social insuenc
premiums payable upon it, and impose a fine oflesd
than RMB$500 but not more than RMB$3,000 upon the
directly liable person in charge and other diredtiple
persons. And Article 86: Where an employer failpay
social insurance premiums on time or in full amotimé
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(f)

collection agency of social insurance premiums Ishal
order it to pay or make up the deficit of premiumthin

a prescribed time limit, and impose a daily late & the
rate of 0.05% of the outstanding amount from the du
date; and if it still fails to pay the premiums it the
prescribed time Ilimit, the relevant administrative
department shall impose a fine of 1-3 times the
outstanding amount upon it.

According to Article 37 of the “Regulation on the
Administration of Housing Accumulation Funds”™
Where, in violation of the provisions of these
Regulations, a unit fails to undertake payment and
deposit registration of housing provident fund aitsf to

go through the formalities of opening housing pdewvit
fund accounts for its staff and workers, the hogisin
provident fund management center shall order iydo
through the formalities within a prescribed timmit
where failing to do so at the expiration of theditmit,

a fine of not less than RMB$10,000 nor more than
RMB$50,000 shall be imposed. And Article 38: Where,
in violation of the provisions of these Regulaticasinit

is overdue in the payment and deposit of, or uraderp
the housing provident fund, the housing providemtdf
management center shall order it to make the paymen
and deposit within a prescribed time limit; whehe t
payment and deposit has not been made after the
expiration of the time limit, an application may made

to a people’s court for compulsory enforcement.

As the Company has paid social insurance and hgusin
provident fund for its employees in China in aceorck
with relevant regulations, there shall be no pdssib
risks.

Environmental protection regulations

According to the current effective laws and regala in
China on environmental protection, the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’s RepubficChina
implements unified supervision and management of
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environmental protection across the China. The €d@n
environmental protection administrative departmehtthe
local government at or above the county level shall
implement unified supervision and management of the
environmental protection within its jurisdictionh@ current
effective environmental protection laws and regata in
China include the “Environmental Protection Law tbie
People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the People’sfblic
of China on Environmental Impact Assessment”, “Lafwhe
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Cdmfo
Water Pollution”, “Law of the People’s Republic ©hina on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollutjoand
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevemtend
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wast&Jnits
that cause environmental pollution and other pubazards
shall incorporate the work of environmental pratactinto
their plans and establish a responsibility systear f
environmental protection, and must adopt effecineasures
to prevent and control the pollution and harms edus the
environment by waste gas, waste water, waste resjdlust,
malodorous gases, radioactive substances, noibeatioin
and electromagnetic radiation generated in the seowf
production, construction or other activities. Thengphany’s
subsidiaries in China, GEM Electronics (Shanghag GEM
Electronics (Hefei), have obtained drainage pernatsl
pollutant discharge permits respectively.

The Company’'s subsidiaries in China are subjectthe
supervision and jurisdiction of Chinese government
authorities, including but not limited to ministoy commerce,
administration for industry and commerce, foreigichange
management, environmental protection, administnatad
work safety, press and publication administratiand
medical product administration. The above-mentioned
government regulatory authorities have the right to
promulgate and/or implement laws, regulations and
regulations related to the operation of subsidsaieChina.
The operation of the Company’s subsidiaries in @meeds
to obtain relevant permits and licenses from gowenmt
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regulatory authorities. If the subsidiaries canobtain or
continue to hold the relevant permits and licenfesn
various government regulatory authorities, the wslidises
may be subject to penalties include fines, ternonator
operations restriction. The occurrence of any & #bove
situations will affect the operation of the Comparihe
Company will continue to closely observe, underdtaand
follow the development trend of the Chinese govesnts
policies and changes in laws and regulations.

C. The risk on whether the country recognizes the ibmeffect of
civil judgments of the courts of the Republic ofiGh

According to the “Provisions of the Supreme Pe@pléburt on
Recognition and Enforcement of the Civil Judgmaerit€ourts of
the Taiwan Region”, the final civil judgments oftRepublic of
China are recognized to have the same effect a<sffieetive
judgments made by the People’s Courts and apprdwedhe
Chinese courts.

(5) Main country of operation: Republic of China
A. Changes in the overall economy and political emmment

Taiwan is located in the center of the Asia-Pacifegion,

bordering the world’s growing economic center ahd world’s
second largest economy in the west — China, fathegworld’s
third largest economy in the north - Japan, theldirargest
economy in the east - the United States, and theASBAN

countries including India in the south, with theogeaphic and
linguistic advantages. Taiwan is a transportatiob im Asia and a
regional transshipment center in East Asia. It cannect global
production resources and markets as an importandgerfor

connections and industrial strategies between Eyrthe United
States, Japan and Asia-Pacific emerging markets.

According to the latest forecast of IHS Markit imWember 2022,
the global economy will grow by 1.5% in 2023, whishalmost
halved from 2022. It is due to the Russian-Ukraintanflict and
inflation causing the global economy to turn from @ptimistic
post-epidemic recovery to a recession in 2022. &benomic
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outlook has not yet healed from the epidemic, astdityfaces the
highest inflation rate since the 1970s, with a n$la catastrophe.
In addition, in response to the unexpected andopged increase
in inflation, the global central banks are tightenithe monetary
policies which is impacting the economic recovene do the

slowdown in demand to combat inflation. It is estted that the
inflation will not be controlled until the end 0023. The global
economy is currently experiencing a series of turmod crises,
and the outlook is grim. The United States, theoRean Union
and Mainland China will be facing stagnation inwtio in 2023,

and for the global economy, it will be a year oteassion. In
Taiwan, both private investment and exports wilcefathe

constraints of a high base period and uncertaintiehe global

economy. Thus, according to the forecast of thevdailnstitute

of Economic Research in December 2022, Taiwan sn@&tdic

growth will slow down in 2023, and the domestic mmmic

growth rate is estimated to be 2.51%.

Foreign exchange control, taxes and related lawgegulations

Taiwan’s foreign exchange market was establishel9ir9, and
foreign exchange controls were relaxed in 1987. €kehange
rate of NTD against foreign currencies is largegtedmined by
market supply and demand, which is called “manafjeating
exchange rate”.

For tax collection, there are many tax items inwgad, including
value-added tax, income tax (profit-seeking entegpmcome tax
and individual income tax), income basic tax, estatd gift tax
and securities transaction tax. Among them, thaesaldded tax is
generated due to sales; the profit-seeking ensarpncome tax is
generated due to business profits; the income beesic is
generated due to the income exempted from incoryeha estate
tax is generated due to the inheritance left byinkésidual when
he dies; the gift tax arises is generated dueddrtinsfer of assets
from individuals to others; the securities transacttax arises
from the sale and purchase of securities. In amfditthe stock
transactions can currently only levy income taxtba income
generated by individual stock transactions (exdepthe income
generated by individuals residing in the R.O.Critigny from the
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sale of listed stocks and emerging stocks in 20d%re income
tax is levied only on the income generated fromamatansactions
of emerging stocks and transactions of some fimst-tlisted

stocks; from 2015, only for the portion of the aahsales amount
exceeding NT$1 billion will be taxed is calculatta rate of 1%o);
For profit-seeking enterprises in the Taiwan, ibmy required to
incorporate the income from stock transactions itite basic
income to determine whether to pay the basic tax.

The Company reinvests in various business eniiti¢se form of

a holding company. The main source of capital esifsuance of
new shares and borrowing from financial institusiavhich is used
to reinvest in subsidiaries. The relevant secwitlaws and
regulations of R.O.C. have been continuously reliseline with

the competent authority to promote foreign comparce list in

Taiwan, and there are no major restrictions thay mgpact the
Company’s various operating activities.

The risk on whether the country recognizes the ibmeffect of
civil judgments of the courts of the Republic ofiGh

The Company’'s main operation base is in Taiwan, tise
evaluation of whether the main operation countigogmizes the
binding effect of the civil judgment of the coufttbe Republic of
China is not applicable.
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Chapter 111

Organizational structure

(1
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() Business affairs operated by the key departments

Department Responsibilities
1. The institution or amendment to the internal cdrpadicies.
2. Internal control policies’ effectiveness evaluation
3. The institution or amendment to the procedurester
acquisition or disposal of assets, derivative tr&okning of
funds, guarantee and endorsement in favor of d garty, and
other aspects of materiality with significant fircéad and
business effect.
4. Resolutions involving the directors’ own stake tielia.
Audit 5. Approval of critical asset or derivative produetding.
Committee 6. Approval of critical capital lending, endorsemeamtguarantee.
7. Offering, issuance or acquiring equity securitl@®tigh private
placement.
8. The Auditing CPA’s appointment, dismissal or renmatien.
9. The appointment and dismissal of a chief financfater, chief
accounting officer, or internal audit supervisor.
10. Financial Report and the Financial Report of the Guarter
required for an audit with certification.
11. Other major matters stipulated by the Company er th
competent authority.
1. Prescribe and periodically review the performareséew and

Remuneration
Committee

remuneration policy, system, standards, and strei¢tu
directors and managerial officers.
Periodically evaluate and prescribe the remunearaifo
directors, and managerial officers.

Auditing
Department

Establishment, revision and review of the Compamytarnal
control and internal audit system.

Implementation of the audit and self-evaluatiorvanous
operations of the head office and branch offices.
Research, improvement, and suggestions relatesv®and
regulations and auditing techniques.

Chairman

Decision-making on major business and administatmatters of th¢

Company.

14

Vice Chairman

Review the Company’s major business and adminiggratatters.
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Department Responsibilities
Manage the Company'’s overall affairs and set thection and goals
President |of the business operations according to the rasakibf the

shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors.

Sales Center

Responsible for product sales, customer serviaknaarket
expansion.

1. Responsible for product production and achievirgg th
GEM Hefei Company’s annual productio'n plan é.nd c.:ost cor?knalg
Factory Respor.lsmle for product testing, verification, ntairance and
quality improvement.
Responsible for factory leasing and service.
1. Responsible for product production and achievirgg th
GEM Shanghai Company’s annual production plan and cost contalg
Factory 2. Responsible for product testing, verification, ntaimance and
guality improvement.
Finance and |Provide correct and effective financial accouniimigrmation, and
Accounting |create profit through investment or financing ates.
Responsible for human resources management, general
Personnel

Administration

administration, environmental protection, work $@afend labor
health and safety.

Il. Information

of Directors, Supervisor,

Managers, and the heads of various departmentsrandhes

(N

Directors, supervisors

Names, gender, age, nationality or place of reaistn, work experience
(educational background), positions concurrentlid heith this and other

companies; appointment date and term; date ohlrappointment; number
of shares held by them, their spouses, minor amidand held through

nominees; their professional expertise; and therdity policy of the board
of directors.
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President, c&/i Presidents, Assistant



1. Director
April 1, 2023; Unit: thousand shares; %
. Spouse or relatives of seco
Shareholdings of . .
. Current number of Shares held in the degree or closer acting ag
. . Date of Shares at Election spouse and undera . L .
Nationality] ; Date shares held . names of others Major career Current duties in the department heads, directors
) Gendelelectior| i children . ) . Remark
Title and Name Age o Term| first (academic) Company and in othe supervisor (Note)
Registry 9 office elected Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of achievements companies
QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin|{QuantityShareholdin| Title Name |Relatiorn
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Ph.D., Electrical
Engineering, Rutgers .
: . Chairman of the
University, USA Compan
AT&T Bell Lab/ ompany
Elite Advanced Laser
Male 3 | June Researcher Corporation/ Chairma
Chairman | Republic Chu-Liang, ), - July 21 14, | 207 0.16 207 0.16 233 0.18 - . [fiberOptic and CSO Director| '™ Spousd -
of China (Cheng 2021 Communication . s . Chen
61-70 yeary 2012 Company PCO/ Mitsubishi Electric
. pany GEM Power Device
Director (Hefei) Compan
LITE-ON Technology/| . npany
Limited./ Director
Deputy General
Manager
BA., Electrical
Engineering, Chung
'Yuan Christian \Vice Chairman of the
) . . Male 3 | June University, Taiwan  [Company
\(;Ir(]::irman ngi?r:: n’f:an'”g’ Age J;'é'zzll 23, | 264 0.20 264 020 | 861 067 - — |Foreshot Industrial ~ [Elite Advanced Laser| - - - ;
9 61-70 years 2015 Corporation/ Deputy [Corporation/ Director
General Manager
LITE-ON Technology/
Director
Director of the
. . . .. |Company
. Femalg 3 June Shih Chien University | _ . .
. Republic July 21 . Elite Advanced Laser . Chu-iang,
Director | 2 12 ITay-den, Che| Age ")/ 19, | 206 | 016 | 233 | 018 | 207 | 016 - —  |qc, Consolidate |7 PHENEC 2 ehaiman (219 spousq -
61-70 yearg 2018 Graphics Inc. CA, USA~°'P , 9
Modern Women'’s
Foundation/ Director
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Date of

Shares at Election

Current number of

Shareholdings of
spouse and undera

Shares held in the

Spouse or relatives of seco
degree or closer acting ag

Nationality] ; Date shares held . names of others Major career Current duties in the department heads, directors
. Gendejelectior i children ) ) . Remark
Title and Name Age o Term| first (academic) Company and in othg supervisor (Note)
Registry office electeg Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of achievements companies
QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin|QuantityShareholdin| Title Name |Relatiorn
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Ph.D., Social
Psychology, CalifornigDirector of the
. . Femalg 3 |August School of ProfessionalCompany
Director 'zfgi?r']: \Q’:A'Ch””g’ Age J;'é'zzll 2%, | — - - - - - - — |psychology, GSPP  [SINO-INDO - - - ;
51-60 years 2015 SINO-INDO COMPANY LTD./
COMPANY LTD./ Director
Chairman
Elite 3 June
f::::ced ; J;'gzzll 14, |65809| 51.00 |65809| 51.00 - - - - - -
. years 2012
Corporation
MBA, Atlanta
International Universit
Elite Advanced Laser
. Corporation/ Deputy
Director | RePublic Representatiy General Manager \rjite Advanced Laser| - - - -
of China | == GEM Services, Inc./ . .
of juristic Male \ice President Corporation/ President
person: Age - - - 629 0.49 629 0.49 - - - - Sea & Land IntegrategDirector of the
Tien-Tseng, | 51-60 Corp./ President Company (Juristic
Sung CO-TECH person)
DEVELOPMENT
CORP./ Vice Presiden
GVC/ Assistant Vice
President
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. Spouse or relatives of seco
Shareholdings of . .
. Current number of Shares held in the degree or closer acting ag
S Date of Shares at Election spouse and undera ) o )
Nationality] ; Date shares held . names of others Major career Current duties in the department heads, directors
) Gendelelectior| i children . ) . Remark
Title and Name Age o Term| first (academic) Company and in othe supervisor (Note)
Registry 9 office electeq Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of achievements companies
QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin|QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin| Title Name |Relatio
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Professor of
Department of
/Accounting, National
Ph.D., Accounting,  [Taiwan University
University of Independent Director,
California, Los AngelejRemuneration and
. Male 3 | June o .
|Independer; Republic Shu. Yeh Age July 21 19 . . B B B B . . Chunghwa Telecom |Auditing Committee o
Director of China ' 9 2021 ' Co., Ltd./ CFO & SEVIthe Company
61-70 yeary 2018 )
Chunghwa Telecom |Powerchip
Co., Ltd./ Independent{Semiconductor
Director Manufacturing
Corporation/
Independent Director
and Audit Committee
Talyi International
Investment Co., Ltd./
MBA, Rutgers V
; . Director and CEO
University, USA .
. . Independent Director,
Pixon Technologies .
. Remuneration and
Corporation/ o .
. /Auditing Committee o
. Male 3 June Independent Director
|Independer] Republic . July 21 . the Company
Director | of China [0 121 Wen| Age |'5021 23, B B B B B B B B and Remuneration \c o\ oovical industy i i i
71-80 yearg 2015 Committee ptic 1
. . Co., Ltd./ Director
BandRich Inc./ Directq, . .
L (Juristic person)
(Juristic person)
) - Ennostar Inc./
\Visco Vision Inc./ .
. Independent director
Director .
and Remuneration an
Audit Committee
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. Spouse or relatives of seco
Shareholdings of . .
. Current number of Shares held in the degree or closer acting ag
S Date of Shares at Election spouse and undera ) o )
Nationality] ; Date shares held . names of others Major career Current duties in the department heads, directors
) Gendelelectior| i children . ) . Remark
Title and Name Age o Term| first (academic) Company and in othe supervisor (Note)
Registry 9 office electeq Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of achievements companies
QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin|QuantityShareholdin{QuantityShareholdin| Title Name |Relatio
(%) (%) (%) (%)
BA., Department of
Industrial Managemen|
Science of the Nationg
Cheng Kung Universit]
School of Managemer
MBA, NCCU MBA Heli Investment Co.,
Program Ltd./ Chairman
China Development |ALPHA Optical Co.,
. Male 3 | June ) . . .
|Independer; Republic (Wen Cher July 21 Financial Holding CoryLtd./ Director
. . Age 19, - - — — — — - - A ) - - - -
Director of China [Huang 2021 |years /Assistant Manager  |Independent Director,
51-60 y 2018 .
CDIB & Partners Remuneration and
Investment Holding  |Auditing Committee o
Corporation/ Senior [the Company
Manager
The CID Group Ltd./
\Vice President
Elite Advanced Laser
Corporation/ Director
BA., Department of
Business
IAdministration,
Female June Tamkang University |Independent Director,
|Independer] Republic . July 21 3 Chief Telecom Inc./ |Remuneration and
Director | of China | UEHh Lee | Ade 10,0 23, B B B B B B B B Vice President of  |Auditing Committee of i i )
71-80 years 2015 . g
Finance the Company
Chunghwa Telecom
Co., Ltd./ Accounting
Section Chief

Note 1: Where the chairperson of the Board of Daecand the president or person of an equivalesit (the highest level manager) of the Companyheeame person, spouses, or

relatives within the first degree of kinship, arpknation shall be given of the reason for, realslemeess, necessity thereof, and the measures adioptesponse thereto:

N

one.
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2.

3.

Major Shareholders of Corporate Shareholders

Major Shareholders of Corporate Shareholders

April 7, 2023

Corporate Shareholder Name

Major Shareholders gicCate Shareholde

Elite Advanced Laser Corporation

Chu-Liang, Cheng (5.94%), Cathay Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.(4.91%), TransGlobe Lifg
Insurance Inc. (2.81%), Tay-Jebhen (1.44%
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fy
A Series Of Vanguard International Equity
Index Funds (1.26%) ), JPMorgan Chase
Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for
Vanguard Total International Stock Index FU
a series of Vanguard Star Funds (1.24%),
Norges Bank (1.21%), Cheng-Chung, Yang
(0.88%), An-Min, Hsu (0.73%), and Emergir
Markets Core Equity Portfolio Of DFA

Investment Dimensions Group Inc. (0.67%).

Supervisor: The Company has set up an Audit Coramttt replace the supervisor.

S

nd

g

4. Disclosure of professional qualification of the etitors and independence of
directors:
Quialificatior Number of
positions as an
Professional qualification and : : Independent
experience Compliance of mdependenceDirector in other
public listed
Name companies
Chairman Dr. Chu-Liang, Cheng is currentlfDoes not meet any descriptighone.
Chu-Liang the chairman of the Company. |stated in Article 30 of the
Cheng Joined the Board on June 14, 20Company Act.

Prior to this, Dr. Cheng establish
Elite Advanced Laser Corporatio
in September 2000 and served g
the chairman with his leadership
business judgment, and industry|
knowledge. Before Elite Advancg
Laser Corporation, Dr. Cheng
worked as a researcher at AT&T|
Bell Lab in New Jersey, USA,

n
1S

D
o

director at Fiber Optic
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Qualification

Name

Professional qualification and
experience

Compliance of independeng

Number of
positions as an
Independent
Director in other
public listed
companies

€

Communication Company PCO,
and deputy general manager at
LITE-ON Technology. Dr. Cheng
holds a Ph.D. in Electrical
Engineering, Rutgers University,
USA

Vice Chairman
Wen-Hsing,
Huang

Wen-Hsing, Huang is currently tl

Teoes not meet any descriptig

vice chairman of the Company ajsthated in Article 30 of the

he joined the Board on June 23,
2015. Prior to this, Wen-Hsing,
Huang worked at Elite Advanceg
Laser Corporation as the preside
with his leadership, business
judgment, risk management and
industry knowledge. Before Elite
Advanced Laser Corporation, he
worked as the director at LITEN
Technology. Wen-Hsing, Huang
holds a bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering, Chung
Yuan Christian University.

Company Act.

2Nt

hone.

Director
Tay-Jen, Chen

Tay-Jen, Chen is currently a
director of the Company and she

Does not meet any descriptia
stated in Article 30 of the

joined the Board on June 19, 20Bompany Act.

Prior to this, Tay-Jen, Chen
worked at Consolidate Graphics
Inc., California, USA, and she
possesses business judgment.
Tay-Jen, Chen holds a bachelor
degree from Shih Chien
University.

hone.

Director
Wei-Chung, Pan

Wei-Chung, Pan is currently a
director of the Company and she
joined the Board on August 26,
2015. Prior to this, Wei-Chung,
Pan was the chairman of
SINO-INDO COMPANY LTD.,
and she possesses leadership a|
business judgment. Wei-Chung,
Pan holds a PhD in Psychology
from GSPP.

Does not meet any descriptia
stated in Article 30 of the
Company Act.

None.

Director
Elite Advanced

Laser

Tien-Tseng, Sung is currently a
director of the Company and he
joined the Board on August 2,
2021. Prior to this, Tie-Tseng,

Does not meet any descriptia
stated in Article 30 of the
Company Act.

hone.
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Qualification Number of
positions as an
Professional qualification and : : Independent
experience Compliance of mdependenceDirector in other
public listed
Name companies
Corporation Sung worked as the president in

Represatative of
juristic person:

Elite Advanced Laser Corporatign.
Before Elite Advanced Laser
Corporation, Tien-Tseng, Sung

Tien-Tseng, worked as the president in Sea &

Sung Land Integrated Corp., vice
president at CO-TECH
Development Corp. and the
assistant manager at GVC. He
possesses rich industry experience
and relevant knowledge.

Tien-Tseng, Sung holds a MBA
degree from Atlanta International
University.

Independent Shu, Yeh is currently a director ol. Not employed by the 1

Director the Company and he joined the Company or any of its
Board on June 19, 2018. Shu, Yeh affiliated companies.

Shu, Yeh taught at National Taiwan 2. Not a director, supervisof
University and was a professor of  of the Company or any of
the department of accounting. He its affiliated companies.
served as the CFO & SEVP of |3. Does not hold more than
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and 1% of the Company’s
possesses accounting and finangcial outstanding shares in
expertise. There is no his/her own name or under
circumstances specified in Article  the name of spouse,

30 of the Company Act. Shu, Yeh underage children, or any
holds a Ph.D. in accounting from other person; nor is any
UCLA. party listed herein one of
Independent Sen-Tai, Wen is currently a the ten largest natural |2
Director director of the Company and he person shareholders of the
) joined the Board on June 23, 2015. Company.
Sen-Tai, Wen 4.

Sen-Tai, Wen was the chairman
and CEO of Taiyi International
Investment Co., Ltd., and has
served as a director and
Remuneration Committee of ma
listed and emerging companies.
possesses business judgment, r
industry experience and is famili
with the international market.
There is no circumstances
specified in Article 30 of the

ar

Company Act. Sen-Tai, Wen holds

a MBA degree from Rutgers
University.

ny
ch

5.

A spouse, relative within
the second degree of
kinship, or lineal relative
within the third degree of
kinship, of a managerial
officer under (1) or any of
the persons stated in (2)
and (3).

Not a director, supervisor
or employee of an
institutional shareholder
directly holding more that
5% of the outstanding

—

shares issued by the
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Qualification Number of
Professional qualification and pﬁ]sgggreliggn?n
experience Compliance of mdependenceDirector in other
public listed
Name companies
Independent Wen Chen, Huang is currently a Company, or a director, |None.
Director director of the Company and he supervisor or employee of
joined the Board on June 19, 2018. an institutional sharehold
Wen Chen, Wen Chen, Huang was the who is among the top 5
Huang chairman of Heli Investment Co. shareholders, or a
Ltd., and has served as a directar representative of an
of many listed and emerging institutional shareholders
companies. Before that, he was the appointed as the director
vice president of the CID Group supervisor of the Company
Ltd. and senior manager of CDIB  according to Paragraph 1
& Partners Investment Holding or 2, Article 27 of
Corporation and assistant manager Company Act.
of China Development Financial|6. Not a director, supervisor
Holding Corp. He possesses or employee of a company
business judgment, rich industry| controlling over one half
experience and is familiar with the the Company director seq
international market. There is ng or voting shares under one
circumstances specified in Article  person.
30 of the Company Act. Wen |7. Not a director, supervisot,
Chen, Huang holds a MBA degree or employee of a company
from NCCU MBA Program. or institution whose
Independent Yuehdli, Lee is currently a direct chairperson and presidenNone.
Director of the Company and she joined the or equwalgnt role is same
_ Board on June 23, 2015. Prior tg person or Iits spouse.
Yueh-Li, Lee

this, Yueh-Li, Lee worked as the
vice president of finance at Chie
Telecom Inc.. Earlier, she worke
as the accounting section chief 3
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Sh
possesses accounting and finan
expertise and does not have any
the circumstances specified in
Article 30 of the Company Act.
Yueh-Li, Lee holds a bachelor’s
degree in Department of Busines
Administration, Tamkang
University

8.
f
d
1
e

cial
of

9.

A director, supervisor,
managerial officer, or
shareholder holding 5% ¢
more of the shares, of a
specified company or
institution that has a
financial or business
relationship with the
Company.

Not a professional or
owner, partner, director,
supervisor, managerial
officer or the spouse of
these roles of a sole
proprietorship, partnershi
company or institution tha
audits or provides related
business, legal, financial,
accounting services or
consultation with service

frees accumulating above

-

NT$500,000 over the la
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Qualification

Name

Number of
positions as an
Independent
Director in other
public listed
companies

Professional qualification and

. Compliance of independenade
experience

two years for the @mpany
or its affiliates; except for
members of the
Remuneration Committee,
public tender offer review
committee or special
committee for
merger/consolidation and
acquisition exercising
powers according to the
Securities and Exchange
Act or the Business
Mergers and Acquisitions
Act or related laws or
regulations.

10. No spouse or a relative
within the second degree
of kinship with other
directors.

11. Does not meet any
descriptions stated in
Article 30 of the Company
Act.

12. There is no government
agency or a juristic perso,
acts as a shareholder of the
Company elected
stipulated in Article 27 of

>

the Company Act.

5.

Board diversity and independence:

(1) Board diversity:

To strengthen corporate governance and promote déheelopment of the
composition and structure of the Board of Directtine composition of directors
should be adjusted according to Paragraph 2, Artkl of the Company’s
“Corporate Governance Principles”: Diversificatishould be considered in the
composition of Board of Directors, except those whove as company managers
should not exceed one-third of the number of dmesctDiversification policy
shall be formulated based on operation, businestelreand development needs
which should include but not limited to the followgi two major standards:
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A. Basic requirements and values: gender, age, nétioraand culture, etc.
Among them, the proportion of female directors stidne at least one-third
of the directors.

B. Professional knowledge and skills: A professionatkground (e.g., law,
accounting, industry, finance, marketing, and tebbgy), professional skills,
and industry experience.

The Company’s Board of Directors consists of 9 adoes, including 5 general

directors and 4 independent directors who have eiqterience and expertise in

finance, business and management.

In addition, the Company pays attention to gendprabty in the Board of
Directors. The goal is to have female directorabkeast (including) one-third of
the directors. Currently, there are 9 directorsluding 3 female directors with the
ratio of one-third.
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The implementation of the Board diversity policyasfollows:

Diversity Core Item

Director Basic composition Professional knowledge/skills Expertise
Tenure of Independent .
Current Age . . Leadership An
. Director Business Knowledge . . . . .
) ) positions and Director | Accounting | Business | internationa
Nationality | Gender . 51to| 61 | 71 | Under | 3to9 | More | managemen o of the . . .
in the - decision . experience| and finance| operation | market
Name 60 to to | 3years| years| than9 t ability ) industry .
Company making perspective
70 | 80 years
Chu-Liang, Republic of | Male v v v v v v v
Cheng China
Wen-Hsing, Republic of | Male v v v v v v v v
Huang China
Tay-Jen, Chen Republic of Female v v v v v
China
Wei-Chung, Republic of | Female v v v v v v
) Pan China
Director
Elite Advanced
Laser
Corporation
Representative | Republic of
Male v v v v v v v
of juristic China
person:
Tien-Tseng,
Sung
Shu, Yeh Republic of| Male v v v v 4 v v v
China
Sen-Tai, Wen Republic of Male v 4 v v v v v v v
Independent China
Director Wen Chen, Republic of | Male v v v v v v v v
Huang China
Yueh-Li, Lee Republic of| Female v 4 4 v v v v
China
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Management objectives and achievement of the Boawelsity Policy:

Management objectives Implementation Description
Directors who concurrently Achieved In 2022, the proportion
serve as company managers of directors who also
should not exceed one-third of serve as company

the total directors managers is 11%.

The target for the ratio of femaleAchieved In 2022, the ratio of
directors is above (including) female directors is 33%.
one-third

The term of office of Achieved All the 3rd independent

directors have not

independent directors does not exceeded 3 terms.

exceed 3 terms
Diversified professional Achieved The Board of Directors
possesses professional
abilities, independence
and gender-diversity.

background

(2) Independence of board of directors:

The Company has 1 director with employee statusplatding for 11%; 4
independent directors, accounting for 44%. Except €hairman Chu-Liang,
Cheng and Director Tay-Jen, Chen who are spousesest of the directors and
independent directors are not spouses or relatétinwihe second degree of
kinship. And after reviewing the list of sharehakland the employee roster, and
according to the statement of the independent tirecno directors, independent
directors, spouse, or relatives within the secoegree (held under the name of
another person) holds the shares of the CompareyBblard has not received any
remuneration for providing business, legal, finahciaccounting, and other
services to the Company or its affiliates in thetpgevo years.

6. Succession plan and operation of directors:

(1) The director succession plan considers the diyersihd directors who
concurrently serve as managers for the Company sbiaéxceed one-third of the
total directors. It also considers gender equalityl the directors’ knowledge,
skills, and accomplishments to perform the duties.

(2) The Company continues to perform director succesftan, and builds a
database of director candidates according to thesmg standards:

A. Integrity, responsibility, innovation and decisioraking skills in line with
the Company’s core values and the ability to cbaote to the professional
knowledge and capabilities of the Company’s managem

B. Equipped with industry experience relevant to tleenpany’s business.
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The member shall provide the Company an effectia diverse Board of
Directors that meets the needs of the Company.

The nomination and selection process of directar iadependent director
candidates must comply with the qualification aetevant regulations to
ensure that when there is a vacancy or an inciedke number of directors,
suitable new directors can be effectively selected.
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(I

President, Vice President, Assistant General Manage the heads of all the Company’s Divisions Brahch units

Names; gender; nationality; principal work expeceand academic qualifications; date on which cdipesition was assumed; term of

contract; and shares held by them and their sppakgdren of minor age, and held through nominees
April 1, 2023; Unit: thousand shares; %

. Spouse or relative
Shareholdings of .
. Shares held in the of second degree
Shareholding | spouse and underage )
. names of others Current positions in the | closer acting as
] o On-boarg children ] ] ] Remar}
Title Nationalityf Name Gender dat Major career (academic) achievements Company and other managers (Note)
ate ote
Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of companies
QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin Title[NameRelatio
(%) (%) (%)
BA., Electrical Engineering, Chung Yuavice Chairman of the
. . Christian University, Taiwan Company
Republic [Wen-Hsing, July 1, . . .
CSO . Male 264 0.20 861 0.67 — — Foreshot Industrial Corporation/ DeputyElite Advanced Laser - - - -
of China |Huang 2021 ) )
General Manager Corporation/ Director
LITE-ON Technology/ Director
Industrial Engineering, Oriental Institute
of Technology GEM Electronics (Shanghal)
) Republic [Yen-Chiang, July 1, Elite Advanced Laser Corporation/ Co., Ltd./ Director
President . Male 206 0.16 298 0.23 - — . . . . . - - - -
of China {Tang 2015 Engineering Assistant General ManageGEM Electronics (Hefei) Cq
LITE-ON Technology/ Director of Wuxi|Ltd./ Director
Plant
Master, Department of Semiconductor
Physicsand Devices, Shanghai Institute|
GEM
. . Metallurgy
Electronics Mainland o July 1, . .
o ) \Wei-Bing, Chuy Male — — — — — — GEM (Shanghai) Co., Ltd./ President - - - - -
(Shanghai)/ Vic| China 2015
) Agape Package Manuf. Ltd.
President
(Nasdaqg: AOSL/ Vice President of
Operations and Engineering
Business ) ) Master, Industrial Engineering, National
. Republic |Chun-Ching, July 18, ) . . ) )
Integration . Male 10 0.01 3 — — — Kaohsiung University of Applied Scienges - - - - -
of China Wu 2021 . .
Department/ Kaohsiung Optd=lectronics Inc.(formerl
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Shareholdings of

Shares held in the

Spouse or relative

of second degree

Shareholding | spouse and underage )
. names of others Current positions in the | closer acting as
] S On-boarg children ) ) ] Remarh
Title Nationalityf Name Gender dat Major career (academic) achievements Company and other managers (Note)
ate ote
Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of companies
QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin Title|NameRelation
(%) (%) (%)
Assistant KAOHSIUNG HITACHI
General ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.)/ Equipment
Manager Section Manager
Material . .
Master of Fudan University
Management . . .
. IBM/ Manufacturing engineering manager
Department/ Mainland ) July 1, ) )
) ) Heng-Yu, Liu | Male — — — — — — Shanghai XINJIN Semiconductor - - - - -
Assistant China 2015 ) )
Manufacturing Co. Ltd./ Senior manager
General . . ]
of semiconductor packaging outsourcing
Manager
Bachelor of Engineering in Electronic Materigls
and Components, Material Science and
GEM
. Engineering, ShanghaiTech University
Electronics
. SHANGHAI VACUUM ELECTRON
(Hefei) / .
. Mainland . February DEVICES CO., LTD./ Engineer of Electron
Operations ) \Wei, Zhuang | Male 18 0.01 — — — — - - - - -
) China 1, 2017 Tube No. 2 Factory
Assistant
Shanghai Ruixi Turbine/ Factory engineer
General
GEM Electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd./ Manager
Manager
Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power Device (Hefej)
Co., Ltd./ Vice President
Department of Accounting, Chinese
Head-Finance & Republic| = July 15, Culture University
) ~ Jui-Ping ,Wan|Femalg 89 0.07 - - - - ) . ) - - - - -
Accounting of China 2016 Deloitte & Touche/ Audit assistant
manager
Industrial Engineering, School of
. Environmental and Biological
) | Mainland . . July 1, . . . ) .
Audit Supervisar ) Sen-Xing, Lai| Male — — — — — — Engineering, Jiangsu University of - - - - -
China 2015
Technology
Wistron InfoComm Technology Service
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. Spouse or relative
Shareholdings of

) Shares held in the of second degree
Shareholding | spouse and underage )

. names of others Current positions in the | closer acting as
] S On-boarg children ) ) ] Remarh
Title Nationalityf Name Gender dat Major career (academic) achievements Company and other managers (Note)

ate ote
Ratio of Ratio of Ratio of companies
QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin/QuantityShareholdin Title|NameRelation
(%) (%) (%)

(Kunshan) Co., Ltd./ SMT IT Team leadler
GEM Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd./ |[E

engineer

Note 1: Where the chairperson of the Board of Diecand the president or person of an equivalest (the highest level manager) of the Companytteesame person, spouses,
or relatives within the first degree of kinship, explanation shall be given of the reason for,aeableness, necessity thereof, and the measurptedda response thereto:

None.
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[ll. Remuneration payment to Directors, Supervisor,i@eas, and Vice President in the most recent year

(M Remuneration for directors and independent director
December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand; %
Remuneration to Directors Remuneration as an employee
The sum of A, B, C ang The sumof A, B, C, D, H
Salaries, bonuses, Remuneratiory
Directors Fees for services D as a percentage of F and G as a percentage
Remuneration (A) Pension (B) special allowances et¢. Pension (F) Employee compensation (G) received from
compensation (C) rendered (D) after-tax profit of after-tax net profit
(E) the invested
§ All All All All All All All All companies All companies
Title Name
companies companies companies companies companies companies companies shown in the companies| other than thg
The Company o
The |showninthd The [showninthd The showninthg The |[showninthgd The showninthg The |[showninthg The |shown inthg consolidated The shown in the Subsidiaries ar]
Company| consolidated Company consolidateq Company| consolidated Company consolidateq Company| consolidateq Company consolidateq Company consolidated financial report | Company| consolidated ~the parent
financial financial financial financial financial financial financial Cash | Stock| Cash | Stock financial company
report report report report report report report amount|amount amount]amoun report
Chu-Liang, 26,750 [ 26,750 26,750 [ 26,750
Chairman 7,200 7,200 - - 19,500| 19,500 50 50 - - - - - - - - None
Cheng 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88%
Vice Wen-Hsing,
Chairman | Huang
Director Tay-Jen, Che
Wei-Chung,
Director
Pan
Elite Advanced
19,500 | 19,500 22,500 | 24,408
Laser 4,800 4,800 - - 14,500 14,500 200 200 - 1,800 - 108 3,000 - 3,000 - None
2.10% 2.10% 2.42% 2.62%
Corporation
Representative
Director
of juristic
person:
Tien-Tseng,
Sung
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Remuneration to Directors Remuneration as an employee
The sum of A, B, C ang The sumof A, B, C, D, H
Salaries, bonuses, Remuneratiory
Directors Fees for services D as a percentage of F and G as a percentage
Remuneration (A) Pension (B) special allowances et¢. Pension (F) Employee compensation (G) received from
compensation (C) rendered (D) after-tax profit of after-tax net profit
(E) the invested
. All All All All All All All All companies All companies
Title Name
companies companies companies companies companies companies companies shown in the companies | other than thg
The Company o
The |showninthd The [showninthd The showninthg The |[showninthg The showninthg The |[showninthg The |shown in thg consolidated The shown in the subsidiaries ar}
Company| consolidated Company consolidateq Company| consolidated Company consolidateq Company| consolidateq Company| consolidateq Company consolidated financial report | Company| consolidated the parent
financial financial financial financial financial financial financial Cash | Stock| Cash | Stock financial company
report report report report report report report amount|amoun{ amount|amoun report
Independer]
) Sen-Tai, Wen
Director
Independer]
) Yueh-Li, Lee
Director 6,190 6,190 6,190 6,190
6,000 6,000 - - - - 190 190 - - - - - - - - None
Independer] 0.67% 0.67% 0.67% 0.67%
Shu, Yeh
Director
IndependerfWen Chen,
Director Huang

* The remuneration policy, system, standard anactire of independent directors, and the linkaghéaemuneration amount according to the respditisib, risks, time, and other
factors:

According to Article 30.2 of the Articles of Assation, directors’ remuneration shall be recommeruethe Remuneration Committee and submitted tdBtheard of Directors for

approval, and shall be paid in consideration ofdinector’s service scope, value and the domesiicfareign payment level. Independent directorgirecfixed remuneration and
board meeting attendance fees this year.

* QOther than those disposed in the Table aboveynemnation received by directors in the most regeat for services provided to a company as mentigm¢he financial statement

(e.g. serving as a consultant to all non-emplopédise parent company/companies in the financigbréreinvested enterprises, etc.): None.
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Unit: NT$ thousand; %

Table of salaries scale

Name of director

Remunerations to individual directors in respechixacket Total of the aforementioned 4 items (A+B+C+D) Taththe aforementioned 7 items (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)
along the salaries scale All companies shown in the All companies shown in the consolidd
The Company The Company
consolidated financial report financial report

< NT$1,000,000 - - - -

Elite Advanced Laser Corporation |Elite Advanced Laser Corporation |Elite Advanced Laser Corporation |Elite Advanced Laser Corporation
Representative of juristic person: Representative of juristic person: Representative of juristic person: Representative of juristic person:
Tien-Tseng, Sung Tien-Tseng, Sung Tien-Tseng, Sung Tien-Tseng, Sung

NT$1,000,000 - NT$2,000,000 (exclusive)
Tay-Jen, Chen; Wei-Chung, Pan; Tay-Jen, Chen; Wei-Chung, Pan; Tay-Jen, Chen; Wei-Chung, Pan; |Tay-Jen, Chen; Wei-Chung, Pan;

Sen-Tai, Wen; Yueh-Li, Lee; Shu, Yel8en-Tai, Wen; Yueh-Li, Lee; Shu, Yel8en-Tai, Wen; Yueli, Lee; Shu, YehSen-Tai, Wen; Yueh-Li, Lee; Shu, Yel;

Wen Chen, Huang Wen Chen, Huang Wen Chen, Huang Wen Chen, Huang
NT$2,000,000 - NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) - - - -
NT$3,500,000 - NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) - - - -
NT$5,000,000 - NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) - - - -
NT$10,000,000 - NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) Wen-Hskigang Wen-Hsing, Huang - -
NT$15,000,000 - NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) Chu-LiaBbeng Chu-Liang, Cheng Wen-Hsing, Huang; Chuj&hend Wen-Hsing, Huang; Chu-Liang, Chemg
NT$30,000,000 - NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) - - - -
NT$50,000,000 - NT$100,000,000 (exclusive)
> NT$100,000,000 - - - -
Total 9 people 9 people 9 people 9 people

* The basis of remuneration disclosed above isdiffit to the basis required by the income tax femce the above table has been prepared solelyféfomation disclosure, and

not for tax purposes.
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(1)) Remuneration of supervisor

Not Applicable. (The Company has set up an Audiin@uttee to replace the supervisor).

(1) President’s and Vice Presidents’ remuneration

December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand; %

The sum of A, B, C and
Bonuses and allowancgs Remuneration
Salary (A) Pension (B) Employee compensation (D) D as a percentage of
etc. (C) ] received from
after-tax profit
. the invested
All All All All companies All ]
) ) companies
Title Name companies companies companies shown in the companies
The Company . other than the
The shown inthe| The shown inthe| The shown in the consolidated The shown in the .
o subsidiaries
Company| consolidated] Company| consolidated] Company| consolidated financial report | Company| consolidated
and the parent
financial financial financial Cash | Stock Cash Stock financial
company
report report report amount| amount| amount| amount report
csO Wen-Hsing,
Huang
President _\Fzgécmang,
GEM - 7,660 - 216 - - 5,800 - 6,868 - ggggo 1145;21/3 None
Electronics | /. 0. ' '
(Shanghai)/ 9
. Chu
Vice
President
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Table of salaries scale

Names of the Presidents and the Vice Presidents
The brackets of remunerations to all Presidepts

] ] All companies shown in the
and Vice Presidents of the Company The Company

financial report
< NT$1,000,000 Wei-Bing, Chu -

NT$1,000,000 - NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) - -

_ Wen-Hsing, Huang,
NT$2,000,000 - NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) -

Yen-Chiang, Tang

. Wei-Bing, Chu,
NT$3,500,000 - NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) - .
Wen-Hsing, Huang
NT$5,000,000 - NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) - Yen-@hgialang
NT$10,000,000 - NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) - -
NT$15,000,000 - NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) - -
NT$30,000,000 - NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) - -
NT$50,000,000 - NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) - -

> NT$100,000,000 - -

Total 3 people 3 people

* The basis of remuneration disclosed above isdifiit to the basis required by the income tax laamce the above
table has been prepared solely for informationldgge, and not for tax purposes.

Name of the managers received remuneration andish@ution of remuneration

December 31, 2022, Unit: NT$ thousand

Cash A tage of ngt
Title Name Stock amoupt ash amouf Total sa Percen ageorn
(Note) profit after tax (%)
csoO Wen-Hsing,
Huang
Yen-Chi
President en-Chiang,
Tang
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd./ Vice Wei-Bing, Chu
President
Material Management
Managern Department/ Assistant | Heng-Yu, Liu - 10,096 10,096 1.09

General Manager
GEM Electronics (Hefei)
Operations Assistant | Wei, Zhuang
General Manager

Business Integration
Department/ Assistant [Chun-Ching, W
General Manager

Accounting manager Jui-Ping ,Wang

Note 1: This distribution is an estimate.
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(IV)  Separately compare and describe total remuneraésnpercentage of reports or
individual financial reports net income stated e tparent company only financial
reports or individual financial reports, as paid thys company and by each other
company included in the individual or consolidatedncial statements during the past
2 fiscal years to directors, supervisors, presidant vice president, and analyze and
describe remuneration policies, standards, andgagesk the procedure for determining
remuneration, and its linkage to operating perfaroesand future risk exposure:

The remuneration as a percentage net profit gfter
tax Increase (decrease) ratip
2021 2022
_ All .
, All companies _ All companies
Title _ companies _
shown in the , shown in the
The _ The |[showninth¢ The _
consolidated ) consolidated
Company i Company| consolidated Company i i
financial , , financial
financial
statements statements
statements
Director 6.04 6.04 5.65 5.65 (0.39) (0.39)
Presidents and the
: _ 0.86 2.04 0.62 1.58 (0.24) (0.46)
Vice Presidents

1. Analysis of changes in the proportion of after-tex profit in the last two years:

(1) The decrease in the director compensation as amteige of net income is due
to the fact that the Company continued to makeitgrof the core business; as
such, the increase in the net income for 2022 ghéri than that in adjusted
payments and director remuneration.

(2) The decrease in the president and the vice prdsidempensation as a
percentage of netincome is due to the fact thaCtbrapany continued to make
profits in the core business; as such, the incraatige net income for 2022 is
higher than that in adjusted payments and presidadtthe vice president

compensation.

2. The policies, standards, and packages for diregioesident, vice president
remuneration, the procedures for determining remaiime and its linkage to
business performance

(1) Director

A. During the term of office, the chairman and vicedciman may receive

their remuneration according to Article 30.1 of #rticles of Association
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@)

due to business needs. The remuneration amouttoghptoposed by the
Remuneration Committee and submitted to the Bodr®irectors for
resolution, and shall take into account their sErvscope, value to the
Company and the standard remuneration of domestidaeign industry
companies.

B. The independent directors of the Company receredfremuneration. In
addition, directors receive attendance fees foh éaard meeting.

C. The director's compensation is in accordance witticke 34.1 of the
Articles of Association. If there is any profit the year, the director’s
compensation shall be distributed below 3% (inekesiof the current
year’s profit. The Company has set up a Remuneraiommittee, with
all independent directors serving as members. ThanuReration
Committee is responsible for formulating and redulaeviewing the
policies, systems, standards and structures ofctdn® performance
evaluation and remuneration, and regularly assgsaimd determining
directors’ remuneration with reference to the indus standards.

In summary, the amount of remuneration for direxiar2022 is equivalent to

that in 2021, and the percentage to the after-&profit of the Company and

all companies in the consolidated statements isvdmt 5% and 7%.

According to the business performance, it is edamnato the percentage of

2021, and there should be no overestimation ofpthgnent compared to the

industry standard. There is also no impact to tom@any’s final performance,

and no need for risk evaluation.

Presidents and the Vice Presidents

The remuneration of the president and vice presidenudes salary, bonus

and employee compensation. The salary is baseh@rpdsition held, the

responsibility and the contribution to the Compaand it is negotiated with
reference to the industry standard. Bonuses andoge® compensation are
highly linked to performance evaluation, includithg achievement rate of the

Company’s revenue and after-tax net profit, and thérethere are major

deficiencies in the department’s compliance wittvdaand regulations and

internal control operations. They are distributeccarding to principles
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and epgroy the Board of

Directors according to the operating performance.
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I\VV. Corporate governance
() Facts about performance by the board of directors:

1. The Board of Directors convened 5 meetings (A)d@22and the participation of the
directors are shown below:

Percentage of
Actual Proxy

Title Name actual attendance Remark
attendance (B) Attendance
(%) [B/A] (Note)

Chairman | Chu-Liang, Cheng 5 0 100%
Vi :
|.ce Wen-Hsing, Huang 5 0 100%
Chairman
Director Tay-Jen, Chen 5 0 100%
Director Wei-Chung, Pan 5 0 100%

Elite Advanced
Laser Corporation
Director | Representative of 5 0 100%
juristic person:
Tien-Tseng, Sung

[ t

ndependen Shu, Yeh 5 0 100%
Director

[ | .

nd(?penden Sen-Tai, Wen 5 0 100%
Director

[ t

nd(?penden Wen Chen, Huang 5 0 100%
Director

Ind dent )

" ,epen en Yueh-Li, Lee 4 1 80%
Director

Note: The actual attendance rate (%) is calculbésgd on the number of Board of Directors

meetings and the number of actual attendance dthentenure.

2. Other required information.

(1) For the matters listed in Article 14-3 of the Seétes and Exchange Act and
other resolutions of the Board of Directors thatehbeen objected or reserved
by independent directors and have records or wrifatements, the date,
period, content of the discussion, opinions ofiradlependent directors and the
Company’s handling of Board of Directors’ opinion:

Proposals and resolution results of matters ligtedArticle 14-3 of the

Securities and Exchange Act:
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The
Independent Company’s
. directors’ Results of Audit .
Board meeting : . biecti C ittee handling of
dates and periods Discussion objections, ommr the Audit
reservations or|  resolutions o
i Committee’s
major proposalsg o
opinion
March 22, 2022 | 1. 2021 internal control None. The issue was | Not
5th meeting of the policies effectiveness resolved by all | Applicable
5th Board of evaluation and declaration present directors
Directors of internal control policies in full.
2. Proposal to the amendment
of the “Procedures for
Acquisition and Disposal of
Assets”
3. Distribution proposal for
the 2021 manager
compensation.
4. Distribution Proposal for
the 2021 director
compensation.
5. Proposal for managers’
salary adjustment.
November 9, 2022 1. Formulate the 2023 internalNone. The issue was | Not
8th meeting of the audit plan of the Company resolved by all | Applicable
5th Board of and its subsidiaries. present directors
Directors 2. CPA independence in full.
assessment and 2023 CPA
remuneration
recommendation.
December 19, Proposal for managers’ the None. The issue was | Not
2022 overall salary adjustment. resolved by all | Applicable
9th meeting of the present directors
5th Board of in full.
Directors

(2) Other than the aforementioned issues, the issuectaloj by an independent

director or where an independent director maingigualified opinion with

record or documented declaration in a decisionlvedoby the Board of

Directors: None.

(3) With respect to the avoidance of conflicting instragendas, describe the

names of directors, details of the relevant agendeasons for avoiding

conflicting interest, and the voting decisions:

Board meeting dates and periods

Discussion

Reasons to act on recusal due to confl
of interest and participation in voting

cts

March 22, 2022

5th meeting of the 5th Board of

Directors

Committee]

Proposal 12: [Proposal
from Remuneration

Proposal for the 2021

Vice Chairman Wen-Hsing, Huang and
Director Tien-Tseng, Sung recused

according to law and did not participate
in the discussion and resolution of the

Manager's Remuneration
Distribution.

proposal. The rest of the present direct
approved without objection.

DI'S

Proposal 13: [Proposal

Chairman Chu-Liang, Chencg V
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Board meeting dates and perio

s Discussion

Reasons to act on recusal due to confl
of interest and participation in voting

cts

from Remuneration
Committee]

Proposal for the 2021
Directors’ Remuneration
Distribution.

Chairman Wen-Hsing, Huang, Director
Tien-Tseng, Sung (representative of a
juristic person of Elite Advanced Laser
Corporation), Director Wei-Chung, Pan
and Director Tay-Jen, Chen recused
according to law and did not participate
in the discussion and resolution of the
proposal. The rest of the present direct
approved without objection.

DI'S

Proposal 14: [Proposal
from Remuneration
Committee]

Proposal for managers’
salary adjustment.

Vice Chairman Wen-Hsing, Huang
recused according to law and did not
participate in the discussion and
resolution of the proposal. The rest of tk
present directors approved without

ne

objection.

(4) The cycle, duration, scope, method and contentazfrd® self-evaluations (or

peer-evaluation) performed:

The implementation of the Board of Directors evatra

The Company and the Board of Directors approvededhkelution to formulate

the “Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board afeBtors” on January 16,

2020. The performance evaluation of the Board ofe@ors should be

performed at least once every three years by aerredt professional

independent organization or a team of external gpand scholars. The

internal and external performance evaluation respiitthe Board of Directors

shall be completed before the end of the first gmasf the year following the

implementation year.

A.

Evaluation cycle: internal self-evaluation is cootdl once a year, and an

external professional independent organizationuataln is conducted at

least once every three years.

B. Evaluation period: evaluate the performance of Board of Directors
from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

Board of

Directors,

Remuneration Committee.

individual

Evaluation scope: including the performance evanabtf the overall

director, Audit Contire and

Evaluation methods: questionnaires for performamsmluation are

applied to self-evaluation of the Board of Direc¢tself-evaluation of
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board members and peer evaluation, and self-evatuadf Audit

Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Evaluation content:

Subjects Evaluation
1. Level of participation in the Company’s
operations.
2. Improvement of board’s/functional
Board of o - :
Directors commlttees. decision qL'Jallty. _
3. Board/functional committee composition.
4. Election and ongoing education of directors.
5. Internal Control
1. Director’'s awareness toward the Company’s
goals and missions.
2. Director’'s awareness to duties.
3. Level of participation in the Company’s
Board members operations.
(self or peers) | 4. Management and communication of internal
relations.
5. Professionalism and ongoing education of
directors.
6. Internal Control
1. Level of participation in the Company’s
operations.
2. Responsibilities and duties of Audit
Committee.
Audit Committee| 3. Improve the decision-making quality of Audit
Committee.
4. Composition of Audit Committee and selectic
of members.
5. Internal Control
1. Level of participation in the Company’s
operations.
2. Responsibilities and duties of Remuneration
Remuneration Committee.
Committee 3. Improve the decision-making quality of
Remuneration Committee.
4. Composition of Remuneration Committee an

selection of members.

d
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2022 Performance evaluation of the Board of Dinecto
The performance evaluation of the Board of Directand functional
committees in 2022 was completed on December 192,28nd was

reported to the Board of Directors on February2ZZ23.

Subjects

Assessment Result

Board of
Directors

The average attendance rate of directors in the 2@3 97% and 7
directors attended the 2022 annual shareholdersnge&he directors
also regularly communicate with the CPA and augjitesvisor.
All directors fully understand the Company’s cosdues and the
characteristics and risks of the industry in whiokh Company
operates, and hold board meetings at least onoaréeqg

The Board of Directors has established sufficiadependent directors
which complies with relevant regulations, and tbhenposition of the
Board of Directors is appropriate and has the digeerequired for the
decision-making process.

The Company has established a rigorous and tragrsipdirector
selection process, and the directors receive apptegraining hours
each year.

The directors understand and supervise the Compatgounting
system, financial performance and financial rep@uslit reports and
the follow ups.

Board member
(self or peer)

The directors understand the Company’s core vandghe
characteristics and risks of the industry in whioh Company
operates.

The directors have fully understood the statutdoygations of the
directors, and have complied with the obligatiorcoffidentiality
with respect to the Company’s internal informataditained during
the terms of directors.

The attendance rate for individual directors atrdaoaeeting was 80%,
and the directors have made specific suggestioriseoproposals.
The interaction between the directors and the mamagt team is
good with sufficient communication with other ditexs and CPA.
The directors have the expertise required for tii@ementation of the
Board of Directors’ decisions, and receive appgriraining hours
each year.

The directors understand and supervise the Compatgounting
system, financial performance and financial rep@uslit reports and
the follow ups.

Audit Committee

The average attendance rate of members of the Qaaitmittee in
2022 was 93%, and the Audit Committee held meetidsast once a
quarter.

The Audit Committee communicates with the CPA agrgular basis
and regularly evaluates the independence and cemgebf the CPA.
The meeting minutes properly recorded the discassimtent, and the
resolutions of the Audit Committee meetings aréofeéd up properly
The members of the Audit Committee are appropyatemposed ang
possess the expertise required for the decisionnggkocess while
maintaining their independence.

The Audit Committee understands and supervise€tmepany’s
accounting system, financial performance and firmeports, audit
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Subjects

Assessment Result

reports and the follow ups.

Remuneration
Committee

1. The average attendance rate of members of the Reration
Committee in 2022 was 100%, and the Remunerationriitiee held
general meetings.

2. The Remuneration Committee can timely, professlgraald
objectively put forward suggestions and submit thertihe Board of
Directors for discussion and decision-making.

3. The meeting minutes of the Remuneration Committepeyly
recorded the discussion content, and the resokitbthe
Remuneration Committee meetings are followed upqnly.

4. The members of the Remuneration Committee are gyopemposed
and possess the expertise required for the deemsaking process
while maintaining their independence.

On August 3, 2022, the Company entrusted the TaivZmporate

Governance Association, an external organizatmrconduct an evaluation

of the effectiveness of the Board of Directorstfue period from December

1, 2021 to November 30, 2022. CGA appointed fowal@ation experts to

evaluate the effectiveness of the Board of Directbrough questionnaires

and interviews on the composition, authorizationupesvision,

communication, and self-discipline, internal cohtrpolicies, risk

management and other aspects and indicators. C@Ahanexperts do not
have any business relationship with the Companyasadndependent. An
evaluation report was submitted on January 17, 268 the Company
reported the results to the Board of Directors ebrkary 23, 2023, with
request on improvements. The CGA’s comments, stiggss and the

Company’s planned improvement plan are as follows:

Comments:

(a) The Chairman attaches great importance to the gsimiealism and
talents of the Board of Directors where the membars all
professionals with extensive experience in opemaéind management.
The Board of Directors has four independent dinsctevhich is above
than what is required by regulations, and there three female
directors. The Board of Directors is professionallependent and
gender-diverse.

(b) The Chairman respects the opinions of the directossnmunicates
thoroughly with the directors with solid mutual 4tuThus, the meeting

culture of the Board of Directors is both dynanmc @pen.
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(€)

The four independent directors are all professignglalified and
responsible for their duties to fully assist theaBb of Directors on

guidance and supervision.

Suggestion:

(a) Strategic guidance is one of the important funcioh the Board of

Directors and it is recommended that the Compamgngmg all

directors and the management teams to participatestiategic
discussion during annual general meetings or abceasions to help
the board members to understand the Company’s topestatus and
industry information and strengthen the respongybdf the Board of

Directors to guide and supervise the Company’segradevelopment.

(b) The whistleblower system focuses on direct comnaiitino channels

(€)

with independent directors and it is recommended the Company
establishing a reporting mailbox that can be siamdbusly received by
independent directors (or the Audit Committee) uaHer strengthen
the mechanism.

In view of the development trend of corporate goaece and
sustainable development, and to strengthen thectef@ess of
corporate governance evaluation by the competetitodties, it is

recommended that the Company refer to the Corp@ateernance 3.0
and the items of corporate governance evaluatiosetamprovement
goals for strengthening corporate governance amdmote the ESG

concept and corporate governance culture.

The performance evaluation methods and resulteeBbard of Directors

and functional committees have been disclosed ®@Ctmpany’s website.

Planned improvement plan:

(@)

(b)

The Company will, depending on the needs, arrangealf directors
and the management teams to participate in stcatkggussion to help
the board members to understand the Company’s toperstatus and
industry information and strengthen the respongyodf the Board of
Directors to guide and supervise the Company’sesiradevelopment.
The whistleblower system focuses on direct comnatitio channels
with independent directors, and it is planned ttaldsh a reporting
email (audit_committee@gemservices.com) to furtsteengthen the
mechanism.

-71 -



The Company plans to refer to the Corporate Govema.0 and the
items of corporate governance evaluation to setongment goals for
strengthening corporate governance and to pronieteESG concept
and corporate governance culture.

(5) Targets for strengthening of the functions of tleard during the current and
immediately preceding fiscal years (such as settipgan audit committee,
improving information transparency):

A. Establishment of independent directors:
Since 2015, the Company has set up at least 3 emdept directors to
strengthen the functions of the Board of Directamd improve corporate
governance.

B. Establishment of the remuneration committee:
Since 2015, the Company has set up a Remuneratoonniiitee to
evaluate the Company’s directors and managers’ menation policy and
system and make recommendations to the Board etoirs.

C. Improve information transparency:
Since 2015, the Company has announced the finarepalrt after the
financial report is approved by the Board of Dioest so that financial
and business information related to shareholdeysity can be disclosed
in the most timely manner. This greatly improvece tinformation
transparency.

D. The selection of directors adopts the nominatiostesy with the
single-vote cumulative election method to sele@ thost professional

board members through fair, just and open selegtiooedures.
(1 The operation of the audit committee:

The Audit Committee is composed of 4 independeneictibrs and its purpose is to assist
the Board of Directors to perform its supervision the Company’s quality and
integrity in the implementation of accounting, aindj, financial reporting processes

and financial management.

1. Professional qualifications and experience of acolihmittee members
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Audit committee
members

Professional qualification and experience

Independent
Director
Shu, Yeh

Shu, Yeh is currently a director of the Company hagoined the
Board on June 19, 2018. Shu, Yeh taught at Natida&an
University and was a professor of the departmemicobunting. H¢
served as the CFO & SEVP of Chunghwa Telecom QGd.,dnd
possesses accounting and financial expertise. Thae
circumstances specified in Article 30 of the CompAat.

Shu, Yeh holds a Ph.D. in accounting from UCLA.

1”4

Independent
Director
Sen-Tai, Wen

Sen-Tai, Wen is currently a director of the Compang he joined
the Board on June 23, 2015. Sen-Tai, Wen was thiencAn and
CEO of Talyi International Investment Co., Ltd.ddmas served as
a director and Remuneration Committee of manydisted
emerging companies. He possesses business judgrknt,
industry experience and is familiar with the inegranal market.
There is no circumstances specified in Article 8€he Company
Act. Sen-Tai, Wen holds a MBA degree from Rutgensvéersity.

Independent
Director
Wen Chen, Huang

Wen Chen, Huang is currently a director of the Canypand he
joined the Board on June 19, 2018. Wen Chen, Huasgthe
chairman of Heli Investment Co., Ltd., and has séras a directof
of many listed and emerging companies. Before tiatyas the
vice president of the CID Group Ltd. and senior ager of CDIB
& Partners Investment Holding Corporation and @asstsnanager
of China Development Financial Holding Corp. Hegesses
business judgment, rich industry experience aransliar with the
international market. There is no circumstancesifipd in Article
30 of the Company Act. Wen Chen, Huang holds a MB§ree
from NCCU MBA Program.

Independent
Director
Yueh-Li, Lee

Yueh-Li, Lee is currently a director of the Compamgd she joined
the Board on June 23, 2015. Prior to this, Yueh-ee worked as
the vice president of finance at Chief Telecom.I&arlier, she

worked as the accounting section chief at Chungheleacom Co.,
Ltd. She possesses accounting and financial espatid does not
have any of the circumstances specified in Art8eof the
Company Act. Yueh-Li, Lee holds a bachelor’s degnee

Department of Business Administration, Tamkang @rsity

-73 -



2. The Audit Committee convened 4 meetings (A) in 2888 the participation of the
independent director are shown below:

Actual Proxy Actual

Title Name | attendance attendance (%) Remark
attendancs

(B) (B/A) (Note)
Independen
Director | Shu, Yeh 4 0 100%
(Convener)
Independen .
Director S%{}é}?"" 4 0 100%
(member)
Independen
Director Wﬁ%gngen 4 0 100%
(member)
Independen _
Director Yufehél"’ 3 1 75%
(member)

Note 1: The actual attendance rate (%) is caladlbesed on the number of Audit

Committee meetings and the number of actual atteredduring the tenure.

3. Audit Committee work focus:

The 2022 meeting items for the Audit Committeeasdollows:

Dates and periods of the

Audit Committee Discussion
meetings
March 22, 2022 1. Proposal for 2021 annual consolidated businesstiegmsolidated
4th meeting of the 3rd financial report.

Proposal for 2021 distribution of cash dividend.

Proposal for 2021 earnings distribution.

2021 internal control policies effectiveness evatmand
declaration of internal control policies.

5. Proposal for the amendment of the “Procedures tmusition and
Disposal of Assets”.

Audit Committee

hwn

May 11, 2022 : . . .

5th meeting of the 3rd Proposal for the Consolidated Financial ReporttierFirst quarter of
. ) 2022.

Audit Committee

August 10, 2022

6th meeting of the 3rd Proposal for the Consolidated Financial ReporttierSecond quarter of

Audit Committee 2022.

November 9, 2022 1. Proposal for the Consolidated Financial ReporttierThird quarter
7th meeting of the 3rd of 2022.

Audit Committee 2. CPA independence assessment and remuneration resuatation.
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4.  Other required information.

(1) For matters listed in Article 14-5 of the Secustend Exchange Act and other
resolutions that have not been approved by thetATminmittee but have been
approved by more than two-thirds of all directdhe date, period, content of
the discussion, the results of the resolution ef Audit Committee, and the
Company’s handling of the Audit Committee’s opinisinall be described as
following:

The Company’s proposals and resolution resultshi®matters listed in Article

14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

The Company’s

Results of | o ndling of the
Board meeting . : Audit 9
: Discussion . Audit
dates and periods Committee o
resolutions Comm!ttee S
opinion

March 22, 2022 Proposal for 2021 annual Approved with | Approved with
5th meeting of the consolidated business report,the entire the entire Board
5rd Board of consolidated financial report} committee members present
Directors Proposal for 2021 distributionmembers voting in favor.

of cash dividend. present voting

Proposal for 2021 earnings | in favor.

distribution.

2021 internal control policies

effectiveness evaluation and

declaration of internal contral

policies.

Proposal to the amendment of

the “Procedures for

Acquisition and Disposal of

Assets”.
May 11, 2022 Approved with | Approved with

6th meeting of the
5rd Board of
Directors

Proposal for the Consolidated
Financial Report for the First
guarter of 2022.

the entire
committee
members
present voting
in favor.

the entire Board
members present
voting in favor.

August 10, 2022
7th meeting of the
5rd Board of
Directors

Proposal for the Consolidated

Financial Report for the Second

quarter of 2022.

Approved with
the entire
committee
members
present voting
in favor.

Approved with
the entire Board
members present
voting in favor.

November 9, 2022
8th meeting of the
5rd Board of
Directors

1. Proposal for the Consolidate
Financial Report for the Thir

quarter of 2022.
2. CPA independence

assessment and remuneratiq

recommendation.

dApproved with

dthe entire
committee
members

Dipresent voting

in favor.

Approved with
the entire Board
members present
voting in favor.
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(2) Except the aforementioned issue, other issue nbtgsolved in the Audit

Committee but has been duly resolved by two-thimgority of the total

number of director seats: None

Handling of the opinions of the Audit Committee:ri¢o

(3) With respect to the avoidance of conflicting insgragendas, describe the

names of independent directors, details of thevasle agendas, reasons for

avoiding conflicting interest, and the voting déms: None

(4) Facts of communications by and between independieettors and internal

audit supervisors as well as CPA(s) (should incliskues regarding the

Company’s financial conditions, facts in busineggeration and such key

issues, the method of communications and the owddbereof):

A. Communication policy between independent directonsernal audit

supervisors and CPA:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

The internal audit supervisor delivers audit repaahd follow-up
reports to the independent directors every monthd dhe
independent directors request the internal audpesusor to
supplement information and convene meetings asackeed

The internal audit supervisor attends the Audit @uttee and the
Board of Directors meetings on a regular basis,rapdrts the status
of internal audit implementation to the independ#irgctors.
Independent directors hold communication meetinigjs the internal
audit supervisor when necessary, at least twiceaa, yo exchange
opinions on the operation and relevant improvemahntinternal
control.

The CPA attends the Audit Committee meeting attlegise a year
to report and communicate to the independent direan the impact
of key audit matters, IFRSs amendments, or othes land

regulations.

B. Communication between independent directors anckrnat audit

supervisors in 2022:

Date Attendee Matters Results
May 11, 2022 Independent Director Implementation Report| Approved
Audit Committee | Shu, Yeh of internal audit work | without
Independent Director from March to April objection.
Sen-Tai, Wen 2022.
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Date

Attendee

Matters

Results

Independent Directo
Wen Chen, Huang
Independent Directo
Yueh-Li, Lee

Audit Supervisor
Sen-Xing, Lai
(Video Attendance)

November 9, 2022
Audit Committee

Independent Directo
Shu, Yeh
Independent Directo
Sen-Tai, Wen
Independent Directo
Wen Chen, Huang
Independent Directo
Yueh-Li, Lee

Audit Supervisor
Sen-Xing, Lai
(Video Attendance)

r2023 audit plan.

2022 audit

rimplementation report.
2022 statutory

rcompliance report.
2022 internal control

r self-evaluation.
Continuous education
report for the Internal
audit and agent
Subsidiary supervision
the annual report of the

internal audit process.

Approved
without
objection.
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C. Communication between independent directors andsGRR022:

Date Attendee Matters Results
May 11, 2022 Independent Director The CPA described | Approved
Audit Committee | Shu, Yeh and explained the key without
Independent Director audit matters of the | objection.
Sen-Tai, Wen consolidated financial
Independent Director report for the second
Wen Chen, Huang | quarter of 2022 and
Independent Director remote audit.
Yueh-Li, Lee
CPA Keng-Hsi,
Chang
November 9, 2022 | Independent Director The CPA described | Approved
Audit Committee | Shu, Yeh and explained the key without
Independent Director audit matters of the | objection.

Sen-Tai, Wen
Independent Directo
Wen Chen, Huang
Independent Directo
Yueh-Li, Lee

CPA Keng-Hsi,
Chang

consolidated financial
rreport of 2022 and
remote audit as well
ras provided a
reminder of ESG
inspections and
relevant assurance

progress.
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(1)

Performance in corporate governance and the diffialegap between corporate governance and Comdpawvernance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies and thgse thereof

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

Actual governance

11%

Assessment items

Yes| No Summary description

The above is identical
with the Corporate
Governance Best
Practice Principles for

Will the Company based on the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles for v
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companigs

The Company has formulated the “Corporate Govem&wsst Practice
Principles”.

The Corporate Governance Best Practice Princigleptad by the
Company are as follows:

set up and disclose the 1. Protect the shareholders equity. TWSE/TPEX Listed
Company’s corporate 2. Strengthen the functions of the Board of Directors. Companies.
governance best-practice 3. Exert the function of the Audit Committee.
principles? 4. Respect the rights and interests of stakeholders.
5. Improve information transparency.
[I. Shareholding structure and The above is identical
shareholders’ equity with the Corporate
()  Will the Company have the| v () The Company has dedicated personnel to handlelsiidess’ Governance Best
internal procedures regulated suggestions, doubts, disputes and litigation nmgteerd the Practice Principles for
to handle shareholders’ spokesperson is currently the dedicated personnel. TWSE/TPEX Listed
proposals, doubts, disputes, Companies.
and litigation matters; also,
have the procedures
implemented accordingly?
(I Will the Company possess | v (I The Company maintains close relationship with maj@reholders,

the list of the Company’s
major shareholders and the

and understands the changes in major shareholdértheair
ultimate controllers on record dates such as amshakholder
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Deviation and causes

of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice

11%

Yes| No Summary description PrNGi
rinciples for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

list of the ultimate meetings and earnings distribution.
controllers of the major
shareholders?

(11 Will the Company establish| v (1) The Company has established relevant internal copdlicies in
and implement the risk compliance with laws and regulations.
control and firewall
mechanisms with the relate
parties?

(IV) Will the Company set up 4 (IV) The Company has established the “Procedures fodlihgnMaterial
internal norms to prohibit Inside Information” to regulate the Company’s irsi& and the
insiders from utilizing the “Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelioe£bnduct”
undisclosed information to stipulates that “all personnel may not take advgmtat undisclosed
trade securities? information of which they have learned to engagmsnder

trading”. Thus, all employees are required to alg¢he
abovementioned regulations to prevent insider trac
[ll.  The constitution and
obligations of the board of
directors The above is identical
() Does the board of directors| v The Company has formulated and implemented a Baigeasity policy | with the Corporate

formulate and implement
diversity policies, specific
management objectives?

according to the “Procedures for Election of Dicgst Diversification
should be considered in the selection and oveoatiposition of
directors, and formulate a diversified policy basedhe Company’s
operation, business model and development neeéspdlicy should
include but not limited to the following two majaspects of the standar

Governance Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies.

d:

l. Basic requirements: Gender, age, nationality attdreushall be
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

11%

(I Will the Company, in
addition to setting the
Remuneration Committee

considered.

Il.  Professional knowledge and skills: professionakgemund (such
as legal, accounting, industry, finance, marketind technology),
professional skills and industry experience, etc.

Board members should generally have the knowlesigs, and

experience necessary to perform their duties, lamdverall abilities

should be as follows:

l. Business judgment ability

II.  Accounting and financial analysis ability capaiekt

lll. Business management ability

IV. Crisis management ability

V. Knowledge of the industry

VI. Aninternational market perspective.

VII. Leadership ability

VIII. Decision making ability

The Company’s Board of Directors consists of 9aoes, including 5

general directors and 4 independent directors vave hich experience

and expertise in finance, business and management.

Please refer to pages 52 and 54 for the implementaf the diversity

policy of the Board of Directors of and the spexifianagement

objectives.

(1) The Company has set up the Remuneration Commitbéha Audit
Committee on June 23, 2015, and other various iumesit
committees will be set up when necessary.
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Actual governance

Assessment items

Deviation and causegq

of deviation from the

Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice

11%

Yes | No Summary description PrNGi
rinciples for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
and Audit Committee
lawfully, have other
functional committee set up
voluntarily?
(1) Does the Company establish v/ (1) The Company approved a resolution of the Boardimdiors on
a method to evaluate board January 16, 2020 to formulate the “Rules for Pentmce
performance and evaluate Evaluation of Board of Directors” which stipulatist “the
board performance every Company shall base its determination of an indiaidlirector’s
year? Are the performance remuneration on the evaluation results of his ompleeformance.”
evaluation results reported 1o The Company regularly conducts performance evaoatin
the board and used as a accordance with the regulations every year and galihe results tg
reference for the the Board of Directors before the end of the firsarter of the next
remuneration and year and apply them as a reference for individualktbrs’
nomination for re-election of remuneration and nomination for re-election. Thégremance
directors? evaluation of the Board of Directors and functioo@inmittees in
2022 was completed on December 19, 2022, and \pasteel to the
Board of Directors on February 23, 2023. For the22ferformance
evaluation results of the Board of Directors, péeaefer to page 69.
(Iv) Will the Company have the| v (IV) The Company evaluates the independence of CPAagear and

independence of the public
accountant evaluated
regularly?

the latest assessment of the independent asses@peritand the
statement issued by the CPA/CPA firm was approyeithé Audit
Committee on November 9, 2022. It is then repotteithe Board of
Directors on November 9, 2022 to approve the CRigpendent
assessment.

The Company’s CPA independent assessment itenasdodlows:
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

11%

1. Whether the CPA has served as a director of thepaagnor an
affiliated company.

2. Whether the CPA is a shareholder of the Compamanor
affiliated company.

3. Whether the CPA is paid by the Company or an afétil
company.

4. Whether the CPA has confirmed that the CPA firnvkach
he/she operates has complied with the relevanper#ence
norms.

5. Whether a former partner within one year of disaesgmg from
the CPA firm joins the Company as a director, suiger, or
officer or is in a key position to exert signifitanfluence over
the auditing matter.

6. The CPA has never provided the Company with thét aud
service for consecutive 7 years.

7. Whether the CPA meets the requirements about imdigpee
referred to in the Statement of the Norm of Pratesd Ethics
for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic@hina No.
10.

According to the Company’s evaluation, CPA Keng;k¥iang and

Chien-Hsin, Hsieh of Deloitte & Touche meet theapdndent

evaluation standards and are qualified to sernthkea€ompany’s

CPA.

The CPA firm selected by the Company has striatiregnents on

the CPA independence. For example, the CPA shabitaged at

least once every 5 years. When the CPA firm regltoe CPA due

-83-



Actual governance

Assessment items

Deviation and causegq

of deviation from the

Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice

11%

of shareholders)?

Yes| No Summary description .
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
to internal organizational considerations, the @ssfonalism,
integrity and independence of the new CPA will baleated by the
Company, and submits it to the Board of Directorsrésolution.

IV. Does a public company equip The Company has set up a corporate governancemmd consists of | The above is identical
an appropriate number of the following units: with the Corporate
eligible governance personnel v 1. Full-time unit: Secretariat of the Board of DiretoThe account Governance Best
and assign the governance supervisor and spokesperson Jui-Ping ,Wang is nsgige for Practice Principles for
officer to take charge of coordinating corporate governance related affairs. TWSE/TPEX Listed
company’s governance affairs 2. Part-time unit: Financial department personnelrasponsible for Companies.
(including, without limitation, co-organizing corporate governance related affairs.
providing directors and The main responsibilities of the corporate goveceamit are to provide
supervisors with the data the information required by the directors to paridheir duties, and to
required for business handle matters related to the Board meetings aaictsblders’ meeting
operations, assistance for the in accordance with the regulations.
legal compliance of directors The 2022 business execution is as follows:
and supervisors, handling 1. The Company has consulted the opinions of all thredefore the
affairs related to holding a board meeting to arrange the agenda and notifjiraittors to attend
board meeting or a general the meeting and provide sufficient meeting matsrsgven days
meeting of shareholders and before the meeting, so that the directors can wtaled the content @
producing minutes for board the relevant issues and complete the minutes dfdhed meeting
meetings and general meetings within 20 days after the meeting.

2. The date of the shareholders’ meeting is registacedrding to the
legal deadline, prepared and the meeting notigejlt@ok and the
meeting minutes are reported the before the deadlin

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Besitiee Principles,

independent directors assist in arranging commtinicaneetings whe
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Actual governance

Assessment items

Summary description

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

necessary, to communicate with CPA and internait sugervisors to
understand the Company’s financial and businessatpass.

Has the Company established
communication channel with
the stakeholders (including bu
not limited to the shareholders
employees, customers, and
suppliers), set up a stakeholdé
section on the Company’s
website, and responded
appropriately to the important
corporate social responsibilitie
concerned by the stakeholder

—

The Company’s website (http://www.gemservices.chayg a dedicated
page for stakeholder, and stakeholder can coritad€ompany at any
time via telephone, letter, or email when necessary

124

(7]

o
)

2022
Stakeholder | ssues Communication channels stakehgldgr
and response methods communication
performance
Shareholders Financial Contact: Spokesperson/ | MOPS
and information | Senior Financial Manager | announced 13
investors | Stock Jui-Ping ,Wang major news.
information | Contact number: In 2022, 1
Business (886)2-2248-0680 investor
performance| E-mail: conference was
Dividend IR@gemservices.com held.
policy € Annual General
Corporate Meeting
governance | € Regular announcemer

of financial statements
and annual reports
4 Hold Investor
Conference
4 Announcement of
important information
in accordance with the

The above is identical
with the Corporate
Governance Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies.
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

11%

regulations of the
competent authority
€ Set up an investor
contact and mailbox on
the Company website

Customer

Business
performance
Product
quality
Customer
service

Contact: Global Customer
Management
Department/Manager
Shou-Chi, Liu
Contact number:
(886)2-2248-0680
E-mail:
IR@gemservices.com
€ Visit customers
4 Email, phone
communication

In 2022, the
product yield
rate reached the
customer’s
target, so there
were no major
customer
complaints.

A
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Deviation and causegq

of deviation from the

Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice

11%

Yes | No Summary description PrNGi
rinciples for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
Supplier Business Contact: Materials In 2022, the
performance| Management supplier
Long-term | Department/Assistant management
business General Manager Heng-Yu,evaluates the
strategy Liu delivery time
Long-term | Contact number: and quality of
collaboration| (886)2-2248-0680 each
model E-mail: manufacturer at
IR@gemservices.com the end of each
4 Email, phone guarter.
communication
VI. Has the Company The Company mandates Registrar & Transfer Agen@aDment The above is identical
commissioned a professional | v Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.to be the Company’seitalder services with the Corporate
stock service agent to handle agent. Governance Best
shareholders affairs? Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
VII. Disclosure of information The above is identical
() Doesthe Company havea| v () The Company has Chinese and English websites with the Corporate
website setup and the (http://www.gemservices.com), which regularly des® information| Governance Best
financial business and related to the Company’s finances, business anabcaie Practice Principles for
corporate governance governance. TWSE/TPEX Listed
information disclosed? Companies.
(I Has the Company adopted | v (I The Company has set up spokespersons and actikgspaosons as

other information disclosure

methods (such as,

a channel for information collection, disclosuned @&xternal

communication, and holds investor conferences fiome to time to
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Actual governance Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Assessment items - Best-Practice
Yes| No Summary description PrNGi
rinciples for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
establishing an English improve the information transparency. The inveptge/ investor
website, designating a conference of the Company’s website
responsible person for (http://www.gemservices.com) and the MOPS websieagailable
collecting and disclosing for the investors as reference.
information of the Company,
substantiating the spokesman
system, placing thimvestor
conferenceon the Company’s
website, etc.)?
(1) Does the Company
announce and report its v The Company has not announced and reported itsdiigla
financial statements within statements within two months after the end of eafigear, but has
two months after the end of|a published and declared in advance the financigstants of Q1,
fiscal year, and publish and Q2 and Q3 as well as status of monthly operatiBlease visit the
declare in advance the MOPS for more detail ( https://mops.twse.com.tw/).
financial statements of Q1,
Q2 and Q3 as well as status
of monthly operations?

VIII. Are there any other important 1. Employee rights and employee care: Please rethetdescription of| The above is identical
information (including but not | v labor-management relations in the business overgiaiis annual | with the Corporate
limited to the interests of report. Governance Best
employees, employee care, 2. Investor relations: the Company has set up a spekesn and a Practice Principles for
investor relations, supplier spokesperson mailbox to handle shareholder suggssti TWSE/TPEX Listed
relations, the rights of 3. Supplier relationship: The contract signed by tioen@any and the | Companies.
stakeholders, the advanced supplier includes compliance with the ethical mamagnt policy. If
study of directors an the counterparty of the transaction is involvedmethical conduc
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Deviation and causegq

of deviation from the

Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice

11%

Yes| No Summary description PrNGi
rinciples for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
supervisors, the implementation the contract may be terminated or rescinded atiare;

of risk management policies
and risk measurement
standards, the execution of
customer policy, the purchase
of liability insurance for the
Company’s directors and
supervisors) that are helpful in
understanding the corporate
governance operation of the
Company?

. Rights of Stakeholders: Stakeholders may commumieéh the

Company in various ways to protect their rights.

. Continuous education for directors and supervisbing: Company

notifies directors from time to time to participaterelevant
professional knowledge continuous education couteez)22, the
Company has complied with the training hours aathiing scope
stipulated in the “Directions for the Implementatiof Continuing
Education for Directors and Supervisors of TWSHddsand TPEXx
Listed Companies”.

Implementation of risk management policies and m&asurement
standards: The Company has established intern&dot@olicies and
related management measures, and implements treardangly.
Implementation of customer policy: the Company rairs a stable
and good relationship with customers for its pedfitity.

. Purchases of liability insurance for directors aogervisors: the

Company has purchased liability insurance for m#iadors for the
scope of their business.

IX.

Please describe the improvement performed accotditige corporate governance evaluation resultighda by the Governance Center of
Taiwan Stock Exchange in recent years, and progh@smatters with priority for improvement and tlespective measures and Corporate:

(Companies not in the evaluation are not included):
The improvement on the corporate governance evaluegsults released in the latest year is destsefollows:

Iltem No. and Evaluation Indica

Improvement descriptic

1.6 Did the Company hold the general meeting ofedi@ders before

the end of May?

be held before the end of May.

The 2023 annual general meeting of shareholddiseoCompany will

1.11 Did the Company provide the English annuabrep days before

The Company has uploaded thadbnggrsion of the annual report 16
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Assessment items

Actual governance

Deviation and cause

Yes | No

Summary description

of deviation from the

Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

Corporate Governanc

[«
I

11%

the day of the general meeting of shareholders?

days before the day of the general meeting of slodders.

3.5 Has the Company uploaded the annual finanegadrnt disclosed in
English 7 days before the day of the general mgetin

shareholders?

The Company has uploaded the annual financial tejislosed in
English 16 days before the day of the general mgeti shareholders.

For corporate governance evaluation results redeiasthe latest year that have not been improveslptiority matters and measures to be
strengthened are as follows:

Indicator

Iltem No. and Evaluation Indicator

Primstand measures for strengthening improvemer

N

Strengthen the
structure and
operation of the

2.14 Did the Company have any non-statutory funetio

committees such as a nomination committee, risk
management committee, or sustainable development

The Company will continue to evaluate and add fionet
committees other than statutory ones accordingaméeeds
of the Company.

Board of committee, and did such functional committees hate
Directors less than three members, with at least half ofrieenbers

being independent directors, and with one or magebers

possessing the particular professional competenecgsred

by the respective committees, and did the Company

disclose the organization, functions, and operatmfrsuch

committees?
Improve 3.4 Did the Company file its audited annual finahceport The Company will continue to evaluate and complthwhe
information within 2 months from the end of the fiscal year? regulations of the competent authority and the redele
transparency Company.

Corporate socia
responsibility
implementation

4.1

Did the Company have a designated unit in ehafg
promoting sustainable development that, followimg t
principle of materiality, conducted risk assessnwant
environmental, social, or corporate governancesssu
related to th«Company’soperations, and adopted rele\

The Company will continue to evaluate and complihie
regulations of the competent authority and the refede
Company.
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Actual governance

A ment item ipti
ssessment items Yes| No Summary description

Deviation and causes
of deviation from the
Corporate Governanc
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

11%

risk management policies or strategies, and didbtzed of
directors oversee the promotion of sustainable
development, and did it disclose the same on the
Company’s website and in its annual report?

4.2 Did the Company have a designated unit in @éafg
promoting ethical corporate management, with
responsibility for establishing and supervising the
implementation of the ethical corporate management
policies and prevention programs, and discloseuttiies
operations and implementation on the Company’s itebs
and in its annual report, and did the unit repothe board
of directors at least once a year?
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(IV) If the Company has set up a Remuneration Commitieeshould disclose its
composition and operation
1. Composition of the Remuneration Committee
(1) The Remuneration Committee consists of all indepehdirectors serving as
members, totaling 4 members.
(2) The term of office of the 3rd Remuneration Comnaittduly 21, 2021 to July
20, 2024.
(3) Information on the members of the Remuneration Citaen
December 31, 2022
N Number of other
Quialification . .
public companies
. . e where the members
Identity Professional qualification and : .
experience Compliance of independence| are also the mem-bers
of the remuneratior
committee of these
Name .
companies.
Independent|{Shu, Yeh Shu, Yeh is currently a director of th&. Not employed by the None.
Director Company and he joined the Board on Company or any of its
Convener June 19, 2018. Shu, Yeh taught at affiliated companies.
National Taiwan University and was 2. Not a director, supervisor of
professor of the department of the Company or any of its
accounting. He served as the CFO & affiliated companies.
SEVP of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Li@8. Does not hold more than 1%
and possesses accounting and financial of the Company’s
expertise. Shu, Yeh holds a Ph.D. in outstanding shares in his/her
accounting from UCLA. own name or under the name
Independent|Sen-Tai, Sen-Tai, Wen is currently a director of  of spouse, underage children,
Director Wen the Company and he joined the Board  or any other person; nor is
Member on June 23, 2015. Sen-Tai, Wen was any party listed herein one pf
the chairman and CEO of Taiyi the ten largest natural perspn
International Investment Co., Ltd., and  shareholders of the
has served as a director and Company.
Remuneration Committee of many |4. A spouse, relative within the
listed and emerging companies. He second degree of kinship, ar
possesses business judgment, rich lineal relative within the thir
industry experience and is familiar w| degree of kinship, of a
the international market. Sen-Tai, Wen managerial officer under (1
holds a MBA degree from Rutgers or any of the persons stated
University. in (2) and (3).
Independent/Wen Chen, (Wen Chen, Huang is currently a 5. Not a director, supervisor ofNone.
Director Huang director of the Company and he joingd employee of an institutiona
Member the Board on June 19, 2018. Wen C shareholder directly holding
Huang was the chairman of Heli more than 5% of the
Investment Co., Ltd., and has served as outstanding shares issued by
a director of many listed and emerging the Company, or a director
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Number of other

rs

ualification . .
Q public companies
: . L where the member
Identity Professional qualification and : .
. Compliance of independence| are also the membe
experience .
of the remuneratior
committee of these
Name .
companies.
companies. Before that, he was the yice supervisor or employee of an
president of the CID Group Ltd. and institutional shareholder who
senior manager of CDIB & Partners is among the top 5
Investment Holding Corporation and shareholders, or a
assistant manager of China representative of an
Development Financial Holding Corp. institutional shareholders
He possesses business judgment, rich  appointed as the director o
industry experience and is familiar w| supervisor of the Company
the international market. Wen Chen, according to Paragraph 1 or
Huang holds a MBA degree from 2, Article 27 of Company
NCCU MBA Program. Act.
Independent|Yueh-Li, LeeYueh-Li, Lee is currently a director of6.  Not a director, supervisor ofNone.
Director the Company and she joined the Board employee of a company
Member on June 23, 2015. Prior to this, controlling over one half of

Yueh-Li, Lee worked as the vice
president of finance at Chief Telecon
Inc.. Earlier, she worked as the
accounting section chief at Chunghw
Telecom Co., Ltd. She possesses
accounting and financial expertise.
Yueh-Li, Lee holds a bachelor’s deg
in Department of Business
Administration, Tamkang University

ee

the Company director seatg
or voting shares under one
person.

Not a director, supervisor, ¢
employee of a company or
institution whose chairpersg
and president or equivalent
role is same person or its
spouse.

A director, supervisor,
managerial officer, or
shareholder holding 5% or
more of the shares, of a
specified company or
institution that has a financi
or business relationship wit
the Company.

Not a professional or owne
partner, director, superviso
managerial officer or the
spouse of these roles of a
sole proprietorship,
partnership, company or
institution that audits or
provides related business,
legal, financial, accounting
services or consultation wit
service fees accumulating
above NT$500,000 over thg

=

N

=

17
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Number of other

ualification . .

Q public companies
: . L where the members
Identity Professional qualification and : . i

. Compliance of independence| are also the membefrs
experience .
of the remuneratior]
Name committee of these

companies.

last two years for the
Company or its affiliates;
except for members of the
Remuneration Committee,
public tender offer review
committee or special
committee for
merger/consolidation and
acquisition exercising powe
according to the Securities
and Exchange Act or the
Business Mergers and
Acquisitions Act or related
laws or regulations.

10. No spouse or a relative
within the second degree of
kinship with other directors|

11. Does not meet any
descriptions stated in Articl
30 of the Company Act.

12. There is no government
agency or a juristic person
acts as a shareholder of the
Company elected stipulated
in Article 27 of the Company
Act.

1%

2.  Responsibility of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee exercise the care obd gdministrator in faithfully
performing the official powers listed below, andablsubmit its recommendations
for deliberation by the Board of Directors:
(1) Prescribe and periodically review the performanegew and remuneration
policy, system, standards, and structure for dimscand managerial officers.
(2) Periodically evaluate and prescribe the remuneratad directors, and
managerial officers.
The Remuneration Committee shall be convened ngeatieast twice a year,

held at any time as needed.
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3. Information on the operation of the Remuneratiom@uttee:

The Remuneration Committee convened 2 meetings i(A)2022 and the

participation of the Remuneration Committee arexshbelow:

Actual
, Actual Proxy
Title Name attendance (%)| Remark
attendance (B] Attendance
(B/A) (Note)
Convener Shu, Yeh 2 0 100%
Sen-Tai,
Member 2 0 100%
Wen
Wen Chen,
Member 2 0 100%
Huang
Yueh-Li,
Member 2 0 100%
Lee

Note: The actual attendance rate (%) is calculbtes®d on the number of Remuneration
Committee meetings and the number of actual atteredduring the tenure.

4. 2022 Annual Remuneration Committee Meeting Propgosal

Handling of the

Meeting date opinions of the

Discussion Resolution

(period) Remuneration
Committee
March 22, 2022 | 1. Distribution proposal for | Approved with | Proposed to the
3rd meeting of the 2021 manager the entire Board of
the 3rd compensation. committee Directors for
Remuneration | 2. 2021 Director members approval by all
Committee Compensation present voting | directors
Distribution Proposal in | in favor. present.

accordance with Article
34.1 of Article of
Association.

3. Distribution Proposal for
the 2021 Directors’
Compensation.

4. Proposal for managers’
salary adjustment.

December 19, | Proposal for managers’ the | Approved with | Proposed to the

2022 overall salary adjustment. | the entire Board of

4th meeting of committee Directors for
the 3rd members approval by all
Remuneration present voting | directors
Committee in favor. present.

-95-



5.

Other required information.

1)

@)

Where the board of directors does not adopt or drttes proposal(s) posed by
the Remuneration Committee: The Company shall espreslaborate on the
date, term while the board of directors meeting e@svened, contents of the
iIssues, outcome of decisions resolved in the badrdlirectors and the
Company’s response to the opinions posed by the uReration
Committee(For instance, if the salary pay resoledhe board of directors is
higher than that proposed by the Remuneration Cdw@enithe Company
should elaborate on the fact of differential gad #re cause thereof): None.
Where a decision resolved in the Remuneration Car@eniis found in
contravention of rules or in qualified opinion aserified with records or
documented declaration, the Company shall expredslyorate on the date,
terms of the meeting convened by the Remuneratmriittee, contents of
agenda, opinions of all members and acts takeespanse to such opinions:

None.
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(V)

Implementation of the promotion of sustainable dmweent and the deviation and

causes of deviation from the Sustainable DevelopnBast Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies

Performance

Promotion items

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviatid
from the
Sustainable
Development Bes
Practice Principle)
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

—

vJ

I. Does the Company have 3
specific (or part-time) unit
set up to promote the
sustainable development
governance framework, an
the Board of Directors
authorizing the manageme
to handle matters and repd
the supervision results to t
Board of Directors?

d

nt
rt

(N

(11

(111

For the relevant governance on the promot
group members, please refer to page 108 ¢
this annual report.

The Company’s Secretariat of the Bo
of Directors is a part-time unit to
promote sustainable development. T}
promotion unit is composed of GEM
Electronics (Shanghai) and GEM
Electronics (Hefei). The Board of
Directors supervises and guides the
sustainable development discussion
environment, social and corporate
governance.

Supervisory of the Board of Directors
The greenhouse gas inventory and
verification work group regularly
provides implementation status and
plans to the secretariat of the Board ¢
Directors. Then the secretariat of the
Board of Directors will report the
implementation status to the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis.

Other promotion groups regularly
provide relevant information such as

implementation status or certification$

obtained to the secretariat of the Boa
of Directors.

Each promotion group is based on th
division of labor and responsibilities,
and is handled by each organizer in
accordance with its authority.

The secretariat of the Board of Direct

Is responsible for the following matters:

Status follow up on various promotior
plans.

Collect the implementation results of
each promotion plan.

Ao significant
difference
e

—

rd

D

al

on

—

II. Does the Company assess

the risk of environmental,

The Company has formulated the “Sustain
Development Best Practice Principles” to

[ significant
difference

-97 -



Performance

Deviation and

causes of deviatid

—*

\*2)

from the
Promotion items _— Sustainable
YesNo Summary description Development Bes
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
social, and governance implement corporate governance, promote fthe
(ESG) issues in relation to sustainable environment development, and
corporate operations based protect social welfare. The Company has also

on the materiality principle
and establish policies or
strategies in relation to risk
management?

U7

formulated the “Procedures for Handling
Material Inside Information” and “Procedure
for Ethical Management and Guidelines for
Conduct” for the implementation of risk
management policies.

The risk assessment boundary is based on
Company, including existing bases in Taiwi
and Mainland China. It is also based on thg
relevance to the operation of the industry a
the degree of influence on significant matte]
where the subsidiaries GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and GEM Electronics

(Hefei) Co., Ltd. were included in the scops.

For risk assessment on environment, socia
corporate governance, please refer to page
of this annual report.

S

the
AN

108

1
(1

(In

Environmental issues
Does the Companlyave af
appropriate environmentg
management system
established in accordanc
with its industrial
characteristics?

Is the Company committg
to enhancing the power
efficiency and using
renewable materials that

al

v

are with low impact on th

1%

(D The Company lives up to the spirit of
corporate environmental protection al
complies with various applicable
environmental protection laws and

regulations. All the Company's factories

have passed the 1SO14001
environmental system management
certification. The latest certificate of
Shanghai factory is valid from August
16, 2020 to August 16, 2023. The latg
certificate of Hefei factory is valid fron
March 1, 2022 to March 1, 2025.
Since 2023, the Company has condu
greenhouse gas inventory in accorda
with the 1ISO14064-1 standard, follow
up on the emission reduction effect, 3
disclosed it accordingly.
(I The Shanghai factory’s 2022 target w
to reduce the electricity consumption
per unit of product by 8.14% comparg

with 2021. It has reached the target and

No significant
difference

St

-

nce
ed
nd

as

d

reduced energy consumption through
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Performance

Promotion items

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and

causes of deviatid

from the
Sustainable

Development Bes
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

—*

\*2)

(1)

(V)

environmental impacts?

Does the Company asse;
the present and future
potential risks and
opportunities of climate
change on the Company

5S

and take actions to relateld”

Did the Company produc
statistics on the GHG
emissions, water
consumption, and total
waste in the last two yeal

D

Has the Company

(Il1)

energy-saving projects. The Hefei
factory’s 2022 target was to reduce th
electricity consumption per unit of
product by 10% compared with 2021,
has reached the target and reduced
energy consumption through
energy-saving projects.

The raw materials used by the Comp
are all in compliance with the Europe
Union's RoHS Directive, REACH, ang
halogen-free restrictions. We have
established an integrated system for
resource recycling across different
platforms on the local government
website. It can track material recyclin
and reuse. It enables us to reduce thg
burden on the environment through
production method optimization, wast
reduction, raw material recycling and

reuse, and packaging material recycling

and sharing.

We have incorporated greenhouse g4
reduction issues into our risk
management process to continue to
assess the potential risks and
opportunities from climate change for
the Company, and proactively
implement energy conservation and
carbon reduction, greenhouse gas
reduction, water saving, and other w3
management projects. The Company
will conduct greenhouse gas inventor,
in accordance with the 1ISO14064-1
standard from 2023, follow up on the
emission reduction effect, and disclos
accordingly.

(IV) The Company pays attention to the

impact of climate change on our
operating activities and has establish
an energy management unit to reduc

e

t

ANy

AN
!

[ =}

1%

(S

LS

ste

bd

-

U

the impact of our operating activities
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Promotion items

Performance

Yes

No

Summary description

Deviation and
causes of deviatid
from the
Sustainable
Development Bes
Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

—*

\*2)

established policies for
GHG reduction, water
conservation, and waste
management?

climate change.
Shanghai Factory:
Unit: tCO2

Greenhouse gases 2021

2022

Scope 1 0

0

Scope 2 30,387.96 20,858.30

Scope 3 0

0

Per unit of
product (Kpcs) 0.006
Emissions

0.005

Unit: Metric ton

Water 2021
consumption

2022

Total water

. 121,899
consumption

107,296

Water use

. . 0.024
intensity

0.028

Water use intensity = total water consumptio

unit of product Kpcs.
Unit: Metric ton

Waste 2021 2022
Hazardous waste 984 78.7
Non-hazardous 1,046 1,030
waste

Waste intensity 0.00002 0.00003

Waste intensity = hazardous waste intensity

unit of product Kpcs.

Hefei Factory:
Unit: tCO2

Greenhouse gases 2021

(2]

2022

Scope 1 0

0

Scope 2 8,921.28 13,620.99

Scope 3 0

0

Per unit of
product (Kpcs) 0.022
Emissions

0.012

Unit: Metric ton

Water 2021
consumption

2022

Total wat
otal water 68,697

consumption

120,895
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Performance Deviation and
causes of deviatid

from the
Promotion items o Sustainable
YesNo Summary description Development Beq
Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
.Water.use 0.170 0.109
intensity

Water use intensity = total water consumption /
unit of product Kpcs.
Unit: Metric ton

Waste 2021 2022
Hazardous waste 180 214
Non-hazardous 219 230
waste

Waste intensity 0.0010 0.0004

Waste intensity = hazardous waste intensity
unit of product Kpcs.

As per above, it can be seen that the Comp|
carbon emissions, water use intensity, and waste
intensity per unit of product for 2022 were
reduced or remained at the same level g
2021. The Company will continue to td
relevant measures to save energy and r¢
carbon emissions.

IV. Social issues No significant
() Does the Company have| v () The Company complies with relevant |difference
the relevant management laws and regulations such as the Labor
policies and procedures Standards Act, Labor Contract Law,
stipulated in accordance Employment Service Act and Act of
with the relevant laws and Gender Equality in Employment, and
regulations and recognizes and follows the “United
international conventions Nations Universal Declaration of Human
on human rights? Rights”, “United Nations Guiding

Principles on Business and Human
Rights”, “United Nations International
Labor Organization ” and other
recognized international human rights
principles, as well as respects the
protection stipulated in international
human rights bills. We have established
the RBA-2001RBA System Control
Program in accordance with the
Responsible Business Alliance (RBA)
Code of Conduct. We strive to raise
employees’ awareness of the Company's
internal rules and provide complaint
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Performance

Deviation and

Promotion items

causes of deviatid
from the
Sustainable

—*

\*2)

YegNo Summary description Development Beg
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
channels to protect their rights and
interest as we firmly believe that every
and each member of the Company should
be treated fairly and respected. There has
never been any child labor or forced labor
and human rights violations.
(I) Has the Company v (1) Employee remuneration:
established and The employee remuneration policy is
implemented reasonable determined based on personal ability,
employee welfare contribution to the Company,
measures (including performance, professional
remuneration, leave, and competitiveness and consideration of the
other benefits) and Company’s operation results. Article 34.1

appropriately reflected
business performance an
achievements in the
remuneration for
employees?

of the Articles of Association stipulates

that if the Company makes profits in thie

fiscal year, it shall distribute employee
compensation at 5% to 10% of the pro
in the fiscal year. Employee
compensation will be distributed in sto
or cash in accordance with the employ
incentive plan stipulated in Article 11.1
the Articles of Association. The recipie
of employee remuneration may includg
employees of affiliated companies whqg
meet certain conditions.

Employee benefits:

The Company’s Shanghai and Hefei
factories have employee canteens,
transportation vehicles and employee
dormitories.

The Company provides various

it

ck
pe
of

high-quality benefits for employees, such

as allowances for production line
employees who have obtained
professional certificates, housing
allowances for non-local employees,
regular employee meal subes, birthda)
gift certificates, marriage allowances,
maternity allowances, funeral allowanc
and regular health checks. The Shang
factory and the Hefei factory’s employsg
are entitled to annual paid leave accor

hai

to law.

-102 -



Performance Deviation and
causes of deviatid
from the
Sustainable
YegNo Summary description Development Beg
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

Promotion items

The Company provides various
high-quality benefits for employees, sugch
as regular employee meal subsidies,
birthday gift certificates, marriage
allowances, maternity allowances, funeral
allowances, and regular health checks
Besides a fixed five-day work week, th
employees of the Taiwan company
receive four days of paid leave every year
who have worked for one year (those \
have not completed one year will be
given pro rata leave) in addition to the
special leave given according to the
seniority stipulated in the Labor
Standards Act.

Workplace diversity and equality:

The Company ensures men and women
have equal pay for equal work. The
average proportion of female employeé¢s
in the Company was 46% in 2021, and
48% in 2022.

Business performance reflected in
employee remuneration:

The Company adjusts the salary every
year according to the market salary level
and individual performance to maintain
the salary competitiveness. The average
salary adjustment in 2021 was 6.8%, and
the average salary adjustment in 2022

[1°)

6..23%.

(1) Does the Company provi{ v (I The Company’s safety management
employees with a safe and policy follows the following safety
healthy work environment, management guidelines:
and provide safety and Safety first: establish a safe and harmonioys
health education to working environment to protect the physical
employees regularly? and mental health of employees; prevention

first: comply with the laws and regulations,
eliminate violations, and prevent injuries and
health damages; participate in consultation
safe is the responsibility for everyone in
production and it is ensured with civilized ,
smooth and good internal and external
communication mechanism; continuous
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Promotion items

Performance

Deviation and

Yes

No

Summary description

causes of deviatig
from the
Sustainable
Development Bes
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

—*

\*2)

improvement: improve the work environme
and attitude, and continuously enhance the
corporate culture.

In 2021, the Shanghai factory had one and

Hefei factory had two occupational accidents,

totaling three, accounting for 0.14% of the
total number of employees at the end of th¢
year. In 2022, the Shanghai factory had thr
and the Hefei factory had two occupational
accidents, totaling five, accounting for 0.24
of the total number of employees at the enc
the year. The Company is committed to
ensuring the safety and health of employee
and is striving to achieve zero work-related
injuries.

After a thorough review of the improvemen{
measures, the Company immediately upgra
the equipment software, installed aciHision
strips on equipment, and reiterated the
Company's safety and protection of life clat
to ensure the safety of our employees at w
To protect workers from harmful substance
the workplace and provide them with a hea
and comfortable work environment, the
Company performs monitoring tests of the

work environment once per year to gradually

understand workers’ exposure to relevant r
Occupational safety auditing:

The Company's EHS Department is
responsible for implementing an occupatior
safety work plan. The task force performs
audits as planned and prepares an
improvement report on issues identified for
each unit to make improvements, and revie

Nt

the

1%
D

Drk.
5 in

sks.

al

WS

the defects at relevant meetings based on the

improvement suggestions.
The Shanghai factory’s occupational safety auditing
Standardized safety At least once per year
combined inspection
Professional safety At least once per
inspection quarter

Monthly inspection Once per month
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Performance Deviation and
causes of deviatid

from the
S Sustainable
Promotion items _
YesNo Summary description Development Bes

Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

Team inspection At least once per team

Unscheduled or Depending on risks

construction site and construction

inspection situation

The Hefei factory’s occupational safety auditing:

Standardized safety At least once per year

combined inspection

Professional safety At least once per

inspection quarter

Monthly inspection Once per month

Team inspection At least once per team

Unscheduled or Depending on risks

construction site and construction

inspection situation

The Company’s verification status:
The Company's Shanghai factory and Hefeli
factory have passed 1ISO45001 verification
the local government’s safety production
verification.

The latest certificate of the Shanghai factory is
valid from July 20, 2020 through July 20,
2023.

The latest certificate of Hefei factory is valid
from April 2, 2021 to April 2, 2024.

(IV) Does the Company have| v (IV) The Company establishes education and

effective career capacity training plans every year according to the
development training needs of the employees in each

program established for t department, including new employee
employees? training and professional continuous

education (annual continuous educatign
for auditors, accountants and safety
production administrators, etc.) where
employees can enhance their professipnal
functions by participating in internal and
external education and training courses.
In 2022, the total number of the Shanghai
factory’s training hours was 7,570, and
the Hefei factory was 6,565.

Implementation of education and trainipng
in the Company’s Taiwan Branch in thg

\U
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Performance

Promotion items

ca

Deviation and
uses of deviatid
from the
Sustainable

—*

\*2)

YegNo Summary description Development Beg
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
past two years:
Year/ Supervisor | Accountant Auditor
Participants| education education and| Education
and training | training and
training
2021 6 4 4
2022 11 7 6
(V) Does the Compangomply| v (V) During the R&D process, the Company
with the related laws and considers product safety, develops safe
regulations and products, and provides customers with
international standards material safety data sheets (MSDS) ar{d
regarding the customer hazardous substance testing reports tg
health and safety, custon ensure their health and safety;
privacy, marking We sign non-disclosure agreements wijth
communication, and customers to protect their privacy. The
labeling of its products and Company is an original equipment
services and establish manufacturer (OEM) and abides by the
policies to protect the customer identification principle. The
rights and interests of Company abides by applicable laws and
customers and procedurgs regulations, formulates customer
for grievances? complaint handling procedures and rulgs,
and relevant departments communicatg
with customers and solve their compla
in real time, to safeguard their rights and
interest.
The Company has established a Custg
Service Department. It proactively
conducts customer satisfaction surveys
per year to confirm the implementation| of
various customer policies, accept and
handle customer complaints, and assist
front-line business colleagues to handlg
customer complaint cases and do a gdod

(V1)

Has the Company
established policies for
management to request
suppliers to comply with
the relevant laws and

regulations of

(V1) The Companyas established the supp

job in protecting customer rights and
interests.

management procedures to request
suppliers to abide by applicable rules g
environmental protection, occupationa
safety and health, and workers’ human

—n

rights and signed a contract with the
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Performance

Deviation and

Promotion items

Yes

No

Summary description

causes of deviatig
from the
Sustainable
Development Bes
Practice Principle]
for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie

—*

\*2)

environmental protection
occupational safety and
health, and labor human
rights? Does the Compar
keep track on the
implementation of such
policies?

y

specifying the provision that in the cas
of a breach of contract, the Company 1
terminate or revoke the contract at any

time. The Company adopts the Supplie

Social Responsibility Assessment Forr
to evaluate each supplier's
implementation of measures for
environmental protection, occupationa
safety and health, and workers’ humar
rights. If any problem is discovered, a
given supplier should correct it
immediately and make continuous
improvement.

1%

V. Did the Company, followin The Company has not compiled it yet, but hide significant
internationally recognized v |formulated a Corporate Social Responsibilifglifference
guidelines, prepare and Best Practice Principles, and will prepare it|in
publish reports such as its due course in the future considering
sustainable environment international trends and market changes.
report to disclose
non-financial information of
the Company? Did the
Company apply for
assurance or guarantee of
such reports to a third-party
certification body?

VI. If the Company has established the corporate smsabnsibility principles based on “the Corporage
Social Responsibility Best-Practice PrinciplesTOVSE/TPEX Listed Companies,” please describg
any discrepancy between the principles and thegtementation:

The Company has formulated a Sustainable DevelopBest Practice Principles, and operates in
accordance with the norms of the “Sustainable Dxprakent Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies”.

VII. Other important information for the implementatminsustainable development:

The Company implements various environmental ptimtie@olicies, strives to raise the awareness|of

environmental protection and social responsibdityll employees, and ensures that the products

comply with environmental protection regulations.
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The Company’s promotion of sustainable development:

Framework for promoting sustainable development:

Board of Directors

Board of Directors
Office of Secretaris

r—r-l

HR Administration GEM Shanghai
Department Factory

GEM Hefei
Factory

Promoting sustainable development governance:

1. Secretariat Office of the Board of Directors: Praeniine functions of the Board of
Directors and implement compliance with laws argltations in line with the trend of

corporate governance.

2. Human Resources Administration Department: Implédrtadror-management

communication, employee health and safety.

3. GEM Electronics (Shanghai) and GEM Electronics @eimprove supply chain
management, provide customer service, improve tagluality and safety, greenhouse
gas emissions and waste management, and ass@&spd#uoe of climate change.

Promote sustainable development risk assessment:

nd

_ Risk management strategies ar
Issues Risk assessment
measures
Environment Environmental protection The Company strives to sav

Climate change

energy and reduce carbon
emissions, and regularly
conducts greenhouse gas
inventory every year, with
the goal to reduce carbon
dioxide emissions per each
production unit year by year
By implementing a
standardized safety
management cycle, we can
effectively reduce pollution
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_ Risk management strategies and
Issues Risk assessment
measures

emissions and address
environmental problems.
2. The Company's main markets
are the United States, the
European Union, and Asia,
such regions require products
to be in compliance with
environmental protection
regulations. Thus, the
Company’s factories have
obtained 1SO14001
environmental system
management certification.
3. The Company will adopt the
ISO14064 standard from
2023 and conduct inventories
of greenhouse gas emissions
according to the 1ISO14064-!
standard to monitor the
impact facing the Company'

-

)

operations. We will continue
to implement carbon
reduction measures according
to the carbon inventory
results.

4. We will draw up an annual
internal audit plan to audit
the Company's compliance
with the applicable
environmental laws and
regulations and audit each
operating process to see if it
is in compliance with the
regulations.

Society Workplace safety 1. Factories passed the
Employee recruitment and ISO45001 occupational
training health and safety
management system
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Risk management strategies and
measures

Issues Risk assessment

verification.

2. We regularly hold
firefighting exercises and
offer occupational safety
training per year to train

| =N

employees' ability to respon
to emergencies and manage
their own safety.

Product safety All the Company’s products arg
in compliance with various laws
and regulations promulgated by
the government and the EU RoHS
Directive without containing any
hazardous substances.

Meanwhile, to ensure the quality
of our customer service, we hav

D

1)

set up a customer service hotlin
and website and regularly conduct
customer service satisfaction

D

surveys per year to enhance the
partnerships with our customers,
To transfer commodity liability
risks, reduce property losses, and
improve product safety, the
Company has purchased produc
liability insurance.

~t

Corporate governance Socioeconomic and legalThrough the establishment of a
compliance governance organization and thg

1%

implementation of an internal
control mechanism, the Company
ensures that all personnel and
operating procedures comply with
relevant laws and regulations.

Strengthen the functions gfPlan relevant training and provide
directors the latest regulations for directors.
In addition, director liability
insurance is provided for directors
to protect them from lawsuits or
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Issues

Risk assessment

Risk management strategies ar
measures

nd

claims.

Stakeholder
communication

Establish various communicatiotr
channels, communicate, and
reduce opposition and
misunderstanding. Establish an
investor mailbox, which will be
handled and responded to by th

D

spokesperson.
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(V1)

Performance in ethical corporate management instamsy with the “Ethical Corporate

Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEked Companies”

Assessment items

Actual governance

Variation from the

Ethical Corporate

Practice Principle

Management Be$

v)

Yes| No Summary description for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
and the reasong
I.  Business Integrity Policy andg
action plans
() Has the Company 4 () The Company has formulated the|Consistent with
established policies for “Ethical Corporate Management |the “Ethical
ethical corporate Best Practice Principles” and Corporate
management approved by “Procedures for Ethical Management Bes
board of directors and stated Management and Guidelines for |Practice Principle
such policies and practices Conduct”, and the Board of for TWSE/TPEX
its regulations and external Directors and senior managementListed Companieg
documents and in the shall follow these regulations. Ang
commitment made by the will be clearly stated on the
board of directors and senipr Company’s website
management to actively (http://www.gemservices.com)
implement such policies? under Investors/Company
Regulations and the MOPS.
(I) Has the Company 4 (I) The Company has formulated the
established an assessmen “Procedures for Ethical
mechanism of risk from Management and Guidelines for
unethical behavior to Conduct”, which are based on
regularly analyze and assess preventive measures in accordange
business activities with with the subparagraph of Paragraph
higher risk of involvement ip 2, Article 7 of the “Ethical
unethical behavior and Corporate Management Best
preventive programs for Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX
unethical behaviors Listed Companies”. It requires
containing at least the implementations for all relevant
preventivemeasures stated units.
paragraph 2, Article 7 of the
“Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX-Listed
Companies”? 4 (1) The Company has formulated the
(1) Has the Company “Procedures for Ethical
established in the preventiye Management and Guidelines for

programs the operating
procedures for unethical
behavior prevention,
penalties and grievance
systems of breaching the

guidelines for conduct, and

Conduct” to define the plan to
prevent unethical behaviors,
including procedures, guidelines,
punishment and complaint systemn
for violations. Take preventive
measures fopusiness activities wit

—

v)
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Actual governance

Assessment items

Variation from thg
Ethical Corporatg
Management Bej
Practice Principle

v)

Yes| No Summary description for TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companie
and the reasons
implemented and higher risks of ethical conducts.
periodically review them?
II. Proper enforcement of
business integrity Consistent with
() Does the Company have the v () The Company regularly evaluatesthe “Ethical
integrity of the trade the ethical record of the Corporate
counterparty assessed and counterparty. It also requires Management Bes
with the code of integrity compliance with ethical Practice Principle
expressed in the contract management to be included in thefor TWSE/TPEX
signed? terms of the contract when it signslLasted Companieg
contract with others to prevent
unethical conduct.
(I Has the Company v (I The Company designates the
established a dedicated Secretariat of the Board of Directars
(concurrent) unit to as a full-time unit to promote
implement ethical corporate corporate ethical management, and
management under Board pf regularly (once a year) report its
Directors and report implementation to the Board of
regularly (at least once a Directors.
year) to BOD the status of
implementation and
supervision of ethical
management policy and
preventive programs of
unethical behavior?
(Il1) Does the Company have 4 (1) The Company’s “Procedures for
developed policies to prevg Ethical Management and Guidelines
conflicts of interest, providg for Conduct” clearly requires that |f
adequate channel for any director or a juristic person
communication, and represented by a director is an
substantiated the policies? interested party with respect to any
agenda item, the director shall stgte
the important aspects of the
interested party relationship at thg
respective meeting. When the
relationship is likely to prejudice the
interests of the Company, the
director may not participate in
discussion or voting on that agenda
item, and further, shall enter recusal
during discussion and voting on that

item; If any employee or the
representative of juristic person h

—t

v)

a conflict of interest, relevant
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Actual governance

Assessment items

Variation from thg
Ethical Corporatg
Management Bej
Practice Principle

v)

Yes| No Summary description for TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companie
and the reasons
matters must be reported to both the
immediate supervisor and
Secretariat of the Board of
Directors, and the immediate
supervisor should provide
appropriate guidance.
(IV) Has the Company v (IV) The Company has established an
established an effective accounting system and internal
accounting system and an control policies based on the
internal control system for implementation of ethical
the internal audit unit to management, and the effectivenepgs
establish related audit of the operation is regularly
programs based on the reviewed by CPA and internal
results of risk assessment of auditors.
involvement in unethical
behavior to audit and prevg
the compliance with the
preventive programs of
unethical behavior or hire g
CPA to perform the audit?
(V) Has the Company organized v (V) The Company's 2022 internal
corporate management education and training on ethical
internal and external management issues: There were p
education and training total of 808 person-times of the
programs on a regular basis? Hefei factory took the course
Business Conduct and Code of
Ethics,totaling 404 hour:
[ll. The operations of the
Company’s Report System Consistent with
() Does the Company have a| v () The Company incorporates ethicajthe “Ethical

specific report and reward
system stipulated, a
convenient report channel

established and a responsiple

staff designated to handle {
individual being reported?

management to employee
performance evaluations and hunj
resources policy, establishes clea
and effective systems for rewards
penalties, and complaints, and
provides legitimate reporting
channels. If any personnel of the
Company seriously violates ethicg
conduct, the Company shall dismi
the personnel from his or her
position or terminate his or her
employment in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations of

Corporate
Rranagement Bes
IPractice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX

Listed Companieq

|l
SS

the personnel policy and procedur

—

UvJ

es
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Actual governance Variation from thq
Ethical Corporatg

Assessment items _ Practice Principle
Yes| No Summary description for TWSE/TPEx

Listed Companie
and the reasong

(I Has the Company 4 (I The Company has established
established standard standard investigation and handling
operating procedures for procedures for reported matters, and
investigating reported even properly keep and manage the
follow-up measures to be reports confidentially during the
taken after the investigation investigation process.

of the Company.

was completed, and related
confidentiality mechanismg?

Management Be$t

v)

—

5

() Has the Company taken 4 () The Company encourages
proper measures to protect employees to report unethical
the whistle-blowers from conducts and fulfill its duty of
suffering any consequence protecting the whistleblower that
reporting an incident? retaliation or victimisation of
whistleblowers will not happen.
IV. Enhanced information The “Procedures for Ethical Managemgdonsistent with
disclosure and Guidelines for Conduct” have beerfthe “Ethical
Does the Company have thg v announced and disclosed on the MOP®&orporate
contents of corporate and Company website. Management Bes
management and its Practice Principle
implementation disclosed on for TWSE/TPEX
the website and MOPS? Listed Companieq
V. Where a Company has worked Ethical Corporate ManageGuiding Principles in accordance with

“Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Elples for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies”, pleasq
expressly elaborate on the differential gap betvibersubstantial performance and the Practice
Principle:

The Company has formulated the “Procedures forcBtiManagement and Guidelines for Conduct”,
which are based on preventive measures in accadaitic the “Ethical Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Compani@siere is no significant difference.

the

VI.

Other vital information that helps to understanel pinactice of business integrity of the Compang.(e.
the review and revision of the best-practice pphes of the Company in business integrity).

When the Company conduct business with suppliespheld and advocate the ethical principle to
suppliers. In addition, the Company will promoteétevant meetings or employee education and

training from time to time to establisn ethical corporate cultul

(VIl)  Where the Company has formulated the corporate rgawee principles and related
regulations, it should disclose its inquiry method
The Company has formulated Corporate Governance Bexctice Principles and
related regulations shown in the following:

1. Parliamentary Procedure for the Shareholders Mgetin
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Procedures for Election of Directors

Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets
Procedures for Loaning Funds to Others

Procedures for Making of Endorsements/Guarantees
Audit Committee Charter

Remuneration Committee Charter

Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Priasipl

. Procedures for Ethical Management and Guideline€mduct

. Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles

. Codes of Ethical Conduct

. Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independeattors

. Self-Regulatory Rules on Disclosure of Merger ardjisition Information
15.

Self-Evaluation or Peer Evaluation of the Boardokctors

Inquiry method: Please visit the Investor page/ Ragpns in the Company’s website

(http://www.gemservices.com), or to the Corporat&@nance/ Corporate Governance

Structure/ The Relevant Rules and Regulations op&ate Governance of the MOPS

(http://mops.twse.com.tw).

(V)  Any other material information that would affordatter understanding of the status of
the Company’s implementation of corporate goveraanc
1. The Company has established “Procedures for HandIiMaterial Inside
Information” as the basis for the Company’s intématerial information handling
and disclosure mechanism for directors, managetsafiemployees to follow.
2. The Company regularly arranges senior executivepauicipate in corporate
governance training courses, and the progressedfaiming is as follows:
Title Name Date Organizer Course name TLammg
ours
Forward-looking 2.5 hours
Senior finance September compliance trends and
Jui-Ping ,Wang b Deloitte & Touche | corporate governance
manager 8, 2022 .
under ESG trends in
Taiwan
Release Conference 3 hours
Senior finance Jui-Ping Wan September | Taiwan Stock 2022: Reference guide
manager 9. 9 29, 2022 Exchange for Independent Director
& Audit Committee
2022 Insider Equity 3 hours
Senior finance Jui-Pina Wan October 5, | Taiwan Stock Trading Legal
manager 9. 9 2022 Exchange Compliance Seminar
(Virtual Seminar)
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Training

Title Name Date Organizer Course name
hours

Senior finance October 21, | Taiwan Stock
manager 2022 Exchange

2022 Insider Trading 3 hours
Prevention Seminar
(Virtual Seminar)

Jui-Ping ,Wang

(IX)  Hands-on performance in the internal control pebci

1. Internal Control Statement

The following declaration is based on the 2022-gatfit over the Company’s internal control policies
The Company is aware that the establishment, elecuand maintenance of its internal contrg

VI.

GEM Services, Inc.
Declaration of Internal Control Policies
Date:March 22, 2023

policies are the responsibilities the Company’srdaa directors and managers. These policies wegre
implemented throughout the Company. The purposw iprovide a reasonable assurance on the

achievement of the goals, including the effectigsnend efficiency of operations (including

profitability, performance and security of assa;.) and the report with effectiveness, timelines
transparency, and compliance with the relevantiregqents and regulations and laws.

Internal control policies are prone to limitatioddo matter how robustly designed, effective intérn
control policies merely provide reasonable asswancthe achievements of the three goals abo
Furthermore, environmental and situational changay affect the effectiveness of internal contrg
policies. However, self-supervision measures wan@emented within the Company’s internal contrg
policies to facilitate immediate rectification ongecedural flaws have been identified.
Pursuant to the “Regulations Governing Establishimein Internal Control Systems by Publid
Companies” (hereinafter referred to as “Governimgations”), the Company should study and judy
whether the Company’s internal control system feative in design and implementation. The criter
introduced by “The Governing Principles” consistefl five major elements, each representing
different stage of internal control: 1. Control eomment, 2. Risk evaluation and response,
Procedural control, 4. Information and communiaatid. Supervision. Each element further contai
several items. Please refer to “The Governing kpies” for details.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned judgiteans for the internal control system tg

evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s interoitrol system in both design and implementatiop.

On the grounds of the outcome of evaluation meetiom the preceding Paragraph, the Compa
firmly holds that the Company’s internal controlsegm as of December 31, 2022 (includin
supervisory control and management over subsidjaritably the effect of the business operatio
extent of accomplishment of the target where tipenteproves trustworthy, transparent in real tithe,
design and implementation of the Company’s intew@aitrol system proves effective, capable
assuring accomplishment of the aforementioned targe

This declaration forms part of the main contentshef Company’s annual report and prospectus, &
shall be disclosed to the public. Any illegal mgesentation or non-disclosure relating to the ijgub

e

je

nd

e

statement above are subject to the legal consegseamuder Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of th
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Securities and Exchange Act.
VII. The present Declaration of Internal Control Systems granted a pass in the board of directars
meeting convened on March 22, 2023. That boardirectrs meeting was attended by 9 directors
among whom_0 director objected. All present diresctonanimously responded with consent to the
contents of the Declaration. This is the anotheéntpduly clarified herewith.

GEM Services, Inc.

Chairman: Chu-Liang, Cheng

President: Yen-Chiang, Tang
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2. Audit of the internal control policies by CPA shdisclose the accountant’s review
report

Not Applicable.

X) In the latest year and up to the publication dédtde annual report, the Company and
inside personnel having been penalized for viohatbthe requirements in the internal
control system, the major defects and correctiv@acompleted: None.

(XI)  In the latest year and up to the publication ddt¢he annual report, board and the
shareholders’ meeting had resolved significantsiecs

1. Important resolutions and implementation of thershalders’ meeting

Date Term Significant decisions resolved Performance
June 27, 2022 General| 1. Approved the 2021 1. The resolution was
meeting of

Consolidated Business approved.
Report and Consolidated
Financial Statements.

shareholders

2. Approved the 2021 2. The resolution was
earnings distribution approved that the
proposal. Chairman was delegated

to set July 19, 2022 as
the ex-dividend record
date and August 3, 2022
as the payout date in
accordance with the
Company's Articles of
Incorporation. (Cash
dividend of NT$5.5 per

share).

3. Amendment of the 3. The resolution was
Articles of Association approved.

4. Amendment of the 4. The resolution was
“Procedures for approved passed and
Acquisition and Disposal handled in accordance
of Assets” with the revised

procedures.
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2. Significant decisions resolved in board meeting

Date (period)

Significant decisions resolved

March 22, 2022
5th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

P ©

11.

12.

13.

14.

Proposal for the 2021 employee compensation pravite
accordance with the Articles of Association.

[Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Appropriae
2021 director compensation in accordance with ketic
34.1.

[Proposal from Audit Committee] 2021 annual
consolidated business report and consolidateddiahn
report.

[Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s 2021
earnings distribution with cash dividend.

[Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s 2021
earnings distribution table.

[Proposal from Audit Committee] 2021 annual intérna
control policies effectiveness assessment and ideida of
internal control policies.

[Proposal from Audit Committee] Proposal to amemal t
“Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of &ss
Amendment of the “Articles of Association”.
Amendment of the “Corporate Governance Principles”

. Proposal to amend the “Sustainable Development Best

Practice Principles”.

Proposal to convene the 2022 general meeting of
shareholders.

[Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Distribution
proposal for the 2021 manager compensation.
[Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Distribution
proposal for the 2021 director compensation.
[Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Salary
adjustment proposal of the Company’s managers.

May 11, 2022

6th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

[Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s cditaded
financial report for the First quarter of 2022.

August 10, 2022
7th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

[Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s cditaded
financial report for the Second quarter of 2022.

November 9, 2022
8th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

[Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s
consolidated financial report for the Third quadé2022.
Amendment of the Company’s “Procedures for Handling
Material Inside Information”.

Proposal to formulate the 2023 internal audit mathe
Company and its subsidiaries.

Proposal of the 2023 annual business plan.
[Proposal from Audit Committee] CPA independence
assessment and 2023 remuneration recommendation.

December 19, 2022
9th meeting of the

[Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Proposaldjoist
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)

(X1

Date (period)

Significant decisions resolved

5th Board of
Directors

salary of the Company’s managers.

February 23, 2023
10th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

Amendment of the “Articles of Association”.

Proposal to amend the “Parliamentary Procedur¢héor
Shareholders Meeting”.

Proposal to amend the “Rules of the Procedure ¢ard®
of Directors Meetings”.

Amendment of the “Corporate Governance Principles”.
Proposal to convene the 2023 general meeting of
shareholders.

March 22, 2023
11th meeting of the
5th Board of
Directors

. Proposal for the 2022 employee compensation pravide

accordance with the Articles of Association.

. [Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Appropriae

2022 director compensation in accordance with kettic
34.1.

. [Proposal from Audit Committee] 2022 annual cordatied

business report and consolidated financial report.

. [Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s 2022

earnings distribution with cash dividend.

. [Proposal from Audit Committee] The Company’s 2022

earnings distribution table.

. [Proposal from Audit Committee] 2022 annual intérna

control policies effectiveness assessment and ideida of
internal control policies.

. [Proposal from Audit Committee] Proposal to amema t

Internal Control System Self-assessment Operating
Procedures.

. [Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Distribution

proposal for the 2022 manager compensation.

. [Proposal from Remuneration Committee] Salary

adjustment proposal of the Company’s managers.

In the latest year and up to the publication ddt¢he annual report, if directors or
supervisors have different opinions on major reswhs approved by the Board of

Directors with records or written statements, tt@mtontents

None.

In the latest year and up to the publication ddtéhe annual report, the assembled
information of discharge or resignation by the Campfor the Company’s Chairman,

-121 -




President, chief accountant, financial supervisoternal audit officer, governance
officer and research & development officer

None.
V. Information in public fees of the Certified PubAccountant Association

() Information in public fees of the Certified PubAccountant Association

Unit: NT$ thousand

Auditor’s Name of CPA Audit Non-audit
: auditing . . Total | Remark
firm CPA . remuneration| remuneration
period
Keng-Hsi, | January 1,
Deloitte & Chang 2022 to 5 380 1.060 6.440| None
Touche Chien-Hsin, December
Hsieh 31, 2022

Please specify the content of non-audit remunerabld $600 thousand for transfer
pricing report, NT$320 thousand for Master File, 8440 thousand for typing, printing

and transportation expenses.

(1 When changes its accounting firm and the audit peéd for the financial year in which
the change took place are lower than those paidherfinancial year immediately
preceding the change :

None.

(1 When the audit fees paid for the current finangedr are lower than those paid for the
immediately preceding financial year by 10 peraamnore:

None.
VI. Changes in CPA
None.

VII. Where the Company’s chairperson, president or amyagerial officer in charge of finance or
accounting matters has in the latest year helds#ipo at the accounting firm of its certified
public accountant or at an affiliated enterpriseswwé¢h accounting firm, the name and position
of the person, and the period during which thetpmsiwas held

None.

VIII. In the latest year and up to the publication d&tdn@ annual report, the fact regarding transfer
or pledge stock equity by the Company’s directstgervisors and managerial officers and
key shareholders holding over 10% in shareholding
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() Change in equity
Unit: shares
2023
2022 From January 1, 2023 t¢
April 1, 2023
Title Name Increase Increase
Increase | Increase .
(decrease) i (decrr]ease) ! (decrease) in(decrease) !
shares held _,>Hares shares held shares
collateralizeg collateralizegl
Chairman Chu-Liang, Cheng 0 0 0 0
Vice Chairman Wen-Hsing, 0 0 0 0
Huang
Director Tay-Jen, Chen 27,000 0 0 0
Director Wei-Chung, Pan 0 0 0 0
Director Elite Advanced. 0 0 0 0
Laser Corporatior
Repr_esentatwe of Tien-Tseng, Sung 0 0 0 0
juristic perso
Independent Director| Shu, Yeh 0 0 0 0
Independent Director| Sen-Tai, Wen 0 0 0 0
Independent Director|Wen Chen, Huan 0 0 0 0
Independent Director| Yueh-Li, Lee 0 0 0 0
President Yen-Chiang, Tang 0 0 0 0
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai)/ Vice Wei-Bing, Chu 0 0 0 0
President
Business Integration
Department/ AssistanChun-Ching, Wu D 0 0 0
General Manager
Material ManagemenfHeng-Yu, Liu
Department/ Assistant 0 0 0 0
General Manager
GEM Electronics Wel, Zhuang
(Hefei) / Operations
Assistant General 0 0 0 0
Manager
Accounting manager| Jui-Ping ,Wang 0 0 0 0

(In

None.

()

None.

IX. Relationship information, if among the Company’sld@est shareholders any one is a related

Equity transfer information:

Equity pledge information:

party or a relative within the second degree o$kip of another
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April 1, 2023; Unit: shares
The name and relationship
information, if among the
. Shareholdings of spous&hares held in the namels0 Ia_rgest shareholders 9
Shares held in own name X One is a related party, or|isRemark
and underage childre of others .
Name the spouse or a relative
within the second degree
kinship of another.
. Ratio of . Ratio of . Ratio of .
Quantity Shareholding Quantity Shareholding Quantity Shareholding Name Relatior
Elite Advanced | g5 849 451 51.009 0 0% 0 0% - -
Laser Corporation
Elite Advanced Father
Laser Corporation Cheng Laura| and
Representative: o . o daughter
Chu-Liang, Chenly 207,00( 0.1694 232,99( 0.18% 0 0%
Father
Cheng Andrew
and son
All Nippon
Airways Trading 3,974,382 3.089 0 0% 0 0% — —
Co., Ltd.
All Nippon
Airways Trading
Co., Ltd. 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% - —
Representative:
Hiroyuki Kunibu
The Highclere
International
Investors Smalley 5 17 554 2.69% 0 0% 0 0% - -
Companies Fund
under custody of
HSBC Bank
Tzu-Chiang, 1,200,009 0.93% 0 0% 0 0% - -
Huang
Elite Advanced
Laser Father
L Corporation
0, 0, 0,
Cheng Laura 1,118,262 0.87 0 0% 0 0% Representative and
Chu-Liang, daughter
Cheng
Elite Advanced
Laser Fath
i ather
Cheng Andrew 1,008,064 0.78% 0 0% 0 0o COTPOYation.
Representativel 5nd son
Chu-Liang,
Cheng
Yung-Shen, Hsieh 951 00( 0.749 0 0% 0 0% - -
Kun-Ming, Lin 907,50( 0.709 0 0% 0 0% — —
Chu, Cheng 900,00( 0.70% 0 0% 0 0% — —
Grandeur Peak
Emerging Market
Opportunities 881,00( 0.68% 0 0% 0 0% - -
Fund under
custody of HSBC
Bank
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X. Investments jointly held by the Company, the Conysadirectors, supervisors, managers, and
enterprises directly or indirectly controlled byettCompany. Calculate shareholding in
aggregate of the above parties

Investment held by
directors, supervisors, af
Invested by the Company the person, and the, and Aggregate investment
Investees . -
directly or indirectly
(Note) .
controlled enterprises
Quantit Ratio of Quantit Ratio of Quantit Ratio of
y Shareholding y Shareholding y Shareholding
Mitsubishi
Electric GEM
Power Device - 20% - - - 20%
(Hefei) Co.,
Ltd.

Note: Investment accounted by equity method byGbmpany.
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Chapter IV

Share capital and shares

Funding Status

() Sources of share capital
1. Formation of capital
Unit: thousand shares; NT$
Price of Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remark ———
Year | issue . . Sources of | Paid in properties
(NT$) Quantity] ~ Amount | Quantity - Amount share capitg]l other than cash p(eliligi re
1998 | USD Cash capital
to 0.010 | 400,000 400,000 5,559 5’559'19mcreasep — USD 0.001
1999 | -0.600
20001 USD Exercise of
to 0.325 11,800,000 1,800,000 6,464 6,464.4()8tock ontions — USD 0.00]
2009 | -2.220 ption3
2012 - 200,000 200,000 (114 (114.17)Purchased — USD 0.00]
2012| YSP | 200,000 200000 7,309  7,300.29FXercise of - USD 0.00]
0.001 stock optiong
2013| YSP | 200,000 200,000 9209  9,200.2¢FXercise of _ USD 0.00]
0.001 stock optiong
2014| YSP | 200000 200,000 12772  12,772.2¢7X€rcise of _ USD 0.00]
0.001 stock optiong
2014 | YSP | 200,000 200,000 13,272 13272.2¢FXErcise of — USD 0.001
0.471 stock optiong
2014 | YSP | 200,000 200,000 13,300 13,300 2¢FXErcise of — USD 0.001
0.400 stock optiong
2015| YSP | 200,000 200,000 14,959 14,959 2¢-*ercise of _ USD 0.00]
0.600 stock optiong
Series A~H Preferred stock
1998 | UsD Isiltf'ed Seriq
to 0.500 | 500,000 500,000 28,447 28,447.6}6‘ — USD 0.001
[Preferred
2007 | -3.250
stock
Series | Preferred stock
USD Issued Serie$
2012 0.235 100,000 100,000 78,8471 78,847.64 Preferred — USD 0.00]
' stock
Par value changed to NT$10
Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remark
Year / Price of Par value
issue . . Sources of | Paid in propertieq
month (NT$) Quantityl Amount |Quantity Amount share capita] other than cash p(e|<I igsalre
June,| Change 150,000600,000,000 94,103 941,027,31p — — NT$10
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Year

Authorized capital Paid-up capital Remark

Price of

issue . . Sources of | Paid in propertieq
(NTS) Quantity] ~ Amount | Quantity - Amount share capital other than cash

Par value
per share
(NTS)

2015

in par
value

April,
2016

Cash capita
increase of
ONT$125,480
thousand

NT$48 | 150,00(1,500,000,000106,6511,066,507,31 — NT$10

August]
2018

Capitalizatiof

of retained
NT$10 150,0001,500,000,000117,3161,173,158,040@%?335622 - NT$10
thousand

(Note 3)

July,
2019

Capitalizatiof

of retained
NT$10 150,0001,500,ooo,000129,04"1,290,473,840,5?&'?5’53;1;3 - NT$10
thousand

(Note 4)

Note 1: The Company’s preferred stock totaled 7B@821 shares, all of which were converted into

common shares on June 23, 2015. Preferred stockcareerted into common shares

according to the conversion ratios.

Note 2: The Company’s changed the par value of shelne from US$0.001 to NT$10 during the

shareholder meeting on June 23, 2015. After thengdathe original shareholder’s

shareholding ratio remained the same.

Note 3: 10,665,073 new shares were issued on AUgi18 with the TWSE approval on August 1,

2018.

Note 4: 11,731,580 new shares were issued on ylp@19 with the TWSE approval on July 22,

2019.
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2.

Share category

March 31, 2023; Unit: shares

Authorized capital
Share categoty . . Remark
Outstanding shares Unissued shares  Total
Ordinary TWSE listed
129,047,384 120,952,616 250,000,000
shares stock
3. Information on self-registration system: None.
(1 Shareholders structure
April 1, 2023; Unit: shares; %
Foreign
Shareholdel . . .
Governmen Financial Other . Institutions
structure . | L . |Individualg Total
. institutions| institutions| corporations and
Quantities .
foreigners
Head count D 0 44 9,905 84 10,033
Number of sharg
0 0 67,888,96#44,697,881 16,460,539129,047,38%
held (share)
Ratio of
. 0 0 52.60 34.65 12.75 100.0(
Shareholding (%)

The total shareholding ratio of people, juristicgmn, group, or other institution of the

Mainland Area, or a company in which the same havested in a third jurisdiction in

accordance with Article 3 of the Regulations GovegrPermission for People from the

Mainland Area to Invest in the Taiwan Area is 0.39%

()
1.

Equity dispersion

Ordinary shares

April 1, 2023; Unit: shares

Class of Shareholding - mPer Of Quantity of | o tio of Shareholding (%)
Shareholders shareholding
1to 999 2,570 366,882 0.29
1,000 to 5,000 6,110 11,496,153 8.91
5,001 to 10,000 693 5,367,002 4.16
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Class of Shareholding Number of Quantity of Ratio of Shareholding (¢
Shareholders shareholding

10,001 to 15,000 214 2,670,649 2.07
15,001 to 20,000 131 2, 358,388 1.83
20,001 to 30,000 102 2,574,369 1.99
30,001 to 40,000 38 1,333,236 1.03
40,001 to 50,000 31 1,426,840 1.17
50,001 to 100,000 66 4,718,762 3.66
100,001 to 200,000 40 5,570,127 4.32
200,001 to 400,000 20 5,265,491 4.08
400,001 to 600,000 2 1,076,430 0.83
600,001 to 800,000 4 2,931,397 2.27
800,001 to 1,000,000 6 5,307,490 4.11
1,000,001 to 6 76,584,168 59.35
9,999,999,999
Total 10,0338 129,047,384 100.0(¢

2. Preferred stock

None.
(IvV)  List of major shareholders
April 1, 2023; Unit: shares; %
Shareholding Quantity of Ratio of

Name of major shareholders: shareholding Shareholding
Elite Advanced Laser Corporation 65,809,451 51.00¢9
All Nippon Airways Trading Co. Ltd. 3,974,382 3.08¢9
The Highclere International Investors Smaller Comes

. 3,474,000 2.699
Fund under custody of HSBC Bank (Taiwan)
Tzu-Chiang, Huang 1,200,009 0.93¢
Cheng Laura 1,118,262 0.87¢9
Cheng Andrew 1,008,064 0.789
Yung-Shen, Hsieh 951,000 0.749
Kun-Ming, Lin 907,500 0.709
Chu, Cheng 900,000 0.70¢
Grandeur Peak Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund
under custody of HSBC Bank (Taiwan) 881,000 0.68%
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V) Market price per share, net value, dividend anelviaatt data over the last two years

Unit: shares; NT$

Yeal From January 1,
ltem 2021 2022 | 2023 to March 31
2023 (Note 5)
Before retroactively
: 132.50 96.50
_ adjustment
Highest - 78.50
After retroactively
: 132.50 96.50
_ adjustment
Market price :
Before retroactively
per share _ 65.50 59.50
adjustment
Lowest - 68.30
After retroactively
: 65.50 59.50
adjustment
Average 88.96 78.87 73.29
Before dividend distribution 32.00 33.66 NA
Net value pe 2816
share After dividend distribution 26.50 ' NA
(Notel)
Weighted average outstanding shares
129,047 129,047 129,047
(thousand shares)
Earnings per Before retroactively
, _ 6.65 7.21 NA
share Earnings |adjustment
per share |After retroactively
_ 6.65 7.21 -
adjustment
Cash dividends 5.5 5.5 -
Dividends pe|Stock From earnings - - -
share dividends |From capital reserves - - -
Cumulative undistributed dividends - - -
Analysis of |P/E ratio (Note 2) 13.38 10.94 -
investment |Price to dividends ratio (Note 3) 16.17 14.34 -
returns Cash dividend yield (Note 4) 6.18% 6.97% -

Note 1: The Company’s 2022 cash dividend has bestrbdited by the resolution of the Board of
Directors on March 22, 2023, and the remaining iegs distributions are yet to be
approved by the shareholders’ general meeting.

Note 2: P/E ratio = Average closing price per sareéhe year / earnings per share.

Note 3: Price to dividend ratio = Average closirrg@ per share for the year / cash dividends per
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share.

Note 4: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend pershaaverage closing price per share for the
year.

Note 5: The net value per share and earnings aee should be filled with the information audited
(reviewed) by CPA in the latest quarter as of thblipation date of the annual report; the

remaining should be filled with the current yeatata as of March 31, 2023.

(VI)  The Company’s dividend policy and fact of implenatiun thereof.

1. The dividend policy stipulated in Article 34.2 bt Articles of Association:

As the Company is in the growing stage, the divibdistribution may take the form

of a cash dividend and/or stock dividends and stadé into consideration the

Company’s capital expenditures, future expansiam$land financial structure and

funds requirement for sustainable development netds

The Board of Directors shall formulate an earningtribution proposal in the

following manner and sequence. In the case of stiatebution, a resolution shall

be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting; in e ©f cash distribution, the Board

of Directors may be authorized to make a speciablation and report to the

shareholders’ meeting. The Board of Directors stoathulate the profit distribution

plan in the following manner and order:

(1) the Company shall set aside all taxes that legatijyired to be paid; and

(2) offset its losses in previous years that have eenlpreviously offset; then

(3) set aside a Legal Reserve in accordance with th@iggble Public Company
Rules, unless the accumulated amount of such LRgsérve has reached the
total paid-up capital of the Company; and

(4) set aside a special capital reserve, if one isireduin accordance with the
Applicable Public Company Rules or as requestethéyauthorities in charge;

(5) Except otherwise stipulated by the applicable |and the Applicable Public
Company Rules, the Company may take into considerdhe circumstances
and development stage of the Company, in respamsany future funding
requirement and long term financial planning, wisiédisfying the shareholders
expectation in respect of cashflow, propose prahistribution plan in

connection with the retained earnings available dstribution (i.e. the net
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(Vi)

(VI

profit after the deduction of the items (1) to @)ove plus the previously
cumulative undistributed retained earnings), fqorapal at the meetings of the
shareholders; the distribution of retained earnmg@y proceed by way of cash
dividend or by applying such sum in paying up il funissued Shares for
allotment and distribution credited as fully paid-pro rate to the Members,
and the total amount of Dividends shall not be lothan 10% of the net profit
of the then current year after deducting the itéigo (4) above, and provided
the total amount of cash dividend to be distribugkdll be no lower than 10%
of the aggregate dividend distributed to sharehsldad no more than 100% of
the aggregate dividend distributed to shareholders.

2. Dividend distribution:

The Company’s 2022 earnings distribution in cashdeénd was approved by the
Board of Directors on March 22, 2023. A cash dindleof NT$709,760,612 was
allocated from the distributable earnings. Basedtlmn current share capital of
129,047,384 shares, a cash dividend of NT$5.5hmmeswvas distributed.

The impact of issuance of bonus shares propos#ukipresent shareholders’ meeting
upon the Company’s business performance and eapeinghare

The Company distributed cash dividends in the yBaws, it is not applicable.

Compensation to the employees, directors and sigoesv

(The Company has set up an Audit Committee to ceptlae supervisor)

1. The percentage or scope of compensation for emgéogead directors as stated in

Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association

The Company shall set aside between 5% to 10%sainhual profits as bonus to
employees of the Company and set aside 3% (in@usivless of its annual profits
as bonus to Directors, provided however that then@any shall first offset its losses
in previous years that have not been previouslyedff

2. The basis for estimating the amount of employeeecthrs, and supervisor

compensation, for calculating the number of shamebe distributed as employee
compensation, and the accounting treatment of id@epancy, if any, between the

actual dividend amount and the estimated figunetHe current period
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(1X)

The basis for estimating the amount of employeegcthr, and supervisor
compensation, for calculating the number of shameke distributed as employee
compensation, are as described above. If therediscaepancy between the actual
distribution amount and the estimated amount, auth be treated as current profit
or loss according to the change in accounting edémand adjusted and recognized
in the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting lné tyear. If the shareholders’
meeting decides to adopt share distribution as @yepl compensation, the number
of shares to be distributed is determined by thewarhof resolution remuneration
divided by the fair value of the stock which reféosthe closing price on the day
before the resolution of the shareholders’ meetivith considering of ex-rights and

ex-dividends).

Compensation to be distributed as resolved in daedof directors

(1) Employee compensation and director compensatiotritited in cash or
shares:
Compensation to Employees - Cash: NT$92,200,000
Compensation to Directors: NT$34,000,000
There is no difference between the recognized astidh amount of the
employees’ and directors’ compensation expensssydar and the distribution
amount in the resolution of the Board of Directors.

(2) The percentage of amount of compensation to emetoye be distributed in
stocks to the aggregate total of the net profierafax as shown through the
financial statements and the aggregate total ofpemsation to employees:

Not Applicable.
The distribution of compensation for employeesediors and supervisors in the

previous year (the Company has set up an Audit Citteerio replace supervisors):
Compensation to Employees - Cash: NT$92,200,000

Compensation to Directors: NT$34,000,000

There is no difference between the recognized asticthamount of the employees’

and directors’ compensation expenses in the lastamd the distribution amount.

Repurchase of the Company’s Stock

None.

Corporate bond application
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None.

[ll. Disclosure relating to preferred stock

None.

IV. Disclosure relating to depository receipts

None.

V. Employee stock warrants

(1

(11

Handling of the Company’s employee stock optiorg tave not yet expired
None.

The names of the top ten employees holding emplogelescription warrants
authorizing purchase of the most shares, along tghcumulative number of warrants
exercised by these ten employees, as of the ptibhcdate of the annual report

None.

VI. The new shares from restricted employee stock nsimuld include the following matters

(1

(I

The processing of new restricted employee shares mat fully met the vesting
conditions as of the publication date of the anmepbrt and the impact on shareholders’
equity:

None.

Names of managers who have acquired new restrastgdoyee shares and the names
of the top ten employees who have acquired shgre® the publication date of the
annual report

None.

-134 -



VII. Disclosure on new shares issued in exchange of ottrepany shares
None.
VIII. Progress on the use of funds

For the period as of the quarter preceding the ipatdn date of the annual report, the
Company does not have the aforementnioed uncondptetielic issue or private placement of
securities where such issues and placements thratagenpleted in the latest 3 years but have

not yet fully yielded the planned benefits.
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Chapter V Business performance

I.  Content of business
() Scope of business operation

1. Major contents of the business operation undertaken

The Company is a professional power semiconductxkaging and testing
company for discrete component design, IC desigd #megrated Device
Manufacturers (IDM) to provide packaging and tegservices for Power MOSFET,

IGBT, Diodes and Power Management ICs.

2. Proportion of sales of key products

The operating revenue of the Company and its sistegd is divided into two
categories, packaging and testing revenue andsotii@e proportion of operating
revenue in the last two years is as follows:

Unit: NT$ thousand; %

2021 2022
Key products
Amount % Amount %
Packaging and testing 4,624,557 97.24 5,073,719 97.1%
Other 131,372 2.76 147,748 2.83
Total 4,755,929 100.0d 5,221,467 100.0(

3. Current products (services)

The Company is a professional power semiconductxkaging and testing
company, providing packaging and testing serviaesHower MOSFET, IGBT,
Diodes and Power Management ICs. The above prodoethainly used in servers,
white goods, remote control drones, automotivetelacs, automotive charging
piles, small industrial motors, green power conegrslievices, electric locomotives,
power supplies, lithium batteries, adapters, s®mreguipment and charging devices
for consumer electronic products, terminal appiacatproducts for displays,
motherboards, laptops, desktops, and any homeasgpk and industrial equipment
that require power systems for operation.

4.  New products (services) under development
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The Company will continue to invest in the develgomof new products and
technologies, including high-efficiency, high-v@&a applications, multi-chip
modularization, and new materials such as SiCc(silicarbide) and GaN (gallium
nitride) with new power semiconductor material proid and services. The
Company will continue to make R&D breakthrough omagess technology to
develop higher efficiency, smaller, and structupgrformance-enhanced power
management product structure requirements, furdsd the industry and other

high-performance application markets.

(1 Industrial profiles:

1. The status quo and development of the industry

Semiconductor products mainly include four categgriintegrated circuits (IC),
discrete components, sensors, and optoelectroAicsording to the latest data
released by the U.S. Semiconductor Industry AssoaigSIA), the total global
semiconductor sales in 2022 amounted to US$573librhian increase of 3.2%
from US$555.9 billion in 2021.
In terms of application category, semiconductons lba basically divided into six
categories: information electronics, communicatioglectronics, consumer
electronics, automotive electronics, industriatefenics, and military and aerospace
electronics.
Information electronic applications mainly incluB€s, such as DT, NB, Ultrabook,
iPad, and network equipment. Communication eleatr@applications are mainly
mobile phones. Consumer electronics is appliednsitely, such as white goods,
digital cameras, DTV, MP3, DVD players, and STB.
Regarding information electronic applications, tueemote work and mobile office
under the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, befbtay 2022, the demand for
commercial computers, servers, and notebooks agedito soar. Starting from July
2022, due to excessive supply, the market demamdedl down, and China-US
semiconductor trade conflicts further caused theatel to decrease.
According to the 2022 global computer market shipimeport released by Canalys,
a surveying company, annual shipments (includingkid® computers and
notebooks) reached 285 million units, a decreasksaef% compared with 2021. As
for market share, Lenovo ranked first (23.9%), dokd by Hewlett-Packard
Company (19.4%), Dell Inc. (17.4%), Apple (9.5%)SWBS (7.2%), and others
(22.5%).
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Regarding communication electronic applicationsgarnthe multiple impacts of
macroeconomic downturn, inflation, and austeribye total shipment of the global
smartphone market dropped by 11.3% to 1.21 billiaits, the lowest point since
2013. According to IDC’s data, a total of 1.2559ibil smartphones were shipped
worldwide during 2022. In terms of global smartpeomarket share, Samsung
ranked first in 2022 with shipments of 260 millionits, accounting for 21.6% of
the market share, followed by Apple, which rankedosnd with 226 million units
shipped, accounting for 18.8% of the market shAsfor Xiaomi, which ranked
third with 153.1 million smartphones shipped, actmg for 12.7% of the market
share. OPPO and vivo ranked fourth and fifth wi@8.2 million and 99 million
smartphones shipped, respectively, accounting f6%8and 8.2% of the market
share, respectively. According to IDC’s data, Samg&i and Apple's shipments
decreased by 4.1% and 4.0%, respectively, compar2821. As for three China’s
manufacturers, Xiaomi’'s shipments dropped by 19.8RPO by 22.7%, and vivo
by 22.8%. Overall, the top five manufacturers’ siplaone shipments accounted for
roughly 69.9% of the global smartphone market share

In terms of industrial and automotive electroniglagations, the industrial and
automotive electronic chips have gradually becomecoapetitive field for
semiconductor companies since 2019. The demandntirstrial automation is
increasing. Due to the carbon emission reductionicyo the demand for
programmable logic controllers, inverters, servaorg green energy, low-voltage
circuit breakers, and energy-saving auxiliary piduhas increased accordingly.
The field of automotive electronics is benefitimgrh the trend of electric vehicles.
As the body shell and the automotive entertainrsgstiem tend to be more complex,
a considerable number of semiconductor chips apeined.

Internet of Things (loT) applications can be appli@ all the six application
categories, and these six independent applicat&degories can be connected to
each other and communicate with each other thrabghoT technology or even
through cloud computing, software platforms, an@ tbrovision of back-end
services, thereby increasing much more businessrtymties. The synergy of 5G
platforms and WEB 3.0 can further facilitate thesifige development of business
opportunities and the relevant industries. The B&, WEB 3.0, and Al will drive
the future growth in demand for power semicondwsctor

IHS iSuppli, an internationally renowned marketveaying company, classifies
semiconductor components related to power manageasmpower management
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semiconductors, which can be roughly divided im0 tategories: power discrete
components and power IC.

The Company's main packaging and testing produetpawer transistors. Power
transistors have three terminals: base, colle@od emitter, which are used for
current amplification or switching. When it is uskd current amplification, it can
change a small amount of current between the ¢oHemd the emitter. When it is
used for switching, if the voltage passing throdigé base is higher than a certain
value, conduction happens, and the maximum powkrpass through. Although
this type of power transistor is small in size wiltle market scale not as large as that
of IC, it is indispensable.

Power transistors are applied in a wide range pfiegtions, such as power supplies,
transformers, automotive circuits, airbags, andlighaty lighting and electronic
ballasts. Moreover, due to the characteristicst®fswitching efficiency and low
impedance (power efficiency) is suitable for thackaging and particularly suitable
for mobile electronic products, such as mobile @spnnotebooks, or lithium
batteries. In short, it can be applied to powerveosion, power amplification,
switch, protection, and rectify. Power transistare widely used in oscillating
circuits and switching circuits. Although some ftians of power transistors can be
integrated into ICs, they still play an indispersalole in high-power circuits,
high-voltage circuits, low-noise circuits, and hifgaquency circuits.

Power management components, such as power t@assigiclude power metal
oxide semiconductor field effect transistors (MOSBvipolar power transistors,
and insulated gate bipolar transistors (IGBT). Adang to the report on power
MOSFET in an electronic information special issnelune 2014, with the increase
of power demand and the rise of energy conservatimareness, more attention has
been paid to power utilization efficiency relatedtinologies. Home appliances and
different equipment and tools used in daily lives @& various industries all include
power systems to support the operations. Powersriasion and use need to
undergo power conversion between AC and DC (Ac @dp Dc to AC), DC and
DC, or AC and AC. Power electronic components aseduin the DC-AC
conversion and the control the stability of voltagpekes. Figure 1 shows the power,
frequency, and application fields of different povedectronic components during
operation, and how to enable power conversion tabee efficient, reduce power
loss during each conversion process, and save \eiaeegthe focus of the power
electronic component research.
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Power MOSFET is the power electronic component rmostmonly used in power
conversion systems. Due to the unipolarity andagdtcontrol characteristics of
MOSFET, power MOSFET features high input impedatm®, drive power, lower
Rds (ON), higher switching speed, lower switchiogsl and a wider range of safe
operation. Due to the advantage in the switchiregdppower MOSFET can meet
the requirement of applications for a higher swiighspeed, and MOSFET,
controlled by voltage, has led to a more simplagitesf control circuits. With the
well-developed technology and due to the consiaerdbr cost, power MOSFET
are widely adopted and play the most important rofeall discrete power
components. The figure below shows its applicatiander various voltage and

current ratings.
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The power MOSFET is being developed toward low ,cbgih frequency, high
withstand voltage, low resistance, high current] low switching loss. Materials,
such as silicon carbide (SiC) and gallium nitridea) with a wide bandgap are
much better than silicon components, but their iappbn is still limited as the
problems of substrate size and prices cannot beplevaty overcome. Therefore,
power MOSFET is still being developed to improvee ticharacteristics of
components through structural improvement. The tmost widely studied
component structures are IGBT and super junctiGBT combines the advantages
of operating frequency and control circuit designtmaditional vertical double
diffused MOS (VDMOS) with the advantage of highmuttcurrent of BJT. IGBT is
suitable for applications with a frequency in tlenge of 1K to 10K and higher
power, while VDMOS is suitable for applications lihigh frequency above 10K
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and low power. Super junction is the most promisopogver MOSFET in recent
years, and its performance in low Rds (ON) is fettdr than that of VDMOS
between 400V and 1000V.

2. Association among the up-, mid- and down streams

With the evolution of the vertical integration oividion of labor and of the overall
semiconductor industry in Taiwan, the power semicmbor industry can be divided
into upstream discrete components and IC Desigdstn@am discrete components
and IC Manufacturing and Foundry and downstrearorelis components and IC
Assembly and Testing. In recent years, due to igereus development of the
semiconductor industry and the professionalizatibthe division of labor system,
many manufacturers have invested in individual pobidn process and the vertical
division of labor is clear where each has its owecsalization, completing the
structure of the upstream, midstream and downstiaaime semiconductor industry

in Taiwan. Association among the up-, mid- and deiveams:

Equipment Capital and Humar
Resources
CAD
CAE Design ! Service support
> Shipping
Luster Manufacture i Customs
7\ .~ I Science Park
Packaging Lead frame|" :
Material [ | | Wafer T :
Chemicals Testing

Source: ITIS Project of ERSO

3.  Product development trends

(1) Improvement requirements for component integratol power conversion
efficiency
Due to the constant development of microprocessbes product demand to
have smaller output voltage with extremely highrent output drive capability,
increased switching frequency, improved power cosiva efficiency and
reduced loss during low voltage output conversilhyvariations of electronic
products are aimed to be light, thin, and smalhwitevitable integration of
components. The technology of component integratdh enable multiple
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applications of products and improve product penfamce, and it is bound to
become the mainstream of the market.

(2) Requirements for current and load regulation
Power semiconductors have developed towards twaripations; products
with high voltage currents such as electromechanecpiipment requires
high-power components with higher voltage tolerafmevoltage regulation
and rectification; and electronic information pratiurequire smaller and more
precise power components for protection. With there@asing popularity of
broadband networks and the demand for communicatioducts, the demand
for power components used in communication equipngemcreasing, and as
various electronic products are gradually builthmtompatible interfaces to
communicate with each other, the importance forerurand load regulation is
more important is also increasing.

(3) Requirements for green environmental protectiorgrgy saving and carbon
reduction
The global awareness of environmental protectioergy saving and carbon
reduction is on the rise, and the demand for reb&av@nergy and clean energy
(or green energy) is extremely urgent. Solar payesreration is one of the most
important sources of renewable energy supply. Tthesdevelopment of green
energy with the idea of environmental protectioahsas solar power generation
has become an urgent development issue for thergoeat and enterprises.
On the other hand, many countries are focusingrometing the reduction of
energy consumption, and encouraging the produdimh use of equipment
with energy-saving capability and air pollution yeation. Thus, improving the
efficiency of electronic products to save energy hacome an important issue
in power management.

(4) The packaging and testing industry will lean tovgaesh oligopoly where the
market is shared by a small number of manufactures.
With the development trend of electronic terminalides getting thinner and
smaller, the price also continues to fall and ieclily suppresses the price and
profit of the packaging and testing industry, whish more dependent on
material costs. In the future, manufacturers withsufficient economic scale
will face increasingly difficult cost managemenhdaas major semiconductor
manufacturers developed and moved on with highextlenanufacturing
processes, the difficulty in the packaging techgae will also increase
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simultaneously with increase in the required capeapenditure. Thus, if
small-scale packaging and testing factories canootpy a niche market, their
competitiveness continue to decline in the futured aesulting with an

oligopoly where the market is shared by a small lImemof manufactures.

4.  Competition status

The Company specializes in the packaging and tessarvices of power

semiconductors and such service providers suchTas ACET Group Co., Ltd

(Jiangsu) and Tongfu Microelectronics Co., Ltd rgsu) still focus on

microprocessors, memories, and general logic iatedrcircuits. The business of
power semiconductor packaging and testing will itadbly have a crowding out

effect in the total production capacity allocatiand scheduling during the peak
season. Thus, in comparison, the Company’s focyzawviding services for power

semiconductor packaging and testing is an advantage

In addition, the Company’s customer base is nottéichto IDM, but also includes

IC design, and its application have expanded teswamer electronics, industrial
products, home appliances, etc. No major fluctuatiom the Company’s operation
performance will be caused by changes in the opaesatof an industry or a

product.

(1 Technology & know-how and research & developmersummary:

1. R&D expenditure in the latest year and as of thblipation date of the annual

report
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year [L
2022 As of March 31, 2023 (Note)
ltem
R&D expenditure 52,749 7,939
Consolidated net revenue 5,221,467 1,067,258
Proportion in consolidated net revenue (%) 1.01 0.74

(Note) The consolidated financial report for the first gaa of 2023 has not yet
been reviewed by CPA.

2. Technologies or products developed in the pastyeass

Q) High power products TO247 single crystal/stackedptoducts.
(2) High power products TO220/ TO263 SMD products.
3) High power product TO220FP full-pack package.
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(V)

1.

2.

(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)

R&D of GEMPACKS5060 copper sheet welding structwehinology.
R&D of SOP8 aluminum cable welding structure tedbgg.

R&D of GEM3333 aluminum cable welding and coppeeethwelding

structure technology.

Low power products TO277.

DIP23 multi-chip modular products.

Long- and short-term business development programs

Short-term development strategy and plan

(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)

R&D strategy and plan

A.

Continuously update the design process, improvdymtion efficiency,
and foresee market trend and customer demand tbhefuincrease
market share.

Utilize the Company’s accumulated technology andwdedge related
to manufacturing processes and materials to develpomers with

new applications and improve market positioning.

Marketing strategy

A.
B.
C.

Continue to develop Chinese, European and Amercankets.
Continue to further develop and maintain the Taiwearket.
Collaborate with Japanese distributors to develew ©ustomers and

obtain orders from existing customers.

Production strategy

A.

Utilize the division of labor between GEM Electrosi(Shanghai) and
GEM Electronics (Hefei) to meet the demand of cosis for
comprehensiveness and different delivery dates.

Utilize collective bargaining to place orders taver the procurement

price.

Operation and financial strategies

A.

Strengthen employee education and training to $atauemployee

potential, and improve management performance.

. Focus on the employee benefit policy and implentaet bonus and

performance bonus system to improve employee maralesynergy.

Long-term development strategy and plan

(1)

R&D strategy and plan
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A. Combine the application demand of customers, explaagroduct line
in 3C general-purpose products, 4G and 5G commumcaetworks,
and electric automotive, machines and other higtage and current
products and conduct development at the same tonealitersify
products as a Total Solution for customer demand.

B. Continue to develop key technologies and requireahufacturing
processes, and develop new-generation productsponse to industry
trends to maintain the lead in the discrete compoimelustry.

(2) Marketing strategy

A. Active collaboration with customers to strengthesrvices. Seek to
establish strategic partnerships with customers.

B. Through continuous product improvement, the prodbes been
improved to a leading position in the general amdnemodularized
power semiconductor packaging and testing mark#t savibrand image
of global technology leader established.

3) Production strategy

A. Maintain long-term partnership with automation ¢uuent
manufacturers, and become strategic partners tela®gspecialized
production processes, reduce production costsdawelop high-quality,
multi-functional and competitive products.

B. Continue to strengthen the planning and manageraemroduction
capacity and quality to achieve the best serviaustomers.

(4) Operation and financial strategies

A. Promote internationalization, strengthen the opamaand management
capabilities of international enterprises, cultezahternational talents,
and become a global enterprise.

B. Strengthen risk management and ensure stable gotgir, high

efficiency and good flexibility.

Il. Markets, production and marketing in summary
() Market analyses

1. Sales (supply) regions of the Company’s main prtgl(services)
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Unit: NT$ thousand; %

Year 2022
Region Amount Proportion
Domestic sales 2,943,100 56.36
Asia 1,699,970 32.56
Export
Europe and US 578,397 11.08
Total 5,221,467 100.00

Note: Domestic or export sales are categorizedrdowpto where the subsidiaries and the sales are
located.

Market share

The Company is a professional power semiconductrkaging and testing
company for discrete component design, IC desigd #megrated Device
Manufacturers (IDM) to provide packaging and tegservices for Power MOSFET,
IGBT, Diodes and Power Management ICs. The abowdymts are mainly used in
motherboards, laptops, desktops, servers, whitedggocemote control drones,
automotive electronics, power supplies, chargeithiuin batteries, adapters,
consumer electronics storage equipment and chardewces, terminal display
application products, and any home appliances radhastrial equipment that require
power systems for operation. Among domestic Excedisted and OTC-listed
companies, there is currently no other companyénsame industry position in the
supply chain, and the Company’s current direct ostitgr is the internal packaging
and testing department of international IDM. Acdogdto Gartner's data, the total
global semiconductor sales in 2022 amounted to @S$5billion, and the output
value of power semiconductors exceeded US$20 hillibhe Company's 2022
revenue is about NT$5.22 billion, which is lessnthe6 of the global power
semiconductor market. However, as the Company &xusn the back-end
packaging and testing process, and the revenue floenstage of the process
accounts for a relatively small portion of the tatavenue in the entire industry
chain. Thus, the market share can provide limitedlable information.

The future market supply and demand and growthnpiate

With the increase of power demand and the risenefgy conservation awareness,
more attention has been paid to power utilizatiffitciency related technologies.
According to IHS Power Supply Intelligence Servicesearch on power

semiconductor competition tools, the demand for grogemiconductors in 5G,
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automotive and industrial terminal markets is gatarly strong, whether it is 5G
communication facilities, data centers, automofpmver systems, entertainment
systems, ADAS and other automotive applicationd mitrease the demand for
power semiconductors.

Home control, automation, energy generation andriligion are the fastest
growing applications in the industrial market, atite power generation and
distribution, automation market also have a goaddast. In addition, some of best
growth in the industrial market in the short terrea &ED, IP Camera, digital video
surveillance products, Smart Grid solutions, aral ltiternet of Things (including
smart factories, industry 4.0, smart city, smataifeand smart home.) embedded
systems.

In the automotive industry, the trend of completecionicization vehicles will
continue. Connected vehicles, ADAS, car chargingtesys, and entertainment
systems are all applications that are expecteddoltrin an increase in the number
of semiconductors in each vehicle, and will inceeéise revenue share of power
semiconductors in the automotive industry (MOSFE&&sount for more than 20%

of automotive electronics applications).

Competitive niche

(2) Industry-experienced management and technology &
Since its establishment in 1998, the Company hessted in technology
development and research related to power semictordpackaging and
testing. With an international professional manageimteam and R&D
personnel and management personnel with more thgedrs of experience
in the power semiconductor industry. The Compang hacumulated
abundant experience in packaging and testing cefadds. The Company
is equipped with insight into the packaging andingsindustry trend and
can foresee the market demand. The Company canlogeveey
technologies in a timely manner to meet customedsewhich can be
translated to customer orders.

(2) Independent R&D capabilities
The Company has 61 patents for packaging and ¢esfiadvanced power
semiconductors (49 in the United States, 2 in Japad 10 in Mainland
China), all of which are self-developed. The paeate the key steps to

obtaining key technologies for products, speedipgthe development of
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new products, and ensuring the Company’s resiliencyarket fluctuations.
In addition, the turnover rate of the Company’'s R&§Brsonnel is low
where the team can integrate its own technical rtispefor each newly
developed product and increase the product’s cativeetess.

3) Customers are stable and moderately dispersed,navsd of them are
international leading IDM manufacturers and semitomtor design
companies
The business comes from international leading IDMnofacturers and
power semiconductor design companies in Europe,rismelapan, Taiwan
and South Korea. In recent years, only slight ckaragcurs for the top ten
customers, which means that the relationship witstamers is stable and
the products are at advantages in terms of prick cqurality. The total
revenue to the top ten customers accounts for aboui of the overall
revenue and the sales to the European, Americgandae, Taiwan and
Korean markets do not individually exceed 40%;ummary, the Company
does not have the risk of business concentratioa single region or a
single customer.

4) Focus on power semiconductor packaging and testing
The Company is a professional power semicondu@okaying and testing
company, providing power semiconductor packagind tasting services

for discrete component design companies, IC desigmpanies and IDM.

5. Advantages and disadvantages of development andezoweasures

Q) Favorable factors affecting the future developnuéithe Company
A. The domestic semiconductor industry has a compligtsion of labor
Taiwan’s semiconductor professional division of dabhas been
developed for many years and it has the advantafjes complete
upstream and downstream industrial chain, a higjnesieof cooperation
in professional division of labor, a significant neéit of industrial
clustering, and comprehensive supporting industrdsreover, the
wafer foundries and packaging and testing factohiage economic
scale and specialization with the manufacturing acdp, flexible
production scheduling, world-class service quaditg rapid adaptability

can meet the needs of industry trends, and prokigk-quality and
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global competitive products which will be a majache for future
development.

. IDM manufacturers’ acceleration on outsourcing endficial to the
packaging and testing industry

With the impact of the epidemic and Sino-US tradections,
international IDM are more cautious about the dstament of
packaging and testing capacity, reducing investnrentackaging and
testing capacity to expand production, but incregdihe production
capacity of wafer fabs. At the same time, IDM revifeir operating
models (i.e. Fabless or Fab-Lite) and conduct 8irat restructuring,
focusing on market development and R&D, improvingsibess
efficiency and production efficiency of the fabsncentrating resources
and reducing production costs so that IDM contitoencrease the
proportion of outsourcing. The Company focuseshengackaging and
testing of power semiconductors, provides high-tyal and
cost-effective processing services, and maintaiesecand friendly
relationships with many internationally renownednuoni@acturers for the
long-term development of the Company.

. The industry to which the product belongs and #greninal application
market will continue to grow in the future

According to IHS Power Supply Intelligence Serviesearch on power
semiconductor competition tools, the demand for grosemiconductors
in the automotive and industrial terminal marketgarticularly strong
in applications such as automotive power systenmger@inment
systems, and ADAS, driving the growth in power smnductors
demand. In addition, home control, factory equipmaatomation,
energy generation and distribution are the fagiestving applications
in the industrial market. Also, with the upcomingdustrial changes
brought about by the Internet of Things (includisgart factories,
industry 4.0, smart cities, smart retail, and sntatmes, etc.), the
demand for power semiconductors will grow.

. The life cycle of power semiconductor productsoisd, and the impact
of fluctuations in the industrial boom and bustleyis relatively small
One of the characteristics of power semiconductoduyts is that the
R&D results are cumulative, and the product lifeleyis generally 8 to
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10 years, which is longer than other IC productsus] manufacturers
can have a longer time to recover R&D expenses arel less
susceptible to economic fluctuations.

(2) Unfavorable factors affecting the future develophwdrthe Company

A. Gradual increase in Capex

The Company is engaged in packaging and testingcssrwith high
cost for the packaging and testing machines, arll wcreasing IDM
outsourcing orders which makes packaging and tgstianufacturers to
increase the purchase of the equipment, coupldd nafiid changes in
packaging and testing technology, major semicomtutianufacturers
have gradually stepped into higher-level manufactuprocesses. As
the difficulty of such packaging technology has reased
simultaneously, the required capital expendituragehbecome larger.
Thus, the increase in capital expenditures wilfease the investment
risk of the Company.

Countermeasures:

The Company has a R&D center to jointly developkpging and
testing technology with customers, and forecastketalemand. With
the trend of new packaging and testing technologythie future, it
ensures that the product technology can meet thdsnef the market
and customers and is launched at the right anditimehedule. In
addition, the Company prudently evaluates investnpéans and plans
for personnel, machines, funds, and technology, aajdsts equipment
portfolio in a timely manner according to marketdend. It adopts the
minimum investment in equipment portfolio to meeivedsified
customer needs, reduce the investment amount sksl nelated to the
development of new packaging and testing technesygand pursue
efficient use of free cash flow to maximize prafits

B. Quality and price competition with internationalNDand competitors
The demand in the power semiconductor market islestaith large
scale. The technology of international IDM is stiliproving, which are
challenges in the quality and price of packaging &sting.

Countermeasures:

To maintain product competitive advantage, the Camgpcontinuously
improve technology, maintain product quality anddiions, and devote
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great efforts in generating output yield which rseoof the best in the
industry. As a result, the cost can be controliedneadvantageous level
for an outstanding cost performance in the market.

. Difficulties in training and recruiting professidraower semiconductor
packaging and testing talents

Professional and experienced R&D personnel haveorsy land
challenging development. To establish the synefgR&D personnel,
the Company pays a higher labor cost, and the @samg R&D
personnel will have an impact on the Company.

Countermeasures:

The Company spares no effort in cultivating andrugéing R&D
personnel. In addition to providing excellent waordkienvironment and
employee benefits, it provides comprehensive ordhdraining for the
development and training of professional R&D persdrand reducing
the risk of R&D personnel turnover.

. Increase in raw material costs

The key raw materials in the packaging and tespiraress are lead
frame, epoxy resin, copper wire, aluminum wire,dgolire and other
materials, accounting for more than 30% of theltotaterial, so the
price increase in raw materials will result in grempact on the power
semiconductor packaging and testing industry. Tiygaict will result in
the Company facing greater challenges in the mamege of raw
material costs and inventory.

Countermeasures:

In addition to obtaining the information related ttee change of raw
materials and the trend, the Company improves mtogield and
reduces the impact of rising costs by solutionshsags adopting raw
material substitution, improving existing processchinology, and
carrying out advanced process technology R&D taenthe Company

to maintain a stable and profitable competitiveaadage.
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() Manufacturing process and key purposes of our jpah@roducts

1. Key purposes of our principal products

Key products Main functions and uses
Power semiconductors are used for AC/DC, DC/D¢
Power semiconductor switching rectification, converter, integrated ntons,
packaging and testing voltage controllers, and voltage regulators for pow

supply.

2. Production process of key products

= — ) e
Fronten Wafer Inspecti on Wafer Probmg Wafer Saw
4 M <: < | g
| Wure Bond | Epoxy Curing

Die Bond

BT
Backend .-_._‘_-. -I-l--l m
Molding Post Mold Cure | Mark

- ot - — —— ——— - -
ing/Si <_| | Plating | | Dejunk/Trim |

| Testing/Tape |m- Packing & o’

() Supply status of major raw materials

Major raw materials Major suppliers Supply statug
Lead frame Company A Excellent
Lead frame Company B Excellent
Lead frame Company C Excellent

(IV)  Alist of any suppliers and clients accounting I6r percent or more of the Company’s
total procurement (sales) amount in either of tmeddt recent fiscal years, the amounts
bought from (sold to) each, the percentage of fwt@aturement (sales) accounted for by
each, and an explanation of the reason for incseaisdecreases in the above figures.

1. Customers accounting for 10% or more of total sales
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Unit: NT$ thousand

2021 2022 Quarter 1 of 2023
Ratio to . Ratio to
ltem net sale Relationshig nlztaggléoi Relationshi net sale Relationshig
Name Amount| inthe to the issue Name Amount the whole to the issuer Name Amount| in the to the issue
whole o whole
year (%) year (%) year (%)
1 | Company B| 841,724 17.70 None Company B| 1,115,607 21.37 None Company B| 256,994 24.08 None
2 Company J| 483,494 10.17 None Company J 440,963 8.45 None Company J 71,951 6.74 None
3 Other 3,430,711 72.13 — Other 3,664,897 70.18 — Other 738,318 69.18 —
Net revenue| 4,755,929 100.00 Net revenue | 5,221,467 100.00 Net revenue | 1,067,258 100.00

Reasons for increase

or decrease: The busine$® @dmpany’s major customers is stable, and
there is no major change in major customers.

2. Suppliers accounting for 10% or more of total passs:
Unit: NT$ thousand
2021 2022 Quarter 1 of 2023
Ratio to Ratio to
net net Ratio to ne
Item Name Amount pqrchase Relathnshlp Name Amount pgrchase Relathnshlp Name Amount 'purchases Relathnshlp
in the |[to the issue inthe |to the issue| in the whold to the issug
whole whole year (%)
year (%) year (%)
] d Company
1 [Company A4 185,84 9.7 None Company AD| 222,375 12.94 None AD 44,511 13.6 None
2 |Company AD 144,035 759 None | Company AAl 182,121 1059 None COR"Apam 43,53( 133  None
3 Other 1,583,535 82.74 Other 1,314,675 76.47 Other 238,023 73.00
Net purchasg1,913,417 100.0( Total 1,719,171 100.0 Total 326,064 100.0d

Reasons for increase or decrease: The businebs @dmpany’s main suppliers is stable, so there
is little change in the required raw materials.

V) Production value for the last two years
Unit: NT$ thousand; thousands
Yeal 2021 2022
Production
e Capacity| Output Output Capacity| Output Output
pactty P value pacity P value

Key Products
Packaging and testing 5,691,290 5,504,911 4,624,557 7,308,600 4,909,664 5,073,71

A4
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(V1)

Sales in the last two years

Unit: NT$ thousand; thousands

Yeal

Sales volume

and value

Key Produc

2021 2022
Domestic sales Export Domestic sales Export
Volume | Value | Volume| Value | Volume | Value | Volume| Value

Packaging an

testing

3,890,707(2,618,12%51,614,2042,006,43!

3,396,286|2,795,3521,513,378,278,36f

lll. The number of employees employed, average yeasemice, average age, and education
levels for the 2 most recent fiscal years, andrduthe current fiscal year up to the publication
date of the annual report

Unit: person; %

veal 5021 2022 March 31, 2028

Item

Administrative

personnel 464 451 450
Number of R&D personnel 36 34 35
employees Technical
(person) personnel 555 551 573

Operator 1,100 1,019 945

Total 2,155 2,055 2,003
Average age 34.88 35.46 35.60
Average years of service (year) 6.66 6.69 6.95

Doctoral Degree 0.09 0.10 0.10
Academic Master’'s Degree 0.46 0.39 0.35
qualification Bachelor's Degres 34.34 35.38 35.65
(%) High school 43.95 43.64 43.08

Below high school 21.16 20.49 20.82

IV. Environmental spending

Any losses suffered by the Company in the latear yad up to the publication date of the

annual report due to environmental pollution inaide(including any compensation paid and

any violations of environmental protection laws i@gulations found in environmental

inspection, specifying the disposition dates, désjpan reference numbers, the articles of law
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violated, and the content of the dispositions), disglosing an estimate of possible expenses

that could be incurred currently and in the futanel measures being or to be taken: None.

V. Employee-employer relationship:

() Employee benefits, continuing education, trainiggirement systems, and the status of
their implementation, as well as the status of aments between labor and
management, and all measures aimed at presengniptiis and interest of employees

1. Employee benefits, continuous education and trginin

(2) Comprehensive labor insurance, health insuranogpgnsurance and other
social insurance
Employees of the Company in Taiwan will have labmurance, national
health insurance and other related benefits ord#te of employment; the
Company also purchases group insurance for emmbypeedical security;
at the same time, it is available for immediateifpmmembers to participate
at their own expense to ensure a comprehensiveqtian.
(2) Employee salary adjustment and bonus system
The Company uses performance as the standard fmuagwmg salary
adjustments and considers the CPI fluctuations dppropriate salary
adjustments.
The Company also distributes year-end bonuses ftikesl number of
months for the livelihood of employees.
3) Employee profit sharing and stock ownership
The Company has an employee stock option systemaanémployee
remuneration system to allow employees to partieipa the Company’s
operations, share in the growth and profits, aneramg risks to increase
employees’ synergy and develop team spirit.
4) Employee activity
A. Leisure
The Company regularly organizes leisure activitesh as tourism and
dinner parties to develop team bonding and teanit.spi
B. Festivals
To show the Company’s gratitude towards the emsyand celebrate
the festivals, the Company has allowances for L&y, three Chinese

festivals (Spring Festival, Dragon Boat Festivahd aMid-Autumn
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Festival), weddings and funerals, and employeédbarys; the Company
also hold year-end lottery dinners to show appt&tido employees.
(5) Health examination
In addition to the statutory health examinatiomise the Company provides
a number of free health examination items to nfe2needs of employees.
(6) Employee continuous education and training
The new employees must first pass the pre-emplolytn@ining course on
their first day. During their tenure, they will ege professional and
technical training according to different functioaad business needs to
strengthen the functions of employees and effelgtiveprove the business
performance and competitiveness of the Company.
The Company spent NT$2,302 thousand on employeeaddn and
training in 2022, and the total number of traine@s 26,683.

Retirement system

The Company’'s subsidiaries located in Mainland @&hi(GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) and GEM Electronics (Hefei)), allocateedain percentage of the total
monthly salary of employees for the Ministry of Ham Resources and Social
Security’s five insurance premiums including end@mtinsurance according to the
relevant laws and regulations of Mainland Chinae $pecial account is deposited in
the independent account of each employee.

In accordance with the regulations on the retirdnmeamnagement of subsidiaries in
Mainland China, the current statutory retiremerg agChina is 60 years for male
workers. Women in managerial positions have a eet@ant age of 50, while
blue-collar female workers can retire at 50. Thwhe meet the requirements can go
through the retirement procedures to apply for merss and the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security is responsible fervédrification of retirement. 45
days before the retirement age, the Human Resolepartment will notify the
retired employee’s department about the employetieement. 30 days before the
retirement age, the Human Resources Departmenhatily the employee, and the
employee will fill out and confirm the “Pension Rgat Confirmation Form”. The
Human Resources Department will contact the Mipisfr Human Resources and
Social Security to start the retirement verificatiwork. At the end of the month
when the retirement age is reached, the retireday@gs should go to the Human

Resources Department to go through the relevaimems¢nt procedures, and the
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Human Resources Department will issue retiremenmtificates to the retired
employees.

In July 2005, the “Labor Pension Act” (new systeggme into effect. The
Company’s subsidiary, GEM TECH LTD., TAIWAN BRANCHas completed the
declaration process in accordance with the reguiafiand 6% of the pension will
be allocated to the personal pension account ofBimeau of Labor Insurance
according to the employee’s insurance level. Ifgéhie a voluntary contribution, it
will be withheld from the employee’s monthly salary the Bureau of Labor
Insurance’s individual pension account accordinthévoluntary contribution rate.
Employees who apply for retirement under the LaPension Act can apply to the
Company for retirement benefits when they reachape of 60. Those seniority
exceeds 15 years may claim for a monthly pensianlomp-sum pension. However,
workers whose seniority is less than fifteen yeaes/ only claim for a lump-sum

pension.

3. Labor-management agreement and various employbts ragnd interests protection
measures

The Company attaches great importance to employelations. Besides
strengthening the communication between the supewiand subordinates of
various departments, internal communication mestiage held frequently to
enhance employees’ corporate identity. Thus, labanagement relations are
harmonious, and no major labor-management dispaes occurred.

(1)) List any losses suffered by the Company in thestatear and up to the publication date
of the annual report due to labor disputes (inclgdany violations of the Labor
Standards Act found in labor inspection, specifyihg disposition dates, disposition
reference numbers, the articles of law violated,ghbstance of the legal violations, and
the content of the dispositions), and disclosingeatimate of possible expenses that
could be incurred currently and in the future anglasures being or to be taken. If a
reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explar@titre facts of why it cannot be
made shall be provided.

There have been no labor disputes that may casseddo the Company.

VI. ICT security management

() Describe the ICT security risk management framewibrx ICT security policy, specific
management plan and the resources invested iilCthedcurity management, etc.
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(1N

ICT Security Risk Management Framework:

Currently, the information department of the Compas in charge of cyber
security-related affairs.

ICT Security Policy

A.

B.

Conduct ICT security publicity, and new recruitsshteceive cyber security
training.

Outsourced manufacturers must sign a confidenti@greement to prevent
unauthorized access, tampering, destruction orapgardisclosure.

Significant information systems are backed up aisdsier recovery drills are
performed regularly to maintain the availability.

Both personal computers and servers are equipptd amii-virus software
which automatically update the malicious code tai@gf virus infection.
Conduct regular software inventory on the comptdegnsure the compliance
of the software.

Establish password complexity and validity periodnagement and require
personnel to change passwords regularly. Strichtrol the use of removable
storage devices.

Use firewalls to isolate production and office netks, and isolate the
Company’s internal network and external Internetptotect the internal
network from attacks.

Ensure external computers are not allowed to ethterCompany network.
Computers that need to be connected to the Comgamyrnal network must
be confirmed by IT before accessing the internalvoek.

Conduct regular internal audits every year to emdine effectiveness of
information security and personal data protecti@magement systems.

Specific concrete management programs and invessmanresources for ICT
security management.

Conduct an internal inspection once a year and guhe summary of the internal
control inspection results to the Board of Direstdor review according to the
Company’s internal control policies.

List the losses, possible impacts, and countermesstrom major ICT security
incidents in the latest year and up to the pubboatiate of the annual report. If a
reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explardtithe facts of why it cannot be
made shall be provided.

In 2022 and as of the publication date of the ahmeport, the Company has not
suffered any major ICT security incidents, and maselated losses and impacts.
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VII. Important contract

Contract . _ Restrictive
Participants Contract start and end dates Mainecosit
nature clauses
Signed on April 1, 2015, with a periqd
of 5 years, if Company B fails to
terminate the agreement in writing to i .
Supply/sale Exclusive distributior
Company B the Company 6 months before the _ None
contract . agreement in Japan
expiration date, the agreement shall
automatically renew and be extendgd
from year to year upon the expiratiop.
The agreement period is from Janualgl i )
) rovide packaging
1, 2019 to December 31, 2024 with g ) _
. : and testing service
validity period of 5 years. If Company
. i _[contracts through
Supply/sale R fails to terminate the agreement in _
Company R . GEM Electronics None
contract writing to the Company 3 months _
. (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
before the expiration date, the )
, or GEM Electronics
agreement shall automatically renew )
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.
and be extended for one year.
The agreement period is from Janualgl i )
) rovide packaging
1, 2019 to December 31, 2024 with g ) _
. : and testing service
validity period of 5 years. If Company
, . . |contracts through
Supply/sales T fails to terminate the agreement in _
Company T . GEM Electronics None
contract writing to the Company 3 months _
o (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
before the expiration date, the )
, or GEM Electronics
agreement shall automatically renew )
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.
and be extended for one year.
Provide packaging
and testing service
o _|contracts through
Supply/sales The agreement period is from April 1 ,
Company A GEM Electronics None
contract 2021 to December 31, 2023. ,
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.
Provide packaging
and testing service
Supply/sale , , contracts through
Company A The agreement is valid for 7 years. _ None
contract GEM Electronics

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
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Contract
nature

Participants

Contract start and end dates

Mairecsit

Restrictive
clauses

(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

Supply/sale
contract

Company D

The agreement period is from
December 1, 2021 to December 31,
2022.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics

or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company |

The agreement period is from Octol
1, 2021 to September 30, 2023

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
%rEM Electronics

or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company a

The agreement period is from
December 31, 2021 to December 3]
2023.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
IGEM Electronics

or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company |

The agreement is valid for 7 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics

or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company J

The agreement is valid for 7 years,

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics

or GEM Electronics

(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None
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Contract
nature

Participants

Contract start and end dates

Mairecsit

Restrictive
clauses

Supply/sale
contract

Company K

The agreement period is from Marck
2022 to June 30, 2025.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company M

The agreement is valid for 3 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company R

The agreement period is from Janua
1, 2022 to December 31, 2024.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
181 .

EM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company U

The agreement period is from May 1
2021 to April 30, 2022.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
'GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company S

The agreement is valid for 5 years,

Provide packaging
and testing service
contract through
GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company V

The agreement is valid for 6 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None
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Contract
nature

Participants

Contract start and end dates

Mairecsit

Restrictive
clauses

or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

Supply/sale
contract

Company W

The agreement is valid for 7 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contract through
GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company X

The agreement is valid for 2 years a
6 months.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
rC]BEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company Z

The agreement period is from Januar

1, 2022 to December 31, 2023.

Provide packaging
and testing service
c%ntract through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company Y

The agreement is valid for 7 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contract through
GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company O

The agreement is valid for 7 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contract through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

None

Supply/sale
contract

Company B

The agreement is valid for 5 years.

Provide packaging
and testing service
contracts through
GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
or GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

None
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Contract . _ Restrictive
Participants Contract start and end dates Mainecosit
nature clauses
Air Products and
Supply/sale _ . Product Purchase
Chemicals (Nanjing) |[January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024. None
contract Agreement
Gases Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Jiading .
_ GEM Electronics
Industrial Zone :
Lease (ZShanghal) Co., Ltd.
Industry Yongfang |January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024. None
agreement L factory lease
Development Limited
agreement
Company
Joint Mitsubishi Electric  |Mitsubishi Electric Gem Power Devi
oin
Corporation, (Hefei) Company Limited Co., Ltd. |Established MEGP as
venture _ . i _ . None
ract Mitsubishi Electric  |(MEGP) has been established for 30a joint venture
contrac
Corporation (China) |years (signed date July 22, 2011).
Lease MEGP leases
MEGP January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2@2Beement with GENNone
agreement _
(Hefei) Factory
GEM Electronics
Service 6Hefei) Co., Ltd.
MEGP January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026. . None
agreement service agreements fo

MEGP
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I. Information of condensed balance sheet and coraetidstatement of comprehensive income

Chapter VI

for the latest 5 years

Financial status

)] Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet — Based & IFR
Unit: NT$ thousand
Yeal Financial information for the latest 5 years
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Current assets 2,979,0663,011,890 3,090,109 3,386,237 3,279,23)
Investments accounted forusing | g5 374 73156 81,718 88,869 101,489
equity method
Property, plant and equipment 1,228,169,353,778 1,544,622 2,437,086 2,914,089
Intangible assets 1,618 3,691 4,591 3,721 1,827
Other assets 380,359 267,256 430,230 761,409 617,709
Total assets 4,654,5004,709,771 5,151,270 6,677,322 6,914,344
Before dividend 4 145 050 1,058,893 1,291,987 2,026,408 1,991,018
L distribution
Current liabilities After dividend
S 1,609,315 1,510,559 1,872,695 2,736,169 2,700,774
distribution
Non-current liabilities 14,194 38,42( 9,032 521,742 579,522
Before dVidend 1 154,246 1,007,313 1,301,914 2,548,150 2,570,53%
L distribution
Total liabilities After dividend
L 1,623,509 1,548,979 1,882,627 3,257,911 3,280,296
distribution
Share capital 1,173,158 1,290,474 1,290,474 1,290,474 1,290,474
Capital surplus 624,586 624,536 624,536 624,536 624,536
— 5
Before dividend 4 58 500 1,907,007 2149007 2 417074 2,637,836
. . |distribution
Retained earnlngsAfter dividend
S 1,242,021 1,455,341 1,559,289 1,707,518 1,928,07%
distribution
Other equity (125,950) (209,559) (205,656) (203,112) (209,037
Treasury stock - - - - -
Before dVident 3 500,344 3,612,458 3,849,356 4,129,172 4,343,809
. distribution
Totalequity  Figer dividend
L 3,031,081 3,160,792 3,268,648 3,419,411 3,634,048
distribution

Note 1: The financial information from 2018 to 2082based on the consolidated financial report
audited by CPA.

Note 2: The Company’s 2022 earnings distributiomppsal in cash dividend was approved by the
Board of Directors on March 22, 2023.
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(1 Consolidated Condensed Statement of Comprehensioemke — Based on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand; earnings per share in NTS
Yeal Financial information for the latest 5 years

Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue 3,412,024 3,463,058 3,750,121 4,755,929  5,221,46}
Gross profit 1,043,408 1,084,495 1,203,556 1,406,307 1,251,23Y
Operating income (loss) 756,139 794,946 919,572 1,085,738 865,204
Non-operating income ang I |

200,49% 44,015 (59,655 (32,986 269,97%
expenses
Profit or (loss) before ] ]
_ 957,234 838,961 859,917 1,052,747 1,135,179
income tax
Profit and/or loss this term 774,363 664,986 684,661 857,98% 930,323
Other comprehensive
income in the current periad (12,425 (83,609 3,903 2,544 (5,925
(Net profit after taxation)
Total comprehensive i
, 761,938 581,377 688,564 860,529 924,398
income
Earnings per share 6.00 5.15 5.31 6.65 7.21

Note: The financial information from 2018 to 2022 hased on the consolidated financial report

audited by CPA.

()

Names of CPA in the last 5 years and their auditiops

Year

CPA

CPA firm

Opinion

2018

CPA Chiang-Shiun, Cher
CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Deloitte & Touche

Unqualified opiniof

2019

CPA Chiang-Shiun, Cher
CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Deloitte & Touche

Unqualified opiniof

2020

CPA Chiang-Shiun, Cher
CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Deloitte & Touche

Unqualified opiniof

2021

CPA Keng-Hsi, Chang
CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Deloitte & Touche

Unqualified opiniof

2022

CPA Keng-Hsi, Chang
CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Deloitte & Touche

Unqualified opiniovr
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Il. Financial Analysis for the latest 5 years- BasedFRiS

Yeal Financial information for the latest 5 years
Analysis item 2018 2019 2020 2021 20272
Debt ratio 24.8D 23.30 25.27 38.14 37.14
Financial [Ratio of long-term capitgl
structure (%) [to property, plant and 286.16 269.68 249.84 190.84 168.915
equipment
Current ratio 261.31 284.44 239.1§ 167.11 164.7(
Quick ratio 243.9L 269.23 224.39 145.83 153.44
Solvency (%) :
Interest coverage ratio . J ]
_ - 322.32 550.47 1,884.27 347.4]
(times)
Accounts receivable
: 4.84 5.11 5.29 5.28 5.64
turnover (times)
Average collection period 75 71 69 69 64
Inventory turnover (times)  18.771 18.71 18.41 13.79 13.99
Rate of payable turnover
_ 5.22 4.72 4.69 4.79 5.31
. ... |(times)
Operating ability :
Average days in sales 19 19 19 26 26
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 3.09 2.68 2.59 2.39 1.95
(times)
Total assets turnover -
. 0.79 0.74 0.74 0.8 0.7
(times)
Return onotal assets (% 17.94 14.24 13.91 14.51 13.73
Return on equity (%) 23.70 18.7d 18.35 21.51] 21.9¢4
. Pre-tax income to paid-in ]
Profitability , 81.59 65.01 66.64 81.5§ 87.9
capital (%)
Profit rate (%) 22.70 19.2Q0  18.24 18.04 17.82
Earnings per share (NT$) 6.0G 5.15 5.31 6.63 7.21
Cash flow ratio (%) 83.85 97.84 77.14 51.73 79.78
Cash flow adequacy ratip j ]
150.2¢ 130.12 108.1 87.1¢ 88.74
Cash flow |(%)
Cash re-investment ratid
(%) 8.98 8.22 7.56 5.81 10.31
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Yeal Financial information for the latest 5 years
Analysis item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating leverage 1.66 1.74 1.67 1.65 2.08
Leverage : :
Financial leverage 1.00 1.0G 1.00 1.0G 1.0G

Note 1: The calculation formulas of each financadio are as follows
1. Financial structure

(1) Debt ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant amglig@ment = (Total equities +
noncurrent liabilities) / Property, plant and equent

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = Current assets /Current liabilities
(2) Quick ratio=(Current assets-Inventories-Prepaid expense)/ Quiadilities
(3) Interest coverage ratio = Income before interedttar / Interest expenses
3. Operating ability
(1) Accounts receivable turnover = Net revenue/ Aver@gmunts receivable
(2) Average collection period = 365/ Accounts receiedbinover
(3) Inventory turnover = COGS/Average inventory
(4) Rate of payable turnover= COGS/ Average accountalpes
(5) Average days in sales365/Inventory turnover

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = Net reedfiverage net Property, plants
and equipment

(7) Total assets turnover = Net revenue/ Average assets
4. Profitability

(1) Return on total assets = (Net income + Interesersps x (1- tax rate)) / Average
assets

(2) Return on equity =Net income/ Average equity
(3) Profit ratio = Net income /Net revenue

(4) Earnings per share= (Net income - Preferred stodklehds)/ Weighted average
outstanding shares

5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = Cash flow from operating actiegi/ Current liabilities

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio= Net cash flow from opegp#ictivities for the past five
years/ (Capital expenditure+ Increases in inventad@ash dividend) for the past
five years
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(3) Cash re-investment ratio= (Cash flow from operatigvity-Cash dividends) /
(Gross property, plant, and equipment+Long-termestments+Other noncurrent
assets+Working capital)

6. Leverage

(1) Operating leverage = (Net revenue - Variable opggatosts and expenses)
/Operating income

(2) Financial leverage = Operating income / (Operaitiegme - Interest expenses)
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lll. The Audit Committee’s Audit Report as shown throufgl financial statements in the latest
year

GEM Services, Inc.
Audit Committee’s Review Report

March 22, 2023

The Board of Directors of GEM Services, Inc. (GENgs prepared the GEM’s 2022 Business
Report, Financial Statements, and the Proposapiofit appropriation. The CPA Mr. Keng-Hsi
Chang and Mr. Chien-Hsin Hsieh from Deloitte & Thaaowvere retained to audit GEM’s Financial
Statements and have issued an audit report relatitfte Financial State-ments. The said Business
Report, Financial Statements, and Proposal foritpegpropriation have been reviewed and
determined to be correct and accurate by the Abdmmittee of GEM in accordance with Article
14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Art&dlé of the Company Act, | hereby submit this
Report.

GEM Services, Inc.
Yeh, Shu, Chairman of the Audit Committee
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IV. Financial Reports for the latest year

CPA’s Audit Report

GEM Services, Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GEM Services, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “GEM Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the GEM Group as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC)
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) of the Republic
of China (ROC).

Basis for the audit opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally
accepted in the ROC. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the GEM Group in accordance with The Norm of Professional
Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the ROC, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters for the GEM Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are stated as follows:
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The veracity of the sales revenue of specific customers

The GEM Group’s consolidated operating revenue in 2022 was NT$5,221,467 thousand, with a
consolidated operating revenue growth rate of about 10%. However, among the customers with
significant sales volume in 2022, the total revenue of the customers with larger revenue growth
accounted for about 59% of the consolidated operating revenue, resulting in significant influence
on the consolidated financial statements. Thus, we believe that the main risk lies in the veracity
of the sales revenue of the customers with significant sales volume and larger revenue growth
rate in 2022, and it is included in the key audit matters of the 2022 consolidated financial
statements. Please refer to Note 4 (14) of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
description of the revenue recognition policy.

Our audit procedures for this include:

1. By understanding the relevant internal control systems and operating procedures of the
sales transaction cycle, we design the internal control auditing procedures according to the
veracity of the sales revenue and confirm and evaluate the relevant internal control
procedure during the sales transactions for whether the design and implementation are
effective.

2. We obtain the list of the above-mentioned customers in 2022, and evaluate whether their
relevant background, transaction amount, credit line and company size are reasonable.

3. We select samples from the above-mentioned customer sales details, examine the sales
slips, customs declarations, bills of lading, sales invoices, post-period collections, and
post-period major sales returns to confirm the veracity of the sales revenue.

Responsibilities of Management and Governing Units for Consolidated Financial
Statements

The responsibility of management is to prepare properly represented consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by FSC of
the ROC, and maintain the necessary internal control related to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements to ensure no significant misrepresentation are contained in the
consolidated financial statements resulting from fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The GEM Group’s governance units (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process.

CPA’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in the ROC will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the GEM Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the GEM Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the GEM Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the GEM Group’s 2022 consolidated
financial statements and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Deloitte & Touche

CPA Keng-Hsi, Chang CPA Chien-Hsin, Hsieh

Approved for recordation by Securities and Approved for recordation by Securities and
Futures Commission, Ministry of Finance Futures Commission, Ministry of Finance
Tai-Tsai-Cheng-Liu-Tzu No. 0920123784 Tai-Tsai-Cheng-Liu-Tzu No. 0920123784

March 22, 2023
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GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2021

Code Assets Amount % Amount %

Current assets
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6) $ 1,973,637 29 $ 1,652,649 25
1140 Current contract assets (Notes 4, 5 and 20) 90,632 1 125,648 2
1170 Accounts receivable (Notes 4, 5, 7 and 20) 823,024 12 1,006,963 15
1180 Accounts receivable due from related parties (Notes 4, 5, 20 and

29) 9,583 - 8,717 -

1200 Other receivables (Notes 4, 5 and 7) 148,357 2 161,058 3
1210 Other receivables due from related parties (Notes 4, 5 and 29) 43 - 110 -
1220 Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 22) 10,082 - - -
130X Inventories (Notes 4 and 8) 200,519 3 288,713 4
1410 Prepayments (Note 15) 23,353 - 142,379 _ 2
11XX Total current assets 3,279,230 47 3,386,237 51

Non-current assets
1550 Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 10) 101,489 1 88,869 1
1600 Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 11 and 25) 2,914,089 42 2,437,086 37
1755 Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 12) 106,165 2 133,793 2
1760 Investment property (Notes 4 and 13) 57,214 1 64,529 1
1780 Other intangible assets (Notes 4 and 14) 1,827 - 3,721 -
1840 Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 22) 38,834 1 24,867 -
1990 Other non-current assets (Notes 4, 15 and 29) 415,496 ) 538,220 8
15XX Total non-current assets 3,635,114 B3 3,291,085 49
IXXX Total assets $ 6,914,344 100 $ 6,677,322 100

Code Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities
2130 Current contract liabilities (Notes 4, 20 and 29) $ 11,679 - $ 9,139 -
2170 Accounts payable 678,568 10 813,644 12
2180 Accounts payable due to related parties (Note 29) 1,907 - - -
2200 Other payables (Notes 16 and 26) 997,311 14 938,371 14
2230 Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 22) 96,994 1 110,237 2
2250 Current provisions (Notes 4 and 17) 30,000 1 30,000 1
2281 Current lease liabilities (Notes 4 and 12) 30,947 1 29,845 -
2282 Current lease liabilities - related parties (Notes 4, 12 and 29) - - 116 -
2300 Other current liabilities (Notes 16 and 26) 143,607 2 95,056 1
21XX Total current liabilities 1,991,013 _29 2,026,408 _30

Non-current liabilities
2570 Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 22) 2,546 - 3,809 -
2581 Non-current lease liabilities (Notes 4 and 12) 36,935 - 62,329 1
2582 Non-current lease liabilities - related parties (Notes 4, 12 and 29) - - 325 -
2670 Other non-current liabilities (Notes 16, 26 and 29) 540,041 8 455,279 4
25XX Total non-current liabilities 579,622 8 521,742 8
2XXX Total liabilities 2,570,535 37 2,548,150 38

Equity attributable to owners of the Company (Notes 4 and 19)
3110 Common stock 1,290,474 _19 1,290,474 _19
3200 Capital surplus 624,536 9 624,536 10

Retained earnings

3310 Legal reserve 472,481 7 386,682 6
3320 Special reserve 203,112 3 205,656 3
3350 Unappropriated earnings 1,962,243 _ 28 1,824,936 _27
3300 Total retained earnings 2,637,836 38 2,417,274 36
3400 Other equity ( 209,037) (_3) ( 203,112) (_3)
3XXX Total equity 4,343,809 _ 63 4,129,172 62

Total liabilities and equity $ 6,914,344 100 $ 6,677,322 _100

Chairman: Chu-Liang, Cheng

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

General Manager: Yen-Chiang, Tang
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GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2022 2021
Code Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating revenue (Notes 4, 20
and 29) $ 5,221,467 100 $ 4,755,929 100
5000  Operating costs (Notes 8, 21, 25
and 29) (_3970,230) (_76) (_.3,349,622) (_70)
5900  Gross profit from operations 1,251,237 24 1,406,307 30
Operating expenses (Notes 4, 7,
20, 21, 25 and 29)
6100 Selling expenses ( 17,980) - ( 17,897) ( 1)
6200 Administrative expenses ( 317,798) ( 6) ( 250931) ( b5)
6300 Research and development
expenses ( 52,749) (1) ( 46,260) (1)
6450 (Reversal of) Expected
credit impairment loss
and gains 2,494 - ( 5,486) -
6000 Total operating
expenses ( 386,033) (_7) ( 320,574) (__7)
6900  Profit from operations 865,204 17 1,085,733 23
Non-operating income and
expenses
7100 Interest income (Notes 4
and 21) 16,084 - 5,970 -
7010 Other income (Notes 4 and
21) 12,025 - 9,033 -
7020 Other gains and losses
(Notes 4 and 21) 230,508 5 ( 58,394) ( 1)
7050 Finance costs (Notes 4, 21
and 29) ( 3,277) - ( 559) -
7060 Share of profit of
subsidiaries and
associates accounted for
using equity method
(Notes 4 and 10) 14,635 - 10,964 _ -
7000 Total non-operating
income and
expenses 269,975 5 ( 32986) (__1)

(Continued)
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(Continued from previous page)

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
$ 1,135,179 22 $ 1,052,747 22
(___204,856) (__4) 194,762)  (__4)
930,323 18 857,985 18
399,495 8 82,474) ( 2)
(__ 405420) (__8) 85018 2
( 5,925) - 2544 -
$ 024398 18 $ 860529  _18
$ 7.21 $ 6.65
$ 7.12 $ 6.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Code
7900  Profit before income tax
7950  Income tax expense (Notes 4 and
22)
8200  Netincome
Other comprehensive income
(loss) (Notes 4 and 19)

8310 Items that will not be
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

8341 Translation differences
from functional
currency to
presentation
currency

8360 Components of other
comprehensive income
that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

8361 Exchange differences
on translation of
foreign financial
statements

8300 Other comprehensive
income (net amount
after tax)

8500  Total comprehensive income

Earnings per share (Note 23)
From continuing operations

9710 Basic earnings per
share

9810 Diluted earnings per
share

Chairman:

Chu-Liang, Cheng

General Manager:
Yen-Chiang, Tang
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Code
Al

Bl
B3
BS
D1
D3
D5
Z1
Bl
B3
BS
D1
D3
D5

Z1

Balance as of January 1, 2021
Distribution of 2020 earnings (Note 19)
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Net income in 2021
Other comprehensive income in 2021
Total comprehensive income in 2021
Balance as of December 31, 2021
Distribution of 2021 earnings (Note 19)
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Net income in 2022
Other comprehensive income in 2022

Total comprehensive income in 2022

Balance as of December 31, 2022

Chairman: Chu-Liang, Cheng

GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Retained earnings

Other equity

Exchange differences

on translation of

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

General Manager: Yen-Chiang, Tang
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Head-Finance & Accounting: Jui-Ping ,Wang

Unappropriated foreign financial
Common stock Capital surplus Legal reserve Special reserve earnings statements Total equity
$ 1,290.474 $ 624,536 $ 318,216 $ 209,559 $ 1,612,227 ($ 205,656) $ 3,849,356
- - 68,466 - ( 68,466 ) - -
- - - ( 3,903) 3,903 - -
- - - - ( 580,713) - ( 580,713)
- - 68,466 ( 3,903) ( 645,276) - ( 580,713)
- - - - 857,985 - 857,985
- - - - - 2,544 2,544
- - - - 857,985 2,544 860,529
1,290,474 624,536 386,682 205,656 1,824,936 ( 203,112) 4,129,172
- - 85,799 - ( 85,799) - -
- - - ( 2,544) 2,544 - -
- - - - ( 709,761) - ( 709,761)
- - 85,799 ( 2,544) ( 793,016) - ( 709,761)
- - - - 930,323 - 930,323
- - - - - ( 5,925) ( 5,925)
- - - - 930,323 ( 5,925) 924,398
$ 1,290,474 $ 624,536 $ 472481 $ 203,112 $ 1,962,243 ($_ 209,037) $ 4,343,809



Code

A10000
A20010
A20100
A20200
A20300

A20900
A21200
A22300

A22500

A23700

A24100
A29900
A29900
A30000
A31125
A31150
A31160

A31180
A31200
A31230
A32125
A32150
A32160
A32180
A32200
A32230
A33000

A33100
A33300
A33500
AAAA

GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
(Reversal of) Expected credit impairment
loss and gains
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit of subsidiaries and
associates accounted for using equity
method
Gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on decline in market value and
obsolete and slow-moving inventories
Foreign currency exchange (gain) or loss
Liability provisions
Profit from lease modification
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contract assets
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable due from related
parties
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments
Contract liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable due to related parties
Other payables
Liability provisions
Other current liabilities
Net cash inflows generated from operating
activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating
activities

(Continued)
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2022 2021
$1,135,179 $ 1,052,747
546,240 384,841
2,545 2,290

( 2,494) 5,486
3,277 559

( 16,084) 5,970)
(  14,635) (  10,964)
( 2,846) -
5,030 16,882

( 143,741) 28,241
666 2,276

( 7) -
38314  (  34,321)
132,351 ( 229,507)
( 734) 701)
14,121 ( 20,069)
88,214  (  188,597)
121,960 ( 69,344)
2,481 ( 5,367)

( 142,507) 231,385
1,918 -
51,429 57,131

( 666)  ( 2,276)
( 1) ( 3,996)
1,820,010 1,210,726
14,868 6,484

( 3277)  ( 559)
(_ 243264)  (__ 168.421)
1,588,337 1,048,230



(Continued from previous page)

Code

Cash flows from investing activities

B02700
B02800

B03700
B03800
B04400

B04500
B07100
B07600
BBBB

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Decrease in refundable deposits
Decrease in other receivables due from related
parties
Acquisition of intangible assets
Increase in prepayments for equipment
Dividends received
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

C03000
C03100
C04020

C04500
CCcCC

DDDD

EEEE

E00100

E00200

Increase in guarantee deposits received
Decrease in guarantee deposits received
Repayment of the principal portion of lease
liabilities
Cash dividends
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2022 2021
($ 457,850) ($ 686,446)
12,302 -

( 355) ( 933)
369 1,405

68 45

( 578)  ( 1,443)
( 399,142)  (  492,287)
3,398 3,376
(_841788)  (_1,176,283)
178,352 545,630

( 89)  ( 1,172)
(  31267) (  30,757)
(__709,701)  (__580,668)
(__562,705)  (___ 66,967)
137,144 (___29,405)
320,988 ( 224,425)
1,652,649 1,877,074
$1,973,637 $ 1,652,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Chairman:

Chu-Liang, Cheng

General Manager:
Yen-Chiang, Tang
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GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Otherwise stated, all amounts are in thousands of NTD)

Company history

GEM Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) was established in the
Cayman lIslands in April 1998. On June 23, 2015, with the resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting, the Company changed the denomination of shares to New
Taiwan Dollars to be listed where the face value per share is NT$10. As of December
31, 2022, the Company’s paid-in capital was $1,290,474 thousand, and its business
activities include 1. Semiconductor packaging and testing foundry; 2. Plant leasing, etc.

The Company’s functional currency is US dollars, but the Company’s stock was listed
TWSE on April 12, 2016. To increase the comparability and consistency of the financial
statement, this consolidated financial statement is presented in New Taiwan Dollar.

Dates and procedures for the financial statement approval

The financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on March
22, 2023.
Application of new and revised standards, amendments, and interpretations

()] Initial application of the amendments to the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (I1AS), IFRIC
Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”)
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC)
The application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect
by the FSC does not have a significant effect on the accounting policies of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Consolidated Company”).

(1) Applicable FSC-approved IFRSs in 2023

New, revised or amended standards and Effective date issued by
interpretations IASB
Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting  January 1, 2023 (Note 1)
Policies
Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting  January 1, 2023 (Note 2)
Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to January 1, 2023 (Note 3)
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

This amendment applies for annual reporting periods beginning after
January 1, 2023.

The amendment applies to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies that occur during annual reporting periods beginning
after January 1, 2023.

Except for the recognition of deferred tax on temporary differences in lease
and decommissioning obligations on January 1, 2022, the amendment
applies to transactions occurring after January 1, 2022.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies
The amendments stipulate that the Consolidated Company should determine
the material accounting policy information that should be disclosed according
to the definition of materiality. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments and descriptions:

*  The Consolidated Company is not required to disclose accounting policy
information related to immaterial transactions, other events or
circumstances that is immaterial.

*  The Consolidated Company may judge the relevant accounting policy
information to be material due to the nature of the transaction, other
event or circumstance, even if the amount is immaterial.

*  Not all accounting policies relating to material transactions, other events
or conditions are themselves material.

In addition, an accounting policy is likely to be considered material to its

financial statements if that accounting policy relates to material transactions,

other events or conditions and:

(1) was changed during the reporting period because the Consolidated
Company was required to or chose to change its policy and this change
resulted in a material change to the amounts included in the financial
statements;

(2) was chosen from one or more alternatives in an IFRS Standard,;
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(1)

(3) was developed in accordance with IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors” in the absence of an IFRS
Standard that specifically applies;

(4) relates to an area for which the Consolidated Company is required to
make significant judgments or assumptions in applying an accounting
policy; or

(5) applies the requirements of an IFRS Standard in a way that reflects the
entity’s specific circumstances, for example, by explaining how the
requirements of a Standard are applied to the facts and circumstances of
a material class of transactions, other events or conditions.

Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a

definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting

estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. When applying accounting policies, the

Consolidated Company may be required to measure financial statement items

by monetary amounts that cannot be directly observed but must be estimated,

and therefore must use a measurement technique or to develop an accounting

estimate for this purpose. The effects of a change in an input or a

measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes

in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior
period errors.

In addition to the above impacts, as of the publication date of this

consolidated financial statement, the Consolidated Company has concluded

that there is no material impact of amendments of other standards and
interpretations on the consolidated financial position and consolidated

financial performance.

New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

New, revised or amended standards and Effective date issued by
interpretations IASB (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or NA

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
Sale and Leaseback
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
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New, revised or amended standards and Effective date issued by
interpretations IASB (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 - Initial Application of January 1, 2023
IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative

Information

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of January 1, 2024
Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

Amendments to IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities January 1, 2024

with Covenants

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above new/revised/amended standards or
interpretations are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
their respective effective dates.

Note 2: A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively to IFRS 16 to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application.

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized, the

Consolidated Company is continuously assessing the possible impact that the

application of other standards and interpretations will have on the Consolidated

Company’s financial position and financial performance and will disclose the

relevant impact when the assessment is completed.

V. Summary of significant accounting policies

(1

(1

D)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and IFRSs endorsed and issued by the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis.

Criteria for classifying assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Current assets:

1. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet date;

and
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(V)

V)

3. Cash and cash equivalents (unless the asset is to be used for an exchange or
to settle a liability, or otherwise remains restricted, at more than 12 months
after the balance sheet date).

Current liabilities:

1. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Liabilities expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date,
and

3. Liabilities for which does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Assets or liabilities other than those stated above are classified as non-current

assets or non-current liabilities.

Consolidation basis

This consolidated financial statement includes the financial statement of the

Company and the entities (subsidiaries) controlled by the Company. The financial

statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted to ensure the accounting policies are

line with those of the Consolidated Company. Transactions between entities,
account balances, profit and losses have been fully eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

For details of subsidiaries, shareholding ratio and business activities, please refer

to Note 9 and Table 4 and Table 5 of Note 32.

Foreign currency

When preparing financial statements for each individual entity, transactions in

currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) shall be

converted into functional currency at the exchange rate on the transaction day.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing

rates at each balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of

monetary items or on translating monetary items shall be recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

and shall not be re-translated.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the

Company and its foreign operation (including subsidiaries, affiliates or branches

that operate in a foreign country or use a currency different from that of the
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(V1)

(VII)

Company) are translated into the functional currency (USD) at the exchange rate
on each balance sheet date, and translated to the presentation currency (TWD) of
the consolidated financial report. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rate for the current period, the resulting currency translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, which belong to the
exchange differences arising from the conversion of the functional currency (USD)
to the presentation currency (TWD), and will not be recognized in the future to
profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories include raw materials and supplies. Inventories shall be measured at
the lower of cost and net realizable value, and the comparison between cost and
net realizable value is based on individual items except for inventories of the same
category. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price under normal
circumstances less the estimated cost to complete the project and the estimated
cost to complete the sale. The calculation of inventory cost adopts the weighted
average method.

Investments in associates

An affiliated company is an entity over which the Consolidated Company has
significant influence, but are not subsidiaries or joint ventures of the Consolidated
Company.

The Consolidated Company adopts the equity method when accounting for
investments in affiliated companies.

Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an affiliated
company is recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the Consolidated Company’s share of the profit or loss of the
affiliated company after the date of acquisition. The Consolidated Company’s
share of the affiliated company’s profit or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Company’s profit or loss.

When assessing impairment, the Consolidated Company regards the overall
carrying amount of the investment as a single asset and compares the recoverable
amount with the carrying amount for impairment testing. The recognized
impairment loss is viewed as the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of the impairment loss is recognized to the extent of subsequent increases in the

recoverable amount of the investment.
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(VIII)

(IX)

(X)

Gains and loss arising from upstream, downstream, and sidestream transactions
between the Consolidated Company and affiliated companies shall be recognized
in the consolidated financial statement only to the extent that it is unrelated
Consolidated Company’s interest in the affiliated company.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment shall be recognized at cost, and subsequent
measurement shall be presented at costs subtracted by accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately
portion with a straight-line method over their useful lives. The Consolidated
Company shall review the estimated useful life, residual value and depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end, and the impact of changes in
accounting estimates shall be applied prospectively.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
Investment property
Investment property is property (including right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both.
Investment property shall be initially measured at cost (including transaction
costs), and subsequent measurement shall be presented at costs subtracted by
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Investment property shall be depreciated with a straight-line method.
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are transferred to
investment property at the carrying amount at the end of owner-occupation.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment
property is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
Intangible assets
1. Additions

Intangible assets with a limited useful life acquired separately shall be

initially measured at cost, and subsequent measurement shall be presented at
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(X1)

costs subtracted by accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets shall be amortized with a straight-line method within
the useful life where the Consolidated Company shall review the estimated
useful life, residual value and amortization method at least at each financial
year-end, and the impact of changes in accounting estimates shall be applied
prospectively. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are recognized at
cost subtracted by accumulated impairment losses.
2. Derecognition
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of intangible
assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets
The Consolidated Company assess at the date of statement property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property and intangible assets project
whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount shall be estimated for the
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the Consolidated Company shall determine the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. If groups of assets
can be allocated to cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent basis,
they will be allocated to individual cash-generating units; otherwise, they will be
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units that can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount of
an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or
loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
or a cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
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(XI1)

asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. (net of amortisation or depreciation) A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Financial instrument
Financial assets and liabilities shall be recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet when the Consolidated Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
1. Financial Asset
The Consolidated Company adopts trade-date accounting to recognize and
derecognize financial assets.
(1) Category of financial assets and measurement
The types of financial assets held by the Consolidated Company are
financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortized cost:

A. The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

B. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost,

including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (including

related parties), other receivables (including related parties) and
refundable deposits, etc., are measured at amortized cost, which equal to
gross carrying amount determined by the effective interest method less

any impairment loss. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or
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(@)

loss. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate

to the gross carrying amount of such a financial asset, except for:

A. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset, for which
interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets.

B. Financial asset that is not credit impaired on purchase or
origination but has subsequently become credit impaired, for which
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of such financial assets in subsequent
reporting periods.

A financial asset is credit impaired when significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or the borrower; breach of contract; it is becoming probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or undergo a financial
reorganization; or the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificates of deposits
investments with original maturities within 3 months from the date of
acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

On each balance sheet date, the Consolidated Company evaluates the

impairment loss of financial assets (including accounts receivable, other

receivables and deposits) and contract assets measured at amortized cost
based on expected credit losses.

Accounts receivable and contract assets are recognized as allowance

losses based on lifetime expected credit losses. Other financial assets

are evaluated on whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
the original recognition. If there is no significant increase, the loss
provision shall be recognized as the 12-month expected credit loss, and
if there has been a significant increase, the loss provision shall be

recognized as the expected credit loss during the duration.

-189-



2.

(3)

Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. 12-month ECLs

represent the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected to result from

default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date. In contrast, lifetime ECLs represent the

expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

For internal credit risk management purposes, the Consolidated

Company determines that the following situations indicate that a

financial asset is in default (without taking into account any collateral

held by the Consolidated Company):

A. Internal or external information show that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors.

B. When a financial asset is due longer than 180 days, unless the
Consolidated Company has reasonable and corroborative
information to support a more lagged default criterion.

The Consolidated Company recognizes an impairment loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for
which the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income
and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Consolidated Company derecognizes a financial asset only when

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

1)

Subsequent measurement

-190-



(XI)

(XIV)

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, except where the recognition of interest on short-term
payables is not material.
(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.
Liability provisions
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. A provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.
Warranty
The warranty obligation to ensure that the product conforms to the agreed
specifications is recognized when the relevant product is recognized as revenue
based on the management's best estimate of the expense required to be settled the
obligations of the Consolidated Company.
Revenue recognition
When a performance obligation is satisfied, the Consolidated Company shall
recognize as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that
performance obligation.
Revenue
1. Service revenue

Revenue from packaging and testing

The Consolidated Company’s packaging service creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Consolidated Company’s performance as the Consolidated Company
performs.

The relevant revenue will be transferred to the customer with the promised
goods or services, and the sales revenue will be recognized when the
performance obligations are met over time. The revenue received before
meeting the above-mentioned performance obligations are recognized as

contract liabilities.
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2. Other
Other revenue is recognized as revenue when the service contract conditions
are met in accordance with the relevant contract when the economic benefits
are likely to flow into the Consolidated Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. The revenue received before meeting the
above-mentioned performance obligations are recognized as contract
liabilities.

(XV) Lease
The Consolidated Company assesses whether the contract is a lease on the
contract establishment date.

The Consolidated Company as lessee

Except for leases of low-value assets to which the recognition exemption applies
and lease payments for short-term leases, which are recognized as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, other leases are recognized as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities on the lease commencement date.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (including the original
measurement amount of the lease liability and the lease payment paid before the
lease commencement date), and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. Right-of-use assets shall be presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet. The lessee shall depreciate the
right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
(which are fixed payments). The lease payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured on an amortized cost basis using the
effective interest method, and the interest expense is amortized over the lease term.
After the commencement date, the Consolidated Company shall remeasure the
lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments and shall recognize the

amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
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right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero, any remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognized in
profit or loss. Lease liabilities shall be presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.
(XVI) Government Subsidy
A government grant is not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the
Consolidated Company will comply with the conditions attaching to it, and that
the grant will be received.
Government grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis as a
reduction in related costs over the periods in which the Consolidated Company
recognizes as expenses the related costs that the grants intend to compensate.
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Consolidated Company
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized
as a deduction from the carrying amount of the related assets and recognized as a
reduced depreciation or amortization charge in profit or loss over the contract
period or useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivables as compensation for expenses already
incurred are recognized as profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivables.
(XVI1) Employee benefits
1. Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for service rendered by employees.
2. Post-employment benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as
expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
(XVIII) Share-based payment agreement
1. Employee share options granted to employees
The equity-settled share-based payment transaction for employees is
measured by the fair value of the equity instrument on the grant date.
The fair value at the grant date of the options expensed on a straight-line

basis over the vesting period, based on the Consolidated Company’s best
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estimates of the number of shares or options that are expected to ultimately
vest, with a corresponding increase in capital surplus-stock options. It is
recognized as an expense in full at the grant date if vesting immediately. The
Consolidated Company revises the estimated number of expected vested
stock options on each balance sheet date. If there is a revision to the original
estimated quantity, the influence number is recognized as profit and loss, so
that the accumulated expenses reflect the revised estimate, and the capital
surplus-stock options is relatively adjusted.

Option to vendor/consultant

Equity-settled share-based benefits to non-employees are measured by the
fair value of the goods or services received. The fair value of goods or
services received by the Consolidated Company is recognized as an expense
when the Consolidated Company obtains the goods or when the counterparty
provides services where the capital surplus- stock options will be adjusted at

the same time.

(XIX) Income tax

Income tax expense is the sum of current income tax and deferred income tax.

1.

Current income tax

The Consolidated Company determines income tax payable (refundable) is
based on taxable profit (loss) for the year determined in accordance with the
applicable tax laws of each tax jurisdiction.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the
current year’s tax provision.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and loss deductible that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
and loss deductible can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
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Consolidated Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and such temporary
differences are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to
be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liabilities are settled or the assets
are realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Consolidated Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxes are also recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Major sources of uncertainty in significant accounting judgments, estimations, and

assumptions
When Consolidated Company adopts accounting policies, the management must make

relevant judgments, estimates and assumptions based on experience and other relevant

factors for the information that is not easily obtained from other sources. Actual results

may differ from estimates.
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VI.

VII.

The Consolidated Company will take the recent global development of the COVID-19
epidemic and the possible impact on the economic environment into consideration of
major accounting estimates such as cash flow estimates, growth rates, discount rates,
and profitability. The management will continue to review the estimates and the basic
assumptions. If the revision to the estimate affects only the current period, it will be
revised and recognized in the current period; if the revision to the estimate affects both
the current period and future periods, it will be revised and recognized in the current
period and future periods.

Main sources of uncertainty in estimates and assumptions

Estimated impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The estimated impairment of account receivables, other receivables and contract assets
is based on the Consolidated Company’s assumptions of probability of default and loss
given default. The Consolidated Company takes experience, current market conditions
and forward-looking information into account to develop assumptions and inputs for
impairment assessments. Please refer to Note 7 and Note 20 for the key assumptions
and inputs used. If the actual future cash flow is less than the Consolidated Company’s
expectations, there may be significant impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cash on hand and working fund $ 1,419 $ 327
Bank demand deposit 1,459,360 1,347,842
Cash Equivalent (Investments
with original maturity within 3
months)
Bank fixed deposit 512,858 304,480
$1,973,637 $1,652,649

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the interest rate ranges for bank deposits were
0.05% to 4.60%, and 0.01% to 0.3%, respectively.
Account receivables and other receivables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accounts receivable
Measured at amortized cost

Total amount $ 823,731 $ 1,008,030

Less: loss allowances ( 707) ( 1,067)

$ 823,024 $ 1,006,963

Other receivables
OEM collection and payment $ 144,672 $ 159,348
Interest receivable 1,257 41
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Scrap receivable 13 920
Other 2,415 749
$ 148357 $ 161.058

()] Accounts receivable

The Consolidated Company’s average credit period for commodity sales is 30 to
90 days, and the collection policy does not add interest to overdue accounts
receivable. When determining the recoverability of accounts receivable, the
Consolidated Company considers any changes in the quality of accounts
receivable from the original credit date to the balance sheet date. Experience
shows that most accounts receivable are recovered well.

To mitigate credit risk, the management of the Consolidated Company performs
credit limit determination, credit approval and other monitoring procedures for
each counterparty to ensure appropriate actions have been taken to recover
overdue accounts receivable. In addition, the Consolidated Company will review
the recoverable amount of accounts receivable one by one on the balance sheet
date to ensure the unrecoverable accounts receivable are recognized as
impairment losses. Accordingly, the management of the Consolidated Company
believes that the credit risk of the Consolidated Company has been significantly
reduced.

The Consolidated Company recognizes loss allowance for accounts receivable
based on lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are
calculated using a provision matrix, which considers experience, current market
conditions and business outlook. As the Consolidated Company’s credit loss
experience shows that there is no significant difference in the provision matrix of
different customer groups, the provision matrix does not further differentiate
customer groups, and only sets the expected credit loss rate based on the number
of days overdue for accounts receivable.

If there is evidence that the counterparty is facing serious financial difficulties and
the Consolidated Company cannot reasonably expect the recoverable amount, the
Consolidated Company will write off the relevant accounts receivable, but will
continue to pursue account recovery, and the amount recovered due to pursuit and

recovery will be recognized in profit or loss.
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(1

The Consolidated Company measures the loss allowance of accounts receivable
according to the provision matrix as follows:
December 31, 2022

1~60 days past ~ 61~90 days 91~120days  Over 120 days

Not past due due past due past due past due Total

Expected credit 0%~ 0%~ 0.02%~ 14.95% 22.76%~

loss rate 0.0063% 5.03% 9.29% ' 100%
Total amount $ 779,381 $ 39,600 $ 4,19 $ 4 $ 550 $ 823,731
Loss allowance

(lifetime

expected credit

losses) ( 41)  ( 44)  ( 375)  ( 1) ( 246) ( 707)
Measured at

amortized cost $ 779,340 $ 39,556 $ 3821 $ 3 $ 304 $ 823,024

December 31, 2021

1~60 days past ~ 61~90 days 91~120days  Over 120 days

Not past due due past due past due past due Total

Expected credit 0.0004%~ 0.0021%~ 0.04%~ 0.35%~ 32.35%~

loss rate 0.04% 11.3% 21.48% 29.72% 100%
Total amount $ 947,254 $ 53,641 $ 6,503 $ - $ 632 $1,008,030
Loss allowance

(lifetime

expected credit

losses) ( 280) ( 130) ( 423) - ( 234) ( 1,067)
Measured at

amortized cost $ 946,974 $ 53511 $ 6,080 $ - $ 398 $1,006,963

Changes in lose allowance for accounts receivable is as follows:

2022 2021

Opening balance $ 1,067 $ 935
Add: Impairment losses for

the current period - 131
Reversal of impairment loss

for the current period ( 369) -
Effect of exchange rate
changes 9 1
Ending Balance $ 707 $ 1,067

Other receivables

The Consolidated Company accounts for other receivables such as OEM
collection and payment, interest receivable and unrecovered amount from the sale
of scraps. The Consolidated Company’s policy is to only conduct business with
customers with good credit. The Consolidated Company continues to monitor and
refer to the counterparty’s past default records and analyze its current financial
position to assess whether the credit risk of other receivables has increased
significantly since the original recognition and to measure expected credit losses.
If there is evidence that the counterparty has signs of breach of contract or the

termination so where the recoverable amount cannot be reasonably estimated, the
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VIII.

Consolidated Company will directly write off the relevant contract assets and loss

allowance, but will continue to pursue for recovery. The amount recovered by the

pursuit will be recognized in profit or loss. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,

the Consolidated Company assessed other receivables without the need to report

expected credit losses.

Inventories
December 31, 2022
Raw material $ 200,519

The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows:

2022
Cost of inventories sold $ 3,956,210
Lease cost 8,990
Loss on decline in market value
and obsolete and slow-moving
inventories 5,030
$ 3,970,230

Subsidiary

Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2021

$ 288,713

2021

$ 3,323,452
9,288

16,882
$ 3,349,622

The subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Shareholding percentage

December December
Investor Subsidiary Nature of business 31, 2022 31, 2021 Description
The Company GEM Electronics Company Holding company 100.00% 100.00% -
Limited business
GEM Tech Ltd. Sales of electronic parts 100.00% 100.00%
GEM Electronics Company GEM Electronics (Shanghai)  Manufacture and sales of 100.00% 100.00%
Limited Co., Ltd. electronic parts
GEM Electronics (Shanghai)  GEM Electronics (Hefei) Co., Manufacture and sales of 100.00% 100.00% Note
Co., Ltd. Ltd. electronic parts,

factory leasing

Note: GEM Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. was approved by the Board of Directors on

February 17, 2021, to participate in the cash capital increase of GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. to invest RMB 50,000 thousand which was completed on March

11, 2021.
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XI.

Investments accounted for using equity method

Investments in associates

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Individually insignificant
associates
Mitsubishi Electric GEM
Power Device (Hefei) Co.,
Ltd.

$101,489 $ 88,869

Shareholding and voting rights of the Consolidated Company in the associates at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

Shareholding and voting
rights percentage

December December
Company Name Nature of business Main business site 31, 2022 31, 2021
Mitsubishi Electric GEM  Production, design, Hefei City, Anhui 20% 20%
Power Device (Hefei) packaging and testing Province, China
Co., Ltd. of power management
electronic accessories
Information of individually insignificant associates
2022 2021
Attributable to the Consolidated
Company
Net income from continuing
operations $ 14,635 $ 10,964
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income $ 14,635 $ 10,964

Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method is recognized based on

the financial statements of the associates that have been audited by CPA during the

same period.

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Used for its own $2,914,089 $ 2,437,086
Operational leasing - -
$2,914,089 $ 2,437,086
()] Used for its own
Property under
construction and
Machinery Transportation Office Leasehold equipment to be
Building equipment equipment equipment improvements Other inspected Total
%nce as of
January 1, 2022 $ 177,784 $ 4,566,798 $ 10484 $ 56,076 $ - $ 124,113 $ 925928 $ 5,861,183
Additions 48,657 147,950 - 799 72,122 7,445 180,872 457,845

Reclassification
(Note)
Disposals (

312,003
18513)  (

1,227,997
267,111 )

1,954
( 14)
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Property under
construction and
Machinery Transportation Office Leasehold equipment to be
Building equipment equipment equipment improvements Other inspected Total

Effect of exchange

rate changes 829 11,069 59 853 ( 412) 2,149 25,070 39,617
Balance as of

December 31,
2022 $ 520,760 $ 5,686,703 $ 10543 $ 59,668 $ 71,710 $ 89,863 $ 112,158 $ 6,551,405

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
Balance as of

January 1, 2022 $ 131,226 $ 3,140,034 $ 6,682 $ 49274 $ - $ 96,881 $ - $ 3,424,097
Depreciation

expense 18,675 458,227 1,456 3,156 7,909 13,609 - 503,032
Disposals 18513) (257,657 ) - 14 ) - 44,496 ( 320680)
Effect of exchange

rate changes 2,052 26,368 50 750 ( 45) 1,692 - 30,867
Balance as of

December 31,

2022 $ 133440 $ 3,366,972 $ 8188 $ 53,166 $ 7864 $ 67,686 $ - $ 3637316

Net amount as of
December 31,

2022 $ 387,320 $ 2,319,731 $ 2,355 $ 6502 $ 63,846 $ 22177 $ 112,158 $ 2,914,089
Cost
Balance as of

January 1, 2021 $ 156,994 $ 4,122,542 $ 10,504 $ 57,101 $ - $ 117,773 $ 224,659 $ 4,689,573
Additions 1,306 306,479 - 1,587 - 11,204 702,486 1,023,062
Assets for

operational

leasing 230,448 - - - - - - 230,448
Reclassification

(Note) - 279,631 - 119 - 5,831 - 285,581
Transfers to

investment

property ( 210,112) - - - - - - ( 210,112)
Disposals - ( 134,608 ) - ( 2,427 ) - 10,003 ) - ( 147,038)
Effect of exchange

rate changes ( 852) 7,246) 20) ( 304 ) - ( 692 ) ( 1217)  ( 10,331)

Balance as of
December 31,

2021 $ 177,784 $ 4,566,798 $ 10484 $ 56,076 $ - $ 124,113 $ 925928 $ 5,861,183

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
Balance as of

January 1, 2021 $ 140,608 $ 2,973,601 $ 4,956 $ 48,877 $ - $ 79,610 $ - $ 3,247,652
Depreciation

expense 4,424 308,620 1,742 3,077 - 27,700 - 345,563
Assets for

operational

leasing 137,579 - - - - - - 137,579
Transters to

investment

property ( 150,628 )
Disposals R
Effect of exchange

rate changes ( 757) 75719) ( 16) ( 253 ) - 426 ) -
Balance as of

December 31,

2021 $ 131,226 $ 3,140,034 $ 6,682 $ 49274 $ - $ 96,881 $ - $ 3,424,097

150,628 )
147,038)

( 134,608) - 2,427 ) - (10003

9,031)

Net amount as of
December 31,
2021 $ 46,558 $ 1,426,764 $ 3,802 $ 6,802 $ - $ 27232 $ 925928 $ 2,437,086

Note: It was transferred from other non-current assets - prepayments for
equipment.

No impairment losses were recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.
Depreciation expense is accrued on a straight-line basis for the following
economic life:

Building

Factory main building 20 years

Building improvement 10 to 20 years
Machinery equipment 3to 15 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office equipment 3to 7 years
Leasehold improvements 2.510 10 years

Other 5to 10 years
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(1

Operational leasing

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2021

Transfers to assets used for its’ own
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance as of December 31, 2021

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2021

Depreciation expense

Transfers to assets used for its’ own
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance as of December 31, 2021

Net amount as of December 31, 2021

Building

$ 231,676
( 230,448)
(_ 1,228)
$ -

$ 128,975

9,288
( 137,579)
(___ 684)
$ -

$ -

No impairment losses were recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.

The Consolidated Company leases out the buildings under operational leasing for

a period of 6 years. At the end of the lease period, the lessee will not have the

bargain purchase price option to purchase the property.

Depreciation expense is accrued on a straight-line basis for the following

economic life:

Building
Factory main building
Building improvement

XII. Leasing agreement

(1

Right-of-use assets

Carrying amount of
right-of-use assets
Land (Note)
Building
Office equipment

Addition of right-of-use
assets
Lease addition

(Continued)

20 years
10 to 20 years

December 31, 2022

$ 40,442
64,368
1,355
$106,165

$ 5,308
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$ 40,942
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(1

(Continued from previous page)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Depreciation expense on
right-of-use assets
Land $ 1,148 $ 1,262
Building 33,427 28,481
Office equipment 261 247
$ 34,836 $ 29,990

Note: For the land use right in mainland China, the Consolidated Company has
obtained the Land Use Certificates for State Owned Land, and the lease
period is 50 years.

A lease agreement was signed on December 31, 2021 for part of the land leased
by the Consolidated Company located in Hefei, Anhui Province, China, which is
sub-leased to Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power Device (Hefei) Co., Ltd. under
operational leasing from January 1, 2022. The relevant right-of-use assets are
presented as investment properties, please refer to Note 13. The relevant amount
of the above right-of-use assets does not include the right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment properties.

Except for the above-mentioned additions, recognition of depreciation expenses

and transfer of investment properties, there was no impairment of the right-of-use

assets for the Consolidated Company in 2022 and 2021.

Lease liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying amounts of lease
liabilities

Current (including related

parties) (Note 29) $ 30,947 $ 29,961
Non-current (including

related parties)

(Note 29) $ 36,935 $ 62,654

The range of discount rates for lease liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Building 4.35% 1.09%~4.35%
Office equipment 4.35% 1.09%~4.35%

-203-



(1) Important lease activities and terms
The lease period of the buildings and office equipment leased by the Consolidated
Company is 1 to 10 years. At the end of the lease period, the Consolidated
Company has no bargain purchase price option to purchase the leased buildings
and office equipment.

(IV) Other lease information

2022 2021
Expense on short-term lease ($_6,258) ($__ 525)
Total cash outflow from
lease ($.40,802) ($.31,841)

The Consolidated Company has chosen to apply the recognition exemption to
building leases that qualify as short-term leases and will not recognize the related
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

XIIL. Investment property
Right-of-use
Building assets- Land Total

Cost
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 210,112 $ 5,461 $ 215,573
Effect of exchange rate

changes 3,288 85 3,373
Balance as of December 31,

2022 $ 213,400 $ 5,546 $ 218,946
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 150,628 $ 416 $ 151,044
Depreciation expense 8,231 141 8,372
Effect of exchange rate

changes 2,310 6 2,316
Balance as of December 31,

2022 $161,169 $ 563 $161,732
Net amount as of December

31, 2022 $ 52,231 $ 4,983 $ 57,214
Cost
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ - $ - $ -
From property, plant and

equipment/right-of-use

assets 210,112 5,461 215,573
Balance as of December 31,

2021 $ 210,112 $ 5461 $ 215,573
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Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ - $ - $ -
From property, plant and

equipment/right-of-use

assets 150,628 416 151,044
Balance as of December 31,
2021 $ 150,628 $ 416 $ 151,044

Net amount as of December
31, 2021 $ 59,484 $ 5,045 $ 64,529

The right-of-use asset in the investment property is the subleasing of the leased land
located in Hefei City, Anhui Province, China to Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power Device
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. under operational leasing.

The lease term of the investment property is 5 years with an option to extend the lease
term for 2 years. The lessee does not have the bargain purchase price option at the end
of the lease period.

The total lease payments for operational leasing of investment property to be received in

the future are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Year 1 $ 48,232 $ 47,489
Year 2 48,232 47,489
Year 3 48,232 47,489
Year 4 48,232 47,489
Year 5 - 47,489
$192,928 $237,445

The Consolidated Company implements a general risk management policy to reduce the
residual risk of the leased buildings and right-of-use assets upon expiry of the lease
term.

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following

economic life:
Building

Factory main building 20 years
Right-of-use assets- Land 50 years

The fair value of the investment properties is measured by the independent appraisal
company Anhui Huateng Property Assessment Office as a Level 3 input on the balance

sheet date. The evaluation is based on market evidence of similar property transaction
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XIV.

prices and the cash flow method, and the important unobservable input used include
discount rate. The fair value obtained from the evaluation is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Fair value $283,872 $299,771

The above fair value measurement has taken into account the uncertainty of the impact
of the subsequent development of the COVID-19 epidemic on market fluctuations.

Other intangible assets

Computer software

Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 8,091
Additions 578
Disposals (  2517)
Effect of exchange rate changes 140
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 6,292
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 4,370
Amortization expense 2,545
Disposals (  2,517)
Effect of exchange rate changes 67
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 4,465
Net amount as of December 31, 2022 $ 1827
Cost

Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 6,682
Additions 1,443
Effect of exchange rate changes ( 34)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 8,091
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 2,091
Amortization expense 2,290
Effect of exchange rate changes ( 11)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 4370
Net amount as of December 31, 2021 $ 3,721

Amortization expenses are accrued on a straight-line basis over the economic life:

Computer software 3 to 5 years
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XV. Other assets

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Current
Prepayments
Tax credit $ 12,799 $ 110,184
Other 10,554 32,195
$ 23,353 $142,379
Non-current
Prepayments for equipment
(Note 29) $ 406,888 $ 529,731
Refundable deposits paid
(Note 29) (Note) 8,608 8,489
$ 415,496 $ 538,220

Note: The Consolidated Company considers the debtor’s historical record, current
market conditions and business outlook to measure the 12-month expected credit
loss or lifetime expected credit loss of the refundable deposit paid. As of

December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Consolidated Company assessed that it was not

necessary to report expected credit losses for refundable deposits paid.

XVI.  Other liabilities

Current
Other payables
Payable for equipment

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

(Note 26) $ 526,054 $ 526,059
Remuneration to the
employees and directors 145,656 126,200
Salary and bonus 135,327 105,896
OEM collection and payment 74,259 73,018
Insurance premium 42,430 31,156
Pension 15,358 13,072
Professional service fee 3,361 2,448
Contract service payment 1,277 2,554
Business tax 2,303 2,346
Utility bill 964 226
Cash dividends (Note 26) 171 111
Other 50,151 55,285
$997,311 $ 938,371
Other current liabilities
Guarantee deposit - payments
received to retain capacity
(Note) $ 143,542 $ 95,002
Temporary receipts 65 54
$ 143,607 $ 95,056

(Continued)
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(Continued from previous page)

XVII.

XVIII.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Non-current
Guarantee deposits and margins
received

Payments received to retain

capacity (Note) $ 526,626 $ 442,006

Other (Note 29) 13,415 13,273

$ 540,041 $ 455,279

Note: To expand the production capacity in response to the increase in customer
demand, the Consolidated Company has signed a production capacity agreement
with its customers and collected a production capacity deposit which the
customers can offset the payment for shipments in phases during the production
capacity guarantee period according to the conditions stipulated in the agreement.

Liability provisions

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current

Warranty $ 30,000 $ 30,000

2022 2021

Opening balance $ 30,000 $ 30,000
Additional provisions recognized 666 2,276
Usage during the period ( 666) ( 2,276)
Ending Balance $ 30,000 $ 30,000

The warranty provision for liabilities is the present value of the best estimate of the
future economic outflows due to the warranty obligations by the management of the
Consolidated Company according to the contract for the sale of goods. This estimate is
based on historical warranty and adjusted by taking into account new raw materials,
changes in the process or other factors that affect product quality.

Retirement benefit plans

Determined appropriation plan

The GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Branch of the Consolidated Company adopted a pension
plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA), which is a state-managed defined contribution
plan. Under the LPA, the Company makes monthly contributions to employees’
individual pension accounts at 6% of monthly salaries and wages.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Consolidated Company in Mainland China are
enrolled in the pension system operated by the local government. These subsidiaries are
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XIX.

required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll to fund the pension system. The

Consolidated Company’s obligation to this government-operated pension system is only

to contribute the specified amount.

Equity
M Equity
Common stock
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Number of shares
authorized (in thousands) 250,000 250,000
Authorized capital amount
(NTD in thousand) $ 2,500,000 $ 2,500,000
Issued and paid shares (in
thousands) 129,047 129,047
Issued capital (NTD in
thousand) $1,290,474 $1,290,474
(1)  Capital surplus
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
May be used to offset a
deficit, distributed as
cash dividends or
transferred to capital
(Note)
Share premium $ 530,686 $ 530,686
Treasury shares 93,850 93,850
$ 624,536 $ 624,536
Note: Such capital surplus can be used to offset a deficit, and can be used to
distribute cash or transfer to capital when the Company has no deficit.
However, the appropriation to the share capital is limited to a certain ratio
of the paid-in share capital each year.
(1) Retained earning and dividend policy

According to the earnings distribution policy of the Company’s Articles of
Association, if there is a surplus in the annual final statement, the Board of
Directors shall formulate an earning distribution proposal in the following manner
and sequence. In the case of share distribution, a resolution shall be submitted to
the shareholders’ meeting; in the case of cash distribution, the Board of Directors
may be authorized to make a special resolution and report to the shareholders’
meeting:

1. the Company shall set aside all taxes that legally required to be paid;
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2. offset its losses in previous years that have not been previously offset;

3. setaside a Legal Reserve in accordance with the Applicable Public Company
Rules, unless the accumulated amount of such Legal Reserve has reached the
total paid-up capital of the Company;

4. set aside a special capital reserve, if one is required, in accordance with the
Applicable Public Company Rules or as requested by the authorities in
charge.

The Company is in the growth stage. Based on the needs of capital expenditure,

business expansion and sound financial planning for sustainable development, the

Company’s dividend policy will be appropriated in cash dividends or stock

dividends according to the Company’s future capital expenditure budget and

capital needs. The proportion of cash dividends distributed to shareholders of the

Company shall not be less than 10% of the total dividends to shareholders.

Please refer to Note 21 (8) Employee Remuneration and Director Remuneration

for the employees and directors remuneration policy stipulated in the Articles of

Association of the Company.

According to Article 237 of the Company Act of the Republic of China, when

allocating surplus profits after having paid all taxes and dues, shall first set aside

10% of said profits as legal reserve. Where such legal reserve amounts equal to

the total paid-in capital, this provision shall not apply. The legal reserve can be

used to make up for losses. When the Company has no losses, the portion of the
legal reserve exceeding 25% of the total paid-in capital can be allocated in cash in
addition to being accounted as share capital.

The Company set aside the special reserve in accordance with the Official Letter

Chin-Kuan-Cheng-Fa-Tzu No. 1090150022 and “Questions and Answers for

Special Reserves Appropriated Following Adoption of IFRSs”.

The Company’s 2021 and 2020 earnings distribution proposals are as follows:

2021 2020
Legal reserve $ 85,799 $ 68,466
Special reserve ($__2544) ($_3,903)
Cash dividends $ 709,761 $ 580,713
Cash dividend per share
(NTD) $ 5.5 $ 4.5

The above-mentioned cash dividends have been distributed by the resolution of
the Board of Directors on March 22, 2022 and March 18, 2021, respectively, and
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XX.

the remaining earning distribution items were also resolved at the shareholders’

general meeting on June 27, 2022 and July 21, 2021, respectively.

On March 22, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors proposed the 2022

earnings distribution as follows:

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends

Cash dividend per share
(NTD)

The above-mentioned cash dividends have been distributed with the resolution of

the Board of Directors, and the rest will be resolved at the shareholders’ meeting

on May 31, 2023.

(IV)  Special reserve

Opening balance
(Reversal of) Reduction of

other equity items
Ending Balance

(V)  Other equity

2022

2022

$205,656

(__2.544)
$ 203,112

$ 93,032
$ 5925
$ 709,761

$ 55

2021

$209,559

(_ 3,903)
$205,656

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements:

Opening balance
Recognized in the current
period
Exchange differences on
translation
Translation differences in
presentation currency
Other comprehensive income
in the current period
Ending Balance

Revenue

Revenue from customer contracts
Packaging and testing

Other revenue
Other (Note 29)

2022

($203,112)

( 405,420)
399,495

(_ 5925)
($209,037)

2022

2021
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$5,073,719

147,748
$5,221,467

($205,656)

85,018

(_ 82,474)

2,544
($203,112)

2021

$ 4,624,557

131,372
$ 4,755,929



)

(1

Detail of customer contracts

1.

Packaging and testing

The customer contract signed by the Consolidated Company includes two
performance obligations of packaging and testing services. The customer
pays the contract transaction price after obtaining the packaged or tested
product. Since the time interval between the transfer of labor services and the
customer's payment is less than a year, the significant financial component of
the contract transaction price will not be adjusted. The stand-alone selling
prices for packaging and testing services are determined using the expected
cost plus a margin approach and are used to allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation.

Other

The other service contracts signed by the Consolidated Company come from
the electroplating processing services and building leasing services
contracted to the Consolidated Company, and the transaction prices of the

services are negotiated in accordance with these contracts.

Contract balance

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 January 1, 2021
Accounts receivable
(Note 7) $ 823,024 $ 1,006,963 $ 774,727
Accounts receivable
due from related
parties (Note 29) 9,583 8,717 8,059

$ 832,607 $ 1,015,680 $ 782,786

Contract assets

Packaging and

testing $ 100,175 $ 137,277 $ 103,664
Less: loss

allowances ( 9,543) ( 11629) ( 6,281)
Current contract

assets $ 90,632 $ 125,648 $ 97,383

Contract liabilities

Packaging and
testing $ 11,679 $ 9,139 $ 14506
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Changes in contract assets are due to the difference between the timing of meeting
performance obligations and the timing of payment. Other major changes are as

follows:
2022 2021
Contract assets
Balance at beginning of the
period transfers to
accounts receivable ($136,077) ($ 91,233)

The Consolidated Company recognizes loss allowance for contract assets based
on lifetime expected credit losses. The average process duration of the packaging
and testing service contracts signed by the Consolidated Company is 20 to 30
days. When determining the possibility of obtaining an unconditional right of
payment for contract assets in the future, the policy adopted by the Consolidated
Company refers to the historical experience of the counterparty’s relevant contract
assets, current market conditions and business outlook, considers the contracts
that are still under obligations on the balance sheet date, examines each contract
for stagnation, and recognizes the loss allowance for contract assets according to
the expected credit losses during the duration. If there is evidence that the
obligation of the contract have been stagnant for more than 30 days, the
Consolidated Company will recognize the loss allowance at full amount, but will
continue to pursuit the stagnation of the contract, and carry out the obligation
when the stagnation has been eliminated. If there is evidence that the counterparty
has signs of breach of contract or is facing serious financial difficulties where the
recoverable amount cannot be reasonably estimated, the Consolidated Company
will directly write off the relevant contract assets and loss allowance, but will
continue to pursue for recovery. The amount recovered by the pursuit will be

recognized in profit or loss.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Expected credit loss rate 9.5% 8%
Total amount $100,175 $137,277
Loss allowance (lifetime
expected credit losses) (__9543) (_11,629)
$ 90,632 $125,648

Information on changes in the loss allowance on contract assets:

2022 2021
Opening balance $ 11,629 $ 6,281
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XXI.

Add: Impairment losses for
the current period

Reversal of impairment loss
for the current period

Effect of exchange rate
changes

Ending Balance

The amount recognized as revenue in the current year from the contract liabilities

at the beginning of the period and the performance obligations that have been

( 2,125)

39
$ 9,543

satisfied in the previous period is as follows:

5,355

(1)
$ 11,629

2021

$ 12,570

2021

$ 4,624,557
71,006
60,366

$ 4,755,929

2021

$ 5970

2021

2022
Contract liabilities in
beginning of the period $ 6,894
(1) Detail of customer contracts
Type of service 2022
Packaging and testing $5,073,719
Electroplating services 93,222
Lease and other services 54,526
$5,221,467
Non-operating income and expenses
()] Interest income
2022
Bank deposit $ 16,084
(1)~ Other income
2022
Government subsidy $ 5521
Other 6,504
$ 12,025
(1) Other gains and losses
2022
Gain or (loss) on foreign
exchange $ 227,904
Gains on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment 2,846
Other ( 242)
$ 230,508
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2021

($ 55,344)
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(IV)  Finance costs

2022 2021
Interest expense on lease
liability (Note 29) $ 3277 $ 559
(V)  Depreciation and amortization
2022 2021
Depreciation expenses
summarized by function
Operating costs $ 506,422 $ 350,962
Operating expenses 39,818 33,879
$ 546,240 $ 384,841
Amortization expenses
summarized by function
Operating costs $ 157 $ 168
Administrative
expenses 2,388 2,122
$ 2545 $ 2,290

(VI) Direct operating expenses of investment property

2022 2021
Related to lease revenue
Depreciation expense $ 8372 $ -
Other 618 -
$ 8,990 $ -
(VI1) Employee benefits expenses
2022 2021
Post-employment benefits
Determined appropriation
plan $ 118,406 $ 99,116
Other employee benefits 1,311,165 1,119,736
Total employee benefits
expenses $1,429,571 $1,218,852
Summarized by function
Operating costs $1,221,709 $1,028,543
Operating expenses 207,862 190,309
$1,429,571 $1,218,852

(V1) Remuneration to the employees and directors
According to the Articles of Association, the Company appropriates the
remuneration of employees and directors according to the pre-tax profit before
deducting the remuneration of employees and directors of the current year at a rate
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of 5% to 10% and less than or equal to 3% respectively. Employee remuneration
and director remuneration in 2022 and 2021 were approved by the Board of
Directors on March 22, 2023 and March 22, 2022 as follows:

Estimated ratio

2022 2021
Remuneration to employees 7.31% 7.82%
Remuneration to directors 2.70% 2.88%
Amount

2022 2021

Cash Cash
Remuneration to employees $ 92,200 $ 92,200
Remuneration to directors $ 34,000 $ 34,000

If there is still a change in the amount after the annual consolidated financial
statement is approved, it will be treated as a change in accounting estimates and
adjusted and recorded in the following year.

There is no difference between the actual distributed amounts of employee
remuneration and director remuneration in 2021 and 2020 and the recognized
amounts in the consolidated financial statement for 2021 and 2020.

For information on employee remuneration and director remuneration as approved
by the Board of Directors, please visit the “MOPS” of the TWSE.

(IX)  Foreign currency exchange gain and loss
2022 2021
Total gain on foreign
currency exchange $ 488,307 $ 121,609
Total loss on foreign
currency exchange (_260,403) (_176,953)
Net (loss) gain $ 227,904 ($ _55,344)
XXII.  Income tax for continuing operation
()] Income tax recognized in profit or loss
Detail of income tax expenses:
2022 2021
Current income tax
Current tax expenses
recognized for the
current period $ 220,679 $ 206,537
Prior years’ adjustment ( 740) ( 9,774)
219,939 196,763
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Deferred income tax
Current tax expenses
recognized for the
current period (__15,083) ( 2,001)
Income tax expense
recognized in profit or
loss $ 204,856 $194,762

A reconciliation of accounting profit and income tax expenses is as follows:

2022 2021
Profit before income tax $1.135,179 $ 1,052,747

Income tax expense

calculated at the statutory

rate (25%) $ 283,795 $ 263,187
Nondeductible items in

determining taxable

income 152 2,183
Unrecognized deductible

temporary differences/

loss deduction ( 30,757) ( 12,867)
Effect of different tax rates

applicable to consolidated

entities ( 39,379) ( 40,124)
Adjustments for prior years’

tax ( 740) ( 9,774)
Investment tax credits ( 8,215) ( 7,843)

Income tax expense
recognized in profit or

loss $ 204,856 $ 194762

(I1)  Current tax liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 10,082 $ -
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable $ 96,994 $ 110,237

(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2022
Effect of
Recognized in exchange rate
Opening balance  profit or loss changes Ending Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference
Liability provisions $ 6,000 $ - $ - $ 6,000
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Unrealized exchange

loss 591 6,457 - 7,048
Loss on decline in

market value and

obsolete and

slow-moving
inventories - 8,003 ( 45) 7,958
Lease income tax
effect - 545 ( 4) 541
Allowance for losses
- contract assets 2,366 ( 375) 8 1,999
Allowance for losses
- accounts
receivable 1 ( 1) - -
Employee
compensation
payable 15,909 ( 1,044) 255 15,120
Unrealized sales
allowance - 168 - 168
$ 24,867 $ 13,753 $ 214 $ 38834
Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary difference
Revenue from
customer
contracts $ 3,153 ($ 660) $ 53 $ 2,546
Unrealized exchange
gain 656 ( 670) 14 -
$ 3,809 ($ 1330) $ 67 $ 2546
2021
Effect of
Recognized in exchange rate
Opening balance profit or loss changes Ending Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference
Liability provisions $ 6,000 $ - $ - $ 6,000
Unrealized exchange
loss - 591 - 591
Allowance for losses
- contract assets 1,185 1,180 1 2,366
Allowance for losses
- accounts
receivable 2 ( 1) - 1
Employee
compensation
payable 13,720 2,265 ( 76) 15,909
Unrealized sales
allowance 313 ( 313)

$ 21,220 $ 3,722 (% 75) $ 24867

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary difference
Revenue from

customer

contracts $ 808 $ 2,349 ($ 4) $ 3,153
Unrealized exchange

gain 1,284 ( 628) - 656

$ 2,092 $ 1721 (% 4) $ 3,809
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XXIII.

(V)

V)

Deductible temporary difference and unused loss carryforwards amount not
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

Deductible temporary
difference December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Loss on decline in market
value and obsolete and

slow-moving inventories $ - $ 46,541
Unrealized asset impairment
loss 146,099 166,837
Other - 2,437
$ 146,099 $ 215,815
Loss carryforwards December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Expired in 2022 $ - $ 35,969
Expired in 2023 - 40,224
$ - $ 76,193

Income tax assessment

The Taiwan branch of the Company’s subsidiary GEM Tech Ltd.’s profit-seeking
enterprise income tax has been approved by the tax authority until 2020.

The Consolidated Company had no pending tax litigation as of December 31,
2022.

Earnings per share

Unit: NTD per share

2022 2021
Earnings per share - basic
From continuing operations $ 721 $ 6.65
Earnings per share - diluted
From continuing operations $ 712 $ 6.59

Earnings and the weighted average number of common shares used to calculate earnings

per share:

Net income

2022 2021

Net income attributable to owners

of the Company $ 930,323 $ 857,985
Net income used to calculate basic

earnings per share and diluted

earnings per share $ 930,323 $ 857,985
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XXIV.

Quantity

Unit: thousand shares
2022 2021

Weighted average number of

common shares used to

calculate basic earnings per

share 129,047 129,047
Effect of potential dilutive

common shares:

Stock option - 53
Remuneration to employees 1,576 1,172
Weighted average number of
common shares used to
calculate diluted earnings per
share 130,623 130,272

If the Consolidated Company can choose to pay employee remuneration in shares or
cash, when calculating diluted earnings per share, assumed that employee remuneration
will be issued in shares, the weighted average number of outstanding shares shall be
included in the potentially dilutive common shares to calculate the diluted EPS. When
calculating the diluted EPS before deciding on the number of shares for employee
remuneration in the following year, the potentially dilutive common shares will also be
considered.

Share-based payment agreement

The Company has issued a share option plan in 2000

On February 28, 2000, the Company approved the proposal of the Board of Directors to
issue the share option plan. The share option plan has been revised several times since
the issuance, and the total amount of shares issued was 6,722 thousand units. The plan
is granted to employees of the Company and its 100%-owned subsidiaries and those
who provide services to the Company and its subsidiaries and meet certain conditions.
The above-mentioned share option plan grants those who meet certain conditions to
exercise the share options in a certain schedule and proportion in one year after
obtaining the stock warrant. The duration of the above-mentioned warrants is ten years.
After ten years, the unexercised share options shall be deemed to be waived, and the
stock warrantee shall no longer claim his or her share option. Among the issued share
option, there were 200 thousand units expired on June 27, 2021, and all lapsed due to
non-exercise.

The relevant information of 2021 stock option is as follows:
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XXV.

2021

Employee Weighted Weighted
stock option average  Other option average
(in strike price (in strike price

thousands) (USD) thousands) (USD)

Circulation at the beginning

of the period - $ - 200 $ 1.250
Expired in the current period - ( 200) 1.250
Circulation at the end of the

period - - - -
Exercisable at the end of the

period - - - -
Weighted average fair value

of the stock options in the

current period (NTD) $ - $ -

The stock options granted by the Company on June 28, 2011 are the related
remuneration costs of the stock warrant recognized at the fair value (calculated
according to the Black-Scholes evaluation model). The parameters used in the relevant
evaluation model are as follows:

June 28, 2011

Evaluation parameters for Share price on grant

non-employees: day (NTD) USD 1.040
Exercise price (NTD) USD 1.250
Expected volatility 48.34%
Expected life 10 years
Expected dividend
rate 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate 1.89%

Government subsidy

The machinery equipment purchased by GEM Electronics (Hefei) Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Consolidated Company, was approved for a subsidy of $5,224
thousand by the local government in October 2019 after meeting the subsidy conditions
set by the Official Letter He-Ching-Hsin-Tsung-He (2019) No.185 on May, 2019.

The building constructed by GEM Electronics (Hefei) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Consolidated Company, was approved for a subsidy of $7,674 thousand by the local
government in March 2021 after meeting the subsidy conditions set by the No.6 (2020)
of the Government of Hefei Municipality February, 2021.

The building constructed and machinery equipment purchased by GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Consolidated Company, was approved for a
subsidy of $31,190 thousand by the local government in July 2022 after meeting the
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XXVI.

subsidy conditions set by the No.8 (2021) of the Government of Hefei Municipality
March, 2022.

This amount has been deducted from the relevant asset’s carrying amount and carried
forward to profit or loss over the asset’s economic life by reducing the depreciation
expense. In 2022 and 2021, the depreciation expenses were reduced by NT$2,148
thousand and NT$894 thousand respectively.

Cash flow

()] Non-cash transaction

The Consolidated Company conducted the following non-cash investment and

financing activities in 2022 and 2021:

1. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the purchase price of unpaid properties,
plant and equipment acquired by the Consolidated Company were $526,054
thousand and $526,059 thousand respectively, and were accounted as other
payables.

2. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were $171 thousand and $111
thousand of declared cash dividends that had not been distributed and were
accounted under other payables.

3. The Consolidated Company signed a production capacity guarantee
agreement with the customer and offset the security deposit by offsetting the
payment according to the conditions stipulated in the contract. In 2022,
NT$45,449 thousand offset the security deposit by offsetting accounts
receivable.

(I1)  Changes in liabilities from financing activities

2022
Non-cash changes
Offsetting Effect of
January 1, Lease Lease accounts exchange rate December 31,
2022 Cash flow addition modification _Finance costs receivable change Other 2022
Guarantee deposits and
margins received $ 550,281 $ 178,263 $ - $ - $ - ($ 45449) $ 488 $ - $ 683,583
Lease liabilities (including
related parties) 92,615 (__31,267 ) 5,308 ( 364 ) 3,277 - 1590  (__ 3277) 67,882
$642896  $146996  $ 5308 ($__ 364) $ 3277 ($ 45449) $ 2078 ($_3277) $ 751,465
2021
Non-cash changes
Effect of
January 1, Lease exchange rate December 31,
2021 Cash flow Lease addition _modification Finance costs change Other 2021
Guarantee deposits and
margins received $ 5859 $ 544,458 $ - $ - $ - ($ 36) $ - $ 550,281
Lease liabilities
(including related
parties) 31,170 (__30757) 92,412 ( 43) 559 ( 167) ( 559 ) 92,615
$ 37,029 $ 513,701 $ 92,412 ($ 43) $ 559 ($ 203) ($ 559 ) $ 642,896
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XXVII. Capital risk management

The Consolidated Company conducts capital management to ensure that companies in

the group can continue to operate, and maximize shareholder returns with the best mix

of debt and equity.

The capital structure of the Consolidated Company consists of the equity attributable to

the owners of the company (comprising issued capital, capital surplus, retained earnings

and other equity).

The Consolidated Company is not subject to any externally imposed -capital

requirements.

XXVIII. Financial instrument

(M

(1

(1)

Fair value information - financial instruments not measured at fair value

The management of the Consolidated Company considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value
approximate their fair values.

Types of financial instruments

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Financial asset
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost (Note 1) $ 2,963,252 $ 2,837,986

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

measured at amortized

cost (Note 2) 1,349,956 1,486,507
Note 1. The balance includes cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable

(including related parties), other receivables (including related parties)
and refundable deposits and other financial assets measured at amortized
cost.

Note 2: The balance includes financial liabilities such as accounts payable
(including related parties), other payables (excluding employee
remuneration and director remuneration payable, salaries and bonuses
payable, insurance premiums payable, pensions payable, business tax
payable and dividends payable) and guarantee deposit measured at
amortized cost.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Consolidated Company include cash and

cash equivalents, receivables, payables and lease liabilities. Among the financial
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instruments held by the Consolidated Company, financial risks related to

operations include market risk (including exchange rate risk and interest rate risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk.

1.

Market risk

The main financial risks borne by the Consolidated Company’s operating
activities are the foreign currency exchange rate risk (see (1) below) and the
interest rate risk (see (2) below).

(1) Foreign currency risk

The Consolidated Company is engaged in foreign currency-
denominated sales and purchase transactions, thus causing the
Consolidated Company to be exposed to foreign currency risk. The
Consolidated Company regularly evaluates the net risk position of the
sales amount and cost amount denominated in non-functional currency,
and adjusts the cash holding position of the non-functional currency
accordingly to achieve hedging.

For the book values of monetary assets and liabilities of the
Consolidated Company denominated in non-functional currencies on
the balance sheet date (including those monetary items denominated in
non-functional currencies that have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements), please refer to Note 31.

Sensitivity analysis

The Consolidated Company is mainly affected by fluctuations in the
exchange rates of US dollars and New Taiwan Dollars.

The table below details the sensitivity analysis of the Consolidated
Company when the exchange rate of each functional currency of each
entity against each relevant foreign currency increases/decreases by 1%.
1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting exchange rate risk within
the Consolidated Company to key management, and also represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible range of changes
in foreign currency exchange rates. Sensitivity analysis only includes
foreign currency monetary items in circulation which is translated at the
end of the period with a 1% exchange rate adjustment.

When foreign currency monetary items are net assets, a positive number

in the table below means that when the functional currency of each
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consolidated entity depreciates by 1% relative to each related currency
(mainly US dollar and New Taiwan Dollar), the pre-tax net income or
equity will increase by a number of the same amount; when the
functional currency of each consolidated entity appreciates by 1%
relative to each relevant currency, its impact on pre-tax net income or

equity will be a negative number of the same amount.

The impact of US Dollar The impact of New Taiwan Dollar
2022 2021 2022 2021

Gainor(loss)  $16,513 (i)  $18,739 () ($ 1,376) (i) ($ L1,261) (ii)

@)

A. Mainly from the Consolidated Company’s USD-denominated cash
and cash equivalents, receivables and payables that were in
circulation on the balance sheet date without cash flow hedging.
The Consolidated Company’s sensitivity to the US dollar exchange
rate decreased in the current period, which was due to the increase
in payables denominated in US dollars.

B. Mainly from the Consolidated Company’s NTD-denominated
payables that were still in circulation on the balance sheet date
without cash flow hedging.

The Consolidated Company’s sensitivity to the NTD exchange rate
increased in the current period, which was due to the increase in
payables denominated in New Taiwan Dollars.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposure is incurred due to the bank deposits and lease

liabilities within the Consolidated Company include fixed and floating

interest rates.

The book values of financial assets and financial liabilities of the

Consolidated Company subject to interest rate risk exposure on the

balance sheet date are as follows:

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021

Fair value interest rate risk

- Financial assets $ 512,858 $ 304,480
- Financial liabilities 67,882 92,615

Cash flow interest rate risk

- Financial assets 1,459,360 1,347,842
- Financial liabilities - -
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is based on the interest rate exposure of
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. The analysis for
floating rate liabilities assumes that the amounts of the liabilities
outstanding at the balance sheet date were all outstanding during the
reporting period. The rate of change used in reporting interest rates
within the Consolidated Company to key management is a 1% increase
or decrease in interest rates, which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible range of changes in interest rates.
If interest rates increased/decreased by 1% when all other variables are
held constant, the Consolidated Company’s net income before tax in
2022 and 2021 will increase/decrease by $14,594 thousand and $13,478
thousand respectively, mainly due to the interest rate risk with
fluctuations arising from the bank deposits floating interest rate.
The Consolidated Company’s sensitivity to interest rates increased in
the current period, which is due to the increase in bank deposits with
floating interest rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty defaults on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Consolidated Company. As of
the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure of the Consolidated
Company that may result in financial losses due to the counterparty’s failure
to perform its obligations is from the carrying amount of financial assets
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.
The policy adopted by the Consolidated Company is to transact with
reputable counterparties and to obtain adequate guarantees to mitigate the
risk of financial loss due to default when necessary. The Consolidated
Company rates major customers by creating complete customer profiles,
using publicly available financial and non-financial information, and
referring to past transaction records with the Consolidated Company. The
Consolidated Company continuously monitors the credit exposure and the
credit rating of the counterparty and controls the credit exposure through the
counterparty’s credit limit which is reviewed and approved annually by the

responsible supervisor.

-226-



The Consolidated Company continuously evaluates the financial status of
customers with accounts receivable and contract assets and reviews the
recoverable amounts of accounts receivable and contract assets to ensure that
unrecoverable accounts receivable and contract assets have been properly set
aside for impairment losses. When necessary, receipts in advance will be
adopted as a transaction term to reduce credit risk. Thus, the credit risk on
accounts receivable and contract assets is expected to be limited.
The credit risk of the Consolidated Company is concentrated in the top five
customers. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the ratio for the total amount
of accounts receivable and total contract assets came from the top five
customers were 57% and 56%, respectively.

3. Liquidity risk
The Consolidated Company manages and maintains a sufficient position of
cash and cash equivalents to support the Group’s operations and mitigate the
impact of fluctuations in cash flow.

Liguidity and Interest Rate Risk for Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

The analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of non-derivative financial
liabilities is based on the earliest date on which the Consolidated Company
may be required to repay, and is prepared based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities (including principal and estimated interest). The
maturity analysis of other non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared
according to the agreed repayment date.

December 31, 2022

Payment at
sight or less 1to3 3to12 More than 5
than 1 month months months 1to 5 years years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
liabilities $ 195,984 $422,001 $ 718,727 $ 13,415 $ -
Lease liabilities 8,281 111 24,655 37,889 -

$204,265 $422,112 $743,382 $ 51,304 $ -

December 31, 2021

Payment at
sight or less 1to3 3to 12 More than 5
than 1 month months months 1to 5 years years

Non-derivative
financial liabilities
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Non-interest bearing
liabilities $ 220,880 $ 396,365 $ 856,100 $ 13,273 $
Lease liabilities 8,789 122 24,205 65,423
$229,669 $396,487 $880,305 $ 78,696 $

XXIX. Related party transaction

The ultimate parent entity and ultimate controller of the Company is Elite Advanced
Laser Corporation which held 51% of the Company’s shares on December 31, 2022 and
2021.
Transactions, account balances, income and expenses between the Company and its
subsidiaries (which are related parties of the Company) are all eliminated upon
consolidation, thus not disclosed in this note. Unless disclosed in other notes, the
transactions between the Consolidated Company and other related parties are as
follows.
()] Name and relationship of related party

Relationship with the

Related party consolidated company
Elite Advanced Laser Corporation Ultimate parent entity
Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power Device Associate

(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

(1)  Revenue
Related party

Account categories 2022 2021
Electroplating services  Associate $ 93,222 $ 71,006
Lease revenue Associate $ 47,807 $ 47,085
Other Associate $ 6,719 $ 13,281

There is no other comparable transaction of the same sales price and conditions of
the related parties. The revenue from electroplating services is determined by the
cost-plus pricing, and the payment terms are monthly T/T 45 days. The lease
revenue is based on the contract signed according to the general market conditions,
and the rent is collected on a monthly basis; the other service revenue is collected
on a monthly basis according to the contract content.

(1) Purchase

Related party categories 2022 2021
Associate $ 1955 $ -
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(V)

V)

)

(VII)

(VII)

The purchase price is based on the general market conditions and agreed by both
parties. The payment terms are monthly T/T 30 days and the price is no
significant difference with other non-related parties.

Contract liabilities

Categories/ Related party December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Associate
Mitsubishi Electric GEM
Power Device (Hefei)
Co., Ltd. $ 3961 $ -

Receivables from related parties

Related party December 31, December 31,

Account categories 2022 2021
Accounts receivable due Associate
from related parties $ 9,583 $ 8,717
Other receivables - Associate
related parties $ 43 $ 110

The outstanding receivables from related parties are not overdue, and no
guarantee has been received. The amount receivable from related parties in 2022
and 2021 has not been recognized as loss provision.

Payables from related parties

Related party December 31, December 31,

Account categories 2022 2021
Accounts payable due to Associate
related parties $ 1,907 $ -

The outstanding balance of payables due to related parties has not been
guaranteed.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (accounting for other non-current
assets - prepayments for equipment)

Trading price

Related party categories 2022 2021
Ultimate parent entity $ - $ 1,397

Lease agreement

Related party =~ December 31, December 31,

Account categories 2022 2021
Current lease liabilities -  Ultimate
related parties parent entity $ - $ 116
Non-current lease Ultimate - 325
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(1X)

liabilities - related parent entity

parties
$ - $ 441
Related party categories 2022 2021
Interest expenses
Ultimate parent entity $ 3 $ 5

Lease expense

Ultimate parent entity $ 82 $ 14

The Consolidated Company leased parking spaces from the Ultimate Parent Entity
on August 31, 2021 which took effect from September 1, 2021. The lease period
is 1 year. The rent is signed according to the general market conditions and paid
monthly.

The Consolidated Company leased the building from the Ultimate Parent Entity in
October 2015 with a lease period of 10 years. The rent is signed according to the
general market conditions and paid monthly. An early termination agreement was
signed on August 31, 2022, effective from August 31, 2022.

The Consolidated Company leased buildings and parking spaces from the
Ultimate Parent Entity on August 31, 2022 which took effect from September 1,
2022. The lease period is 1 year. The rent is signed according to the general
market conditions and paid monthly.

The lease fee is a short-term lease, and the total lease payments to be paid in the

future are as follows:

2022 2021
Total lease payments to be
paid in the future $ 108 $ 28

Lease agreement

Operation lease/ sublease

The Consolidated Company leases the buildings and subleases the land use rights
related to the buildings to its associate, Mitsubishi Electric GEM Power
Semiconductor (Hefei) Co., Ltd., for a lease period of 5 to 6 years. The rent is
signed according to the general market conditions and received monthly. At the
end of the lease period, the lessee will not have the bargain purchase price option
to purchase the property. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total lease

payments to be received in the future are as follows:
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Year 1 $ 48,232 $ 47,489
Year 2 48,232 47,489
Year 3 48,232 47,489
Year 4 48,232 47,489
Year 5 - 47,489

$192,928 $237,445

The lease revenue recognized in 2022 and 2021 was NT$47,807 thousand and
NT$47,085 thousand respectively.
(X)  Other related party transactions
Related party December 31, December 31,

Account categories 2022 2021
Guarantee deposits and  Associate
margins received $ 1,708 $ 1,682
Refundable deposits Ultimate parent
paid entity $ 20 $ 20

(XI) Remuneration for key managerial officers

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 83,197 $ 78,871
Post-employment benefits 216 216
$ 83413 $ 79,087

The remuneration of directors and other key managerial officers is determined by
the Remuneration Committee in accordance with individual performance and
market trends.

XXX. Material contingent liabilities and unrecognized contractual commitments

The unrecognized contractual commitments of the Consolidated Company are as
follows:

Unit: Foreign currency (thousand)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
usD $ 1,082 $ 6,551
RMB $ 3,188 $ 41,923
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XXXI. Information on Significant Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities

The following information is expressed in foreign currencies other than the functional
currencies of the consolidated companies. The exchange rates disclosed refer to the

rates at which these foreign currencies are converted to functional currencies.

Significant foreign currency assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2022

Foreign
currency
(thousand) Exchange rate Carrying amount
Assets in foreign
currency
Monetary items
usD $ 45497 6.9646 (USD: RMB) $ 1,397,206
usD 49,153 30.7100(USD: NTD) 1,509,482
Liabilities in
foreign currency
Monetary items
usD 8,906 6.9646 (USD: RMB) 273,505
usD 31,973 30.7100(USD: NTD) 981,902
NTD 53,784 0.0326 (NTD: USD) 53,784
NTD 83,856 0.2268(NTD : RMB) 83,856
December 31, 2021
Foreign
currency
(thousand) Exchange rate Carrying amount
Assets in foreign
currency
Monetary items
uUsD $ 45,621 6.3757 (USD: RMB) $ 1,262,779
usD 60,274 27.6800(USD: NTD) 1,668,386
Liabilities in
foreign currency
Monetary items
usD 15,227 6.3757 (USD: RMB) 421,477
usD 22,970 27.6800(USD: NTD) 635,823
NTD 48,266 0.0361(NTD: USD) 48,266
NTD 77,876 0.2303(NTD : RMB) 77,876

The Consolidated Company’s gain or (loss) on foreign exchange (including realized and
unrealized) in 2022 and 2021 were $227,904 thousand and ($55,344) thousand

respectively. Due to the wide variety of foreign currency transactions and functional
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currencies of the Group, it is not possible to disclose exchange gains and losses and

significant impact for each currency.
XXXII. Notes to disclosures

(1

(1)
(1)

Information on significant transactions:

1.
2.
3.

10.

Lending funds to others. (None)

Providing endorsements or guarantees for others. (None)

Holding of securities at the end of the period (excluding the portion held due
to investment in a subsidiary or an associate, and the portion held due to an
interest in a joint venture). (None)

Aggregate purchases or sales of the same securities reaching NT$300 million
or 20% of paid-in capital or more. (None)

Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital
or more. (None)

Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or
more. (None)

The purchase and sale of goods with related parties reaching NT$100 million
or 20% of paid-in capital or more. (Table 1)

Accounts receivable from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of
paid-in capital or more. (Table 2)

Trading in derivative instruments. (None)

Others: The relationship and circumstances and amounts of important
transactions between the parent and subsidiary companies and between each
subsidiary. (Table 3)

Information on investees. (Table 4)

Information of investment in Mainland China:

1.

Name of the investee company in Mainland China, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and outward
remittance of funds, shareholding ratio, profit or loss for the period, and
recognized investment gain or loss, carrying amount of the investment at the
end of the period, repatriated investment gains, and limit on the amount of
investment in Mainland China. (Table 5)

Any of the following significant transactions with investees in Mainland
China, either directly or indirectly through a third area, and their prices,

payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses:
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1)

@)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and
percentage of the related payables at the end of the period. (Table 1 and
Table 3)

The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of
the related receivables at the end of the period. (None)

The amount of property transactions and the amount of the resultant
gains or losses. (None)

The balance of negotiable instrument endorsements or guarantees or
pledges of collateral at the end of the period and the purposes. (None)
The highest balance, the end of period balance, the interest rate range,
and total current period interest with respect to financing of funds.
(None)

Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the
period or on the financial position, such as the rendering or receiving of

services. (Note 29)

(IV) Information of major shareholders: the names of shareholders with a shareholding

ratio of more than 5% with the amount and proportion of shares held. (Table 6)

XXXIII. Department information

Information provided to the operation decision maker to allocate resources and measure

departmental performance, focusing on each type of product or service delivered or

provided.

The operation decision maker regards semiconductor foundry and sales units in each

region as individual operating departments, but when preparing financial statements, the

Consolidated Company considers the following factors and aggregates these operating

departments as a single department:

1. Similar product properties and process;

2. Similar product pricing strategy and sales model.

Q) Revenue from key products and services

The revenue analysis of the key products and services of the continuing operations

of the Consolidate Company is as follows:

2022 2021
Semiconductor products $5,166,941 $ 4,695,563
Other 54,526 60,366
$5,221,467 $ 4,755,929
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(1

(1

Regional information
The Consolidated Company mainly operates in two regions - Taiwan and China.
The revenue of the Consolidated Company from external customers by location of

operation and non-current assets by location of assets as listed below:

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Taiwan $ 3,847,244 $ 3,498,737 $ 1,845,853 $ 1,846,627
China 1,374,223 1,257,192 1,640,330 1,322,233

$ 5,221,467 $ 4,755,929 $ 3,486,183 $ 3,168,860

Non-current assets exclude investments accounted for using equity method,
deferred income tax assets and refundable deposits paid.

Information of major customers

Customers accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue of the Consolidated

Company are shown below:

Name 2022 2021
AC $1,115,607 $ 841,720
AH 440,963 483,498
$ 1,556,570 $1,325,218
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Table 1

GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

The purchase and sale of goods with related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more

2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ Accou_nts Payable or
Nature of Receivable
Company Name Counterparty Relationships Purchases/ Unit Payment Remark
S Amount % to Total Payment Terms - Ending Balance | % to Total
ales Price Terms
GEM Electronics GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Subsidiary to Sales ($1,624144) | ( 65% ) |Net90 days from the — — $ 488,823 79% |Notes 1,2and 3
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Branch subsidiary end of the month of
delivery
GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan |GEM Electronics Purchase 1,624,144 57% — — ( 488,823) | ( 85% ) |Notes1,2and3
Branch (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
GEM Electronics (Hefei) Purchase 1,208,754 43% — — ( 86,244) | (  15% ) |Notes1,2and 3
Co., Ltd.
GEM Electronics (Hefei) |GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Sales ( 1,208,754) | ( 70%) — — 86,244 61% [Notes1,2and3
Co., Ltd. Branch
Mitsubishi Electric GEM Subsidiaries to Sales ( 147,748) | ( 9% ) |Electroplating services: — — 9,583 7% Notes 2 and 4
Power Device (Hefei) affiliates monthly T/T 45 days;
Co., Ltd. Lease and other
services: collected on
a monthly basis.

Note 1: The transaction price is determined by the cost-plus pricing.

Note 2: There is no unrealized profit or loss for this period.

Note 3: It has been eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Note 4: The revenue from electroplating services is determined by the cost-plus method; the lease revenue is based on the contract signed according to the general market conditions; the revenue from other services is based on
the content of the contract.
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GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Accounts receivable from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more
December 31, 2022

Table 2 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Overdue Amounts
Company Name Counterparty Nat_ure of Ending Balance Turnover _ Received in Allowance for
Relationships Rate Amount Action Taken Subsequent Bad Debts
Period (Note 1)
GEM Electronics GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan |Subsidiary to Accounts receivable 3.38 $ - — $ 374,950 $ -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Branch subsidiary $ 488,823

Note 1: Amount recovered from January 1 to March 21, 2023.

Note 2: It has been eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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The relationship and circumstances and amounts of important transactions between the parent and subsidiary companies and between each subsidiary

GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

2022
Table 3 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Relationship to the Transaction Details
No. Counterparty Transaction Counterparty Counterparty Account Amount (Note 1) Transaction Terms % :f Total Sales or
ssets (Note 2)
1 |GEM Electronics (Shanghai) |GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Branch Note 3 (3) Sales Revenue $ 1,624,144 (Note 4)|Net 90 days from the 31%
Co., Ltd. end of the month of
delivery
Accounts receivable due 488,823 - 7%
from related parties
Contract assets - related 39,586 - 1%
parties
2 |GEM Electronics (Hefei) Co., |GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Branch Note 3 (3) Sales Revenue 1,208,754  (Note 4) |Net 90 days from the 23%
Ltd. end of the month of
delivery
Accounts receivable due 86,244 - 1%
from related parties
Contract assets - related 24,072 - -
parties
3 |GEM Tech Ltd. The Company Note 3 (2) Remittance of earnings 884,504 - 13%

The business relationship between the parent and the subsidiaries:

The Company and GEM Electronics Company Limited are holding companies; GEM Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sale of electronic parts; GEM

Electronics (Hefei) Co., Ltd. is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sale of electronic parts and plant leasing; GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan Branch and GEM Tech Ltd. sell electronic components.

Note 1: This table discloses information on one-way transactions only, which have been eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: The calculation of the ratio of the transaction amount to the consolidated total revenue or total assets is calculated by the closing balance for the consolidated total assets if it is an asset-liability

account or calculated by the accumulated amount for the consolidated total revenue if it is a profit and loss account

Note 3: Relationship to the counterparty:

(1) Parent company to subsidiary

(2) Subsidiary to parent company

(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary

Note 4: There is no unrealized profit or loss for this period.
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GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Information, location... and other related information of subsidiaries

2022
Table 4
(Except for the number of shares, all denominated in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and foreign currency)
Original Investment Amount Holding of Investment at the End of the Period Invested X
Company’s Profit and/or
Investment Company Invested Company Location Business Scope CUErp:n?fP ;}:?od End of Last Year Quantity Proportion (;\ar;rg/l;z? Profit and/or Los:hzeg:_zgr;lr:]lzed Remark
Loss this Term
The Company GEM Electronics Company Limited | British Virgin Islands |Holding company $ - $ - 100 100% $ 2,531,508 $ 316,561 $ 316,561 Note 1
business
GEM Tech Ltd. Samoa Sales of electronic parts 18,202 18,202 606,091 100% 1,714,703 635,358 635,358 Note 1
(USD 606)|(USD  606)

Note 1: The relevant investment profit and loss recognition is based on the financial statements of the investee company audited by the CPA during the same period.
Note 2: It has been eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Note 3: Please refer to Table 5 for relevant information on investment in Mainland China.
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Table 5

GEM SERVICES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Information of investment in Mainland China

2022

Unit: thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/ foreign currency

Accumulated

Investment Flows

Accumulated

Invested

Carrying Amount

Accumulated
Inward

. . Outflow of Outflow of The Company’s N Profit and/or Loss X
Invested C.O mpany in Business Scope Paid-in S hares Investment Method | Investment from Investment from Direct or Indirect Company’s Pro.ﬁt Recognized this of Investments at Rem!ttance of
China Capital - Outflow Inflow . . and/or Loss this the End of the Earnings as of
Taiwan as of Taiwan as of Holding Percentage Term ]
Term Period December 31,
January 1, 2022 December 31, 2022 2022
GEM Electronics Manufacture and sales | $ 2,118,990 |Reinvested by GEM $ - $ - $ - $ - 100% $ 316,561 $ 316,561 $ 2,531,508 $ -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. of electronic parts | (USD 69,000) | Electronics (Note 2(2) 2.)
(Note 4) (Note 5) Company Limited
(Note 1(2))
GEM Electronics Manufacture and sales 1,924,770 |Reinvested by GEM - - - - 100% 154,417 154,417 1,059,231 -
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. of electronic parts, | (RMB 436,511)| Electronics (Note 2(2) 2.)
(Note 4) factory leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(Note 1(3))
Mitsubishi Electric Production, design, 153,550 |Reinvested by GEM - - - - 20% 73,176 14,635 101,489 -
GEM Power Device | packaging and (USD 5,000)| Electronics (Note 2(2) 1.)

(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

testing of power
management
electronic
accessories

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

(Note 1(3))

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China as of December 31, 2022 |

Investment Amounts Authorized by Investment Commission, MOEA |

Upper Limit on Investment

(Note 6)

(Note 6)

(Note 6)

Note 1:

(1) Directly conduct investment in China.

There are three types of investment methods, and they indicated below:

(2)  Reinvestment in Mainland China through a third regional company (GEM Electronics Company Limited).
(3)  Other methods (reinvestment through GEM Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.).

Note 2:

In the investment profit and loss recognized in the current period

(1)  Itshall be indicated if it is under preparation without investment profit or loss.

(2)  The basis for recognition of investment gains and losses is divided into the following three types, which should be indicated.

1. Financial statements audited by an international accounting firm that has a cooperative relationship with an accounting firm of the Republic of China.

2. Financial statements audited by the CPA firm of the parent company in Taiwan.

3. Based on the financial statements of the invested company that had not been audited by accountants during the same period.

Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:

Relevant figures in this table should be denominated in New Taiwan Dollars.
It has been eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Part of it is reinvested with surplus funds from the third region.

The Company is not a company established by the Republic of China, so it is not applicable.
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GEM Services, Inc.
Information of major shareholders
December 31, 2022

Table 6
Shareholding
Name of Major Shareholders: Shares Held Ratio of
Shareholding
Elite Advanced Laser Corporation 65,809,451 51%

Note: In this chart, major shareholders are defined as shareholders with more than 5% collective
holding interest in common and preferred shares that have been delivered via book entry
(including treasury stocks), as shown in the records of TDCC on the final business day of
the current quarter. Share capital, as shown in the financial statements, may differ from the
number of shares that have been delivered via book entry due to differences in the

preparation basis.
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V. The individual financial report audited by CPAs tbe latest year:

VI.

Not Applicable.

If the Company or its affiliates have experiencediicial difficulties in the latest year and up
to the publication date of the annual report, thieual report shall explain how said difficulties
will affect the Company’s financial situation.

None.

VIl. The evaluation basis of the balance sheet valuétams

Balance sheet

[S

D

are

No. . Evaluation reference Evaluation basis
valuation item
1 | Allowance for The impairment assessment ¢0fThe allowance for doubtful accoun
doubtful accounts | accounts receivable is based pis made based on the probability
the actual follow up record to | assessment of collection of accour
assess the possibility of receivable.
recovery of individual Assess the Impairment of accountg
customers who are overdue. | receivable individually. According
to the Company’s internal
management practices, those that
overdue for more than 30 days are
regarded as risky assets, and are
judged as evidence of impairment
according to the collection.
2 | Allowance for Depending on the inventory | 1. 1 to 30 days: 0%

obsolete inventory

age range, the allowance for
obsolete loss is calculated
according to different
percentages.

2. 31to 90 days: accrual of 5% lo
3. 91 to 120 days: accrual of 10%
loss

4. 121 to 150 days: accrual of 20%

loss

5. 151 to 180 days: accrual of 30
loss

6. 181 to 539 days: accrual of 509
loss

7. over 540 days: accrual of 100%

S

U

loss

-242 -



Chapter ViI

analysis and risks

Analysis of Financial status

Unit: NT$ thousand

Financial status and performance review

Year Difference
2021 2022

ltem Amount %
Current assets 3,386,237  3,279,23( (207,007 (3.16%
Investments
accounted for using
equity method 88,869 101,489 12,620 14.20%
Property, plant and
equipment 2,437,086 2,914,089 477,003 19.57%
Intangible assets 3,721 1,827 (1,894) (50.90%
Other assets 761,409 617,709 (143,700 (18.87%
Total assets 6,677,3R2 6,914,344 237,022 3.55%
Current liabilities 2,026,408 1,991,013 (35,395 (1.75%
Non-current liabilitieg 521,742 579,527 57,780 11.079%
Total liabilities 2,548,150 2,570,535 22,385 0.88%
Capital stock 1,290,414 1,290,474 0 —
Capital surplus 624,536 624,534 0 —
Retained earnings 2,417,274  2,637,83( 220,567 9.12%
Other equity (203,112) (209,037 (5,925) 2.92%
Treasury stock — — — —
Total equity 4,129,172 4,343,809 214,637 5.20%

significantly.

Description of major variations of accounting iter(iscrease/decrease in ratio reaches
or exceeds NT$10 million): The Company’s financiebndition has not chang

Analysis of Financial performance

() Comparative analysis of operation results
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year Increase )
2021 2022 Ratio (%)
Item /(Decrease)
Revenue 4,755,929 5,221,467 465,538 9.79%
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Year Increase i
2021 2022 Ratio (%)
ltem /(Decrease)
Operating costs 3,349,6p2 3,970,23( 620,609 18.53%
Gross profit 1,406,307 1,251,237 (155,070 (11.03%
Operating expenses 320,874 386,039 65,459 20.42%
Operating income 1,085,783 865,204 (220,529 (20.31%
Non-operating incom
and expenses (32,986) 269,975 302,961 (918.45%
Profit before Income
tax 1,052,74y 1,135,179 82,432 7.83%
Tax expenses 194,762 204,854 10,094 5.18%
Net income 857,985 930,323 72,338 8.43%
Other comprehensive
income (net amount
after tax) 2,544 (5,925 (8,469) (332.90%
Total comprehensive
income 860,52 924,394 63,869 7.42%
Description of major variations of accounting iterfiacrease/decrease in ratio reaches
or exceeds NT$10 million)
1. The increase in operating expenses was mainly du¢he additional purchase
anti-pandemic materials during 2022.
2. The decrease in operating income was mainly duantancrease in labor costs &
depreciation in 2022.
3. The increase in non-operatimgcome is mainly due to an increase in foreign exclg
gains as a result of the depreciation of the NT® RNB during 2022.

()} The expected sales volume and its basis, the pessipact on the Company’s future
financial business and the response plan
The estimated sales of the Company in 2023 is méted by the management team
based on the latest sales performance, customeatmpeoverview, market share, new
product development progress and overall industyetbpment assessment, with
consideration of the sales target set by the Cowipaproduction capacity. The
expected sales quantities in 2023 is as follows:
Unit: KPcs
ltem Sales quantities
Power semiconductor packaging and testing 5,434,756
Cash flow
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() Analysis on cash flow change in the latest year

1. Analysis on the cash flow change

Unit: NT$ thousand

Net cash flow | Net cash flow from Countermeasure for cash
. : . . Cash defici
Opening cash from operating investing and surolus eficits
balance activities in the finahcing activities (de f?cit) Investing | Financing
year in the year plans plans
1,652,649 1,588,337 (1,267,349) 1,973,637 - -

Analysis of change in cash flow in the current year

(1)

(2)

Operating activities: Cash inflow of NT$1,588,386Wsand, mainly due to continuous and
stable profits in 2022.
Investing activities and financing activities: casliflow of NT$1,267,349 thousand, mainly
for capital expenditures and cash dividends.

2. Improvement plan for illiquidity problems
There is no illiquidity problem.

3. Analyses on the cash liquidity in one year ahead
Not Applicable.

The impact of the significant capital expenditureerothe past year upon the financial
performance

As the Company’s operation and cash inflows frorarapng activities are stable, the source
of funds for major capital expenditures in recesding is mostly from its own working capital,

so there is no significant capital expenditure iotgan the Company’s finances.

The outward investment policies over the past y€he key reasons leading to the profit or
loss, the corrective plans and the investment iplame year ahead

() Investment Policy

The Company focuses on its core business, andhtestment policy is based on basic
business-related investment targets. The relevaatutive departments follow the
“investment cycle” and “Procedures for Acquisitiand Disposal of Assets” and other
methods stipulated in the internal control polici€ee above methods or procedures
have been approved by the Board of Directors oresindders.
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V1.

(I

None.

The reason and improvement plan for the profibsslof investment in the latest year
Unit: NT$ thousand
Ratio of Profit and/or ) ]
_ _ | Main reason for profit of Improvement
Investee Shareholding [loss recognize)
_ loss plan
(%) in 2022
o Engaged in the sales of
GEM Tech Limited 100% 635,358 ) —
electronic parts
_ Recognized as investme
GEM Electronics T ]
o 100% 316,561 |gains in GEM Electronics —
Company Limited _
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
GEM Electronics Engaged in the sales of
_ 100% 316,561 , —
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. electronic parts
_ Engaged in the sales of
GEM Electronics )
] 100% 154,417 |electronic parts and —
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. ) ,
leasing services
Mitsubishi Electric The profit has been stahle
GEM Power Device 20% 14,635 |since the establishment|in —
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. 2011.
(1 Investment plan for the coming year:

Risk events and assessments in the latest yearthp publication date of the annual report

Please see page 6 -38.

VII. Other important disclosures

None.
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Chapter VIII  Special disclosure

I.  Relevant information of affiliated enterprises
()] Affiliates enterprises organization chart

December 31, 2022

GEM Services, Inc.

GEM Electronics

Company Limited GEM Tech Limited

GEM Electronics GEM Tech Ltd.,
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Taiwan Branch

GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

The shareholding ratio in the above figure is 100%.

() Information of affiliated enterprises

1. Direct investment

December 31, 2022; Unit: dollar

Name of enterprise Esta(kj)lal‘?gment Address Paid-in capital Main business itemg
GEM Tech Limited June, 2012 Samoa USD 606,001  Sdlekectronic
parts
GEM Electronics Company November, 2000 British Virgin USD 100 | Holding company
Limited Islands business
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2. Indirect investment

December 31, 2022; Unit: dollar

Name of enterprise

Establishment

date

Address

Paid-in
capital/working

capital

Main business items

GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

December,
1998

Mainland
China

uUSsD 69,000,000

Manufacture and sales ¢f

electronic parts

September,

Mainland

RMB 436,510,473

Manufacture and sales of

GEM Electronics
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.

2006 China electronic parts, factory

leasing

GEM Tech Ltd., Taiwan| September, Taiwan NTD 18,000,000 Sales of electronic parts

Branch 2012

Information on the shareholders presumed to halaioeship of control and
subordination: None.

The industries covered by the business operateéldebgffiliates overall

The main investment business items of the overalim@any and affiliate
companies include power management components,atBaging and testing
services, and plant leasing.

Information and to data of directors and supergs@residents of affiliated
enterprises:

(I

(111

(V)

Shareholding
Ratio of Shareholding
(%)
Chu-Liang, Cheng - -
Chu-Liang, Cheng - -

Name or the

Title .
representative person

Name of enterprise .
Quantity

Chairman
Chairman

GEM Tech Limited

GEM Electronics Company
Limited

GEM Electronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

GEM Electronics (Hefei)
Co., Ltd.

(V)  Business performances of affiliated enterprises
December 31, 2022; Unit: NT$ thousand

Chairman | Chu-Liang, Cheng - -

Chairman | Chu-Liang, Cheng - -

Name of
enterprise

Paid- in
capital

Total
assets

Total
liabilities

Net
value

Operating
revenue

Profit

(loss)

from
operation

Net
Income
(loss)

Earnings per
share (NT$)

GEM Tech
Limited

18,202

3,440,766

1,726,063

1,714,703

3,847,244

689,156

635,358

Not
Applicable

GEM
Electronics
Company
Limited

2,531,508

2,531,508

316,561

316,561

316,561

Not
Applicable

GEM
Electronics

2,118,990

3,477,823

915,894

2,561,929

2,481,300

78,000

316,561

Not
Applicable
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Profit
Name of Paid- in Total Total Net Operating (loss) Intlc?rtne Earnings pe
enterprise capital assets | liabilities value revenue from (loss) share (NT$)
operation
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.
GEM
Electronics Not
. 1,924,770| 1,663,778 574,126| 1,089,652 1,726,889 152,218| 154,417 .
(Hefei) Co., Applicable
Ltd.

Note: The amount of paid-in capital, total asstttal liabilities and net value listed by the Compane converted at the exchange
rate at the end of 2022 and the operating revemadit (loss) from operation, net income (loss) aainings per share are

converted at the 2022 annual average exchange rate.

(VI)  The Affiliate’s Consolidated Financial Statements
It is identical as the consolidated financial reépof the Company and its
subsidiaries, please refer to pages 170 to 241.

(VIl) Information on endorsement/guarantees, loaning wid$, and derivative
commodity transactions of affiliated enterprises:
1. Endorsements/Guarantees of Affiliated Enterpribisie.
2. Lending funds of affiliated enterprises to othétsne.
3. Affiliated enterprises trading in financial deriixads: None.

Il.  Where the Company has carried out a private placeofesecurities in the latest year and up
to the publication date of the annual report

None.

lll. Holding or disposal of the Company’s shares bystdisidiaries in the latest year and up to the
publication date of the annual report

None.
IV. Other supplementary information

The major differences between the Articles of Asstoan and the regulations on the protection
of shareholders’ equity in the R.O.C. are summadrered explained as follows:

Checklist items for the _ _ _
Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢

protection of shareholder . Description
. Association
equity
Procedures for capital increagrticle 8.9 of the Articles of According to the lawyer’s

such as cash capital increaseAssociation: Subject to the provisionspinion, Article 8.9 of the
through issuance of new of the Applicable Public Company |Articles of Association should
shares, capital increase Rules, when the total number of newhave no significant adverse
through capitalization of Shares in issue has been subscribedrpact on shareholders’ equity.
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

retained earnings, capital
increase through capitalizatic
of capital reserve, etc.

in full, the Company shall immediate
peend a call notice to the subscribers
unpaid Shares. Where Shares are
issued at a price higher than par val
the premium and the par value shall
collected at the same time. Where tf
subscriber delays payment for
subscribing to the Shares, the
Company shall designate a cure pet
of not less than one month by servir
a notice on him/her/it requiring such
payment. The Company shall also
declare in the notice that in case of
default of payment within the said ct
period, the subscriber’s right to
subscribe to new Shares shall be
forfeited. After the Company has me
such request, the subscribers who f
to settle the outstanding payment
accordingly shall forfeit their rights t
subscribe to the Shares and the Sha
subscribed by them in the first place
shall be otherwise offered by the
Company.

for

be
e

iod
g

il

D
Ares

In issuing new shares by
cash capital increase,
unless the shareholders
have different resolutions
a company shall make
public announcement an
advise, by notice, its
original shareholders to
subscribe for, with
preemptive right, the new
shares, in proportion
respectively to their

Article 8.2 of the Articles of
Association: Unless otherwise
resolved by the Members in general
,meeting by Ordinary Resolution,
where the Company increases its
Icapital by issuing new Shares for ca
the Company shall, after reserving
Shares for Public Offering (defined
below) and Shares for Employees’
Subscription (defined below) in
accordance with Article 8.3, make a
public announcement and notify eag

original shareholding and

According to the lawyer’s
opinion, Articles 8.2 and 8.3 of
the Articles of Association have
been formulated in accordance
with the revised content of the
sithecking List of Protecting
Rights of Foreign Issuer’s
Shareholders in the Country of
Registration”.

Article 8.5 of the Articles of
Association is aimed at excludir
lthe limitations of Paragraph 1-3

Member that he/shelit is entitled to

Article 267 of the Company Act
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

shall state in the notice th
if any shareholder fails to
subscribe for new shares
his right shall be forfeited
Where a fractional
percentage of the origina
shares being held by a
shareholder is insufficien
to subscribe for one new
share, the fractional
percentages of the origin
shares being held by
several shareholders may
be combined for joint
subscription of one or
more integral new shares
or for subscription of new
shares in the name of a
single shareholder. New
shares left unsubscribed
original shareholders may
be open for public
issuance or for
subscription by specific
person or persons throug
negotiation.

2. When a company issues

new shares in R.O.C.
territory through cash
capital increase, unless
such a public offering is
deemed to be unnecessa
or inappropriate by the
Competent Authority, it
will be required a certain
percentage of its new

exercise a pre-emptive right to
purchase his/her/its pro rata portion
any new Shares issued in the capita
.increase in cash. A waiver of such
pre-emptive right may be approved
the same general meeting where the
subject issuance of new Shares is
approved by the Members. The
Company shall state in such
announcement and notices to the
AMembers that if any Member fails to
purchase his/her/its pro rata portion
ythe newly-issued Shares within the
prescribed period, such Member sha
be deemed to forfeit his/her/its
pre-emptive right to purchase the
newly-issued Shares. Subject to
Article 6.3, in the event that Shares
held by a Member are insufficient fo
lsuch Member to exercise the
pre-emptive right to purchase one
newly-issued Share, Shares held by
several Members may be calculated
together for joint purchase of
mewly-issued Shares or for purchase
newly-issued Shares in the name of
single Member pursuant to the
Applicable Public Company Rules. |
the total number of the new Shares
be issued has not been fully subscri
by the Members within the prescribe
nyeriod, the Company may offer any
un-subscribed new Shares to be iss
to the public in R.O.C. or to specific
person or persons according to the
Applicable Public Company Rules.

issues to be publicly

and Article 28-1 of the Securitie
@&xchange Act regarding the
loriginal shareholders’ rights to
priority subscription to new
Assues, so it complies with the
pArticle 8 of Business Mergers
And Acquisitions Act.

of

all

> of
a

o
bed
d

ued

Article 8.3 of the Articles of
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

offered. The ten percent
requirement shall be
precluded in case a highe
percentage has been so
determined by a resolutio
of the shareholders
meeting.

Association: Where the Company

increases its capital in cash by issui
2new Shares in R.0.C., the Company
shall allocate 10% of the total amou
of the new Shares to be issued, for

determined by the board of Director
according to the Applicable Public

of the FSC, or TWSE, for the
Company to conduct the
aforementioned public offering.
Provided however, if a percentage
higher than the aforementioned 109
resolved by a general meeting to be
offered, the percentage determined
such resolution shall prevail (“Share
for Public Offering”). The Company

amount of the new Shares to be issl
for the subscription by the employee
of the Company and its Subsidiaries
(“Shares for Employees’
Subscription”). The Company may
restrain the shares subscribed by th

transferred or assigned to others wi
a specific period of time which shall
no case be longer than two years.
Article 8.5 of the Articles of
Association: The pre-emptive right g
Members provided under Article 8.2
shall not apply in the event that new
Shares are issued due to the followi
reasons or for the following purpose

offering in R.O.C. to the public unless
it is not necessary or appropriate, as

Company Rules and/or the instruction

may reserve 10% to 15% of the total

aforementioned employees from beJng

\*2)

b IS
by

S

led
S

e

hin
in

—n

(a) in connection with a Merger with
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

another company, or the Spin-off of
the Company, or pursuant to any

connection with meeting the
Company’s obligations under Share
subscription warrants and/or options
including those referenced in Article
11.1to 11.4; (c) in connection with
meeting the Company’s obligations
under convertible bonds or corporat
bonds vested with rights to acquire
Shares; (d) in connection with meeti
the Company’s obligations under
Preferred Shares vested with rights
acquire Shares; (e) in connection wi
a Private Placement;(f) in connectio
with the issue of Restricted Shares i
accordance with Article 8.7; or (Q)
other matters in accordance with the
Applicable Public Company Rules.

reorganization of the Company; (b) in

[72)

D

to
th

-0 =

14

(1) Company division,

(2) Enter into, amend, or

When the shareholders
meeting resolves any of
the following matters, th
dissenting shareholders
shall have the right to

request the Company to
buy back his shares:

merger, acquisition or
share exchange;

terminate any contract f¢
lease of the Company’s
business in whole, or fo
entrusted business, or fq
regular joint operation

Article 22.1 of the amended Articles
of Association: Subject to the Statut
5n the event any of the following
resolutions is adopted at a general
meeting, any Member who has
expressed his/her/its objection there
in writing or verbally with a record
before or during the general meeting
and has casted a veto or forfeited
his/herl/its voting right during the
general meeting may request the
p€ompany to buy back all of his/her/i
Shares at the then prevailing fair pri
(a) The Company enters into, amen
por terminates any agreement for lea

with others; transfer the

of the Company’s business in whole

The 2023 shareholders’ meetin
ayill be revised based on the late
version of the Checking List of
Protecting Rights of
Shareholders. According to the
flervyer’s opinion, Articles 22.1 t(
22.5 of the amended Articles of
JAssociation should have no
significant adverse impact on
shareholders’ equity.

]

St

or the delegation of management of
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

whole or any essential
part of its business or
assets; or accept the
transfer of another’s
whole business or asset
which has great bearing
on the business operatig
of the Company.
The shareholder’s requs
for the preceding
paragraph shall be
submitted in writing
within 20 days from the
resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting,
and shall specify the
requested purchase prig
If the Company and
shareholder reach an
agreement about the pri
of buying back, the
Company shall pay for
the shares within 90 day
since the resolution of th
shareholders’ meeting. |
the event that no
agreement is reached
with the dissenting
Member, the Company
shall pay the fair price it
has recognized to such
dissenting Member
within ninety days since
the resolution was made
If the Company fails to
pay, the Company shall

with others; (b) The Company
transfers the whole or a material par

—

the foregoing does not apply where
pauch transfer is pursuant to the

dissolution of the Company; (c) The
§lompany accepts the transfer of the
whole business or assets of another

the Company’s business operations
(d) Spin-Off (other than a Short-form
Spin-off); (e) Merger (other than a
Short-form Merger); (f) Acquisition;
or (g) Share Exchange (other than 3
&hort-form Share Exchange).

The voting right of the Member who
has forfeited pursuant to this Article
czhall not be counted in the number of
votes of Members present at the
general meeting.

Article 22.2 of the Articles of
Association: Unless otherwise
rprovided by the Applicable Public

event of a Short-form Merger, a
Short-form Spin-off or a Short-form

the voting power of the outstanding
shares of the Company are held by
other company participating in the
such Merger, Spin-off or Share
Exchange, the Company shall delivg
notice to each of the Member
immediately after the resolution of

be considered to be

board of directors approving such

the Company’s business to other or|the
regular joint operation of the Company

f its business or assets, provided that,

person, which has a material impact on

Company Rules and the Statute, in the

Share Exchange where at least 90% of
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

agreeable to the price
requested by the
dissenting Member.
Shareholders who vote
against or abstain from
voting at the
shareholders’ meeting
may request the
Company to purchase &
of their shares based on
the reasons specified in
Subparagraph 1 of
Paragraph 1. In case no
agreement is reached
within 60 days since the
resolution of the genera
meeting or the board
meeting was made, the
Company shall apply to
the court for a ruling on
the fair price against all
the dissenting
shareholders as the
opposing party within 3@
days after that duration
and the Taiwan Taipei
District Court will be the
court of first instance
jurisdiction.

The voting right of the
Member who has
forfeited pursuant to the
previous Article shall no
be counted in the numbgq
of votes of Members
present at the general

Short-form Merger, Short-form
Spin-off or Short-form Share

Exchange, and such notice shall state

that any Member who expressed
his/her/its objection against the
Short-form Merger, Short-form
Spin-off, or the Short-form Share
Exchange within the specified perioc
imay submit a written objection
requesting the Company to buy bac
all of his/her/its Shares at the then
prevailing fair price.

Article 22.3 of the Articles of
Association: Subject to the Statute,

A

the

request prescribed in Articles 22.1 and

22.2 shall be delivered to the
Company in writing, stating therein
the types, numbers and the repurch
price of Shares requested to be

repurchased, within twenty days afte

the date of the relevant resolutions.
the event the requesting Member ar
the Company have reached an
agreement in regard to the repurcha
price of the Shares held by such
Member, the Company shall pay su
price within ninety days after the dat
on which the resolution was adoptec
In the event that no agreement is
reached with the dissenting Membe
the Company shall pay the fair price
has recognized to such dissenting
[Member within ninety days since the
presolution was made. If the Compan
fails to pay, the Company shall be
considered to be agreeable to the p

meeting.

ASe

In

d

Se

it

y

ce

requested by the dissenting Membe
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

Article 22.4 of the Articles of

Association: Subject to the Statute,
the event that any Member requests
the Company to buy back his/herl/its
Shares pursuant to Article 22.3, and
the Company and the requesting
Member fail to reach the agreement

Shares held by such Member within
sixty days after the resolution date, 1
Company shall apply to any compet
R.O.C. court against all the dissenti
Members as the opposing party with
thirty days after the expiry of the
sixty-day period for a ruling on the
price of the repurchased Shares, an
the Taipei District Court, R.O.C., ma
be the court of the first instance. Su
ruling by such R.O.C. court shall be
binding and conclusive as between
Company and the dissenting Membg

repurchased Shares.

Article 22.5 of the Articles of
Association: Subject to the Statute,
payment of price of the repurchased
Shares and the delivery of Share
Certificates shall comply with the
Applicable Public Company Rules.

regard to the repurchase price of the

d

solely with respect to the price of the

n

he
ent
g
n

y
ch

he
oIS

the

The Company shall not do a
of the following acts without
resolution adopted by a
majority of the shareholders
present who represent
two-thirds or more of the totg
number of its outstanding

nArticle 14.2 of the Articles of
BAssociation: Subject to the provisior
of the Statute, the Articles and the
Applicable Public Company Rules, t
Company shall by a Supermajority
IResolution:

(a) sell, transfer or lease of whole

shares. If the total number of

According to the lawyer’s
®pinion, Article 14.2 of the
Articles of Association should
feave no significant adverse
impact on shareholders’ equity.

business of the Company or other
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Association

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢

Description

shares represented by the

shareholders present at

shareholders’ meeting is not
sufficient to meet the criteria
specified in the preceding
paragraph, the resolution to
made thereto may be adopte
by two-thirds or more of the
attending shareholders who
represent a majority of the
total number of its outstandir]
shares.

1. Enterinto, amend, or
terminate any contract f
lease of the Company’s
business in whole, or fot
entrusted business, or fq
regular joint operation
with others; transfer the
whole or any essential
part of its business or
assets; or accept the
transfer of another’s
whole business or asset
which has great bearing
on the business operatig
of the Company.

2. Alteration in the Articles
of Association

3. In case any modification
or alteration in the
Articles of Association
prejudicial to the
privileges of special
shareholders shall be
adopted by a meeting of

matters which has a material effect

approve any action by any Director(
who is engaging in business for

Company’s business; (d) effect any
capitalization of distributable

35 hereof; (e) distribute its Legal
Reserve, in whole or in part, by
piISsuing new shares which shall be
distributable as dividend shares to it
original shareholders in proportion t
pthe number of shares being held by
each of them or by cash; (f) effect a
Merger (other than a Short-form
Merger) or Spin-off (other than a
Short-form Spin-off), provided that
any Merger which falls within the
definition of “merger and/or

also be subject to the requirements

the Company’s whole business, or f
entrusted business, or for frequent

joint operation with others; (h) transf
its business or assets, in whole or in
any essential part, provided that, the
foregoing does not apply where suc
transfer is pursuant to the dissolutio
of the Company; (i) acquire or assur

special shareholders.

person, which has material effect o

the Members’ rights and interests; (b)
discharge or remove any Director; (¢

geim/her/itself or on behalf of another
gherson that is within the scope of th¢

Dividends and/or bonuses and/or any
other amount prescribed under Article

onsolidation” under the Statute shal

the Statute; (g) enter into, amend, of
terminate any agreement for lease qf

DN

U)J

U

<!

er

N

N
g

the whole business or assets of an’cilther

ne
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

Have the surplus profit
distributable as dividend

and bonuses in whole or

in part distributed in the
form of new shares;

A resolution for
dissolution, consolidatio
or merger, or split-up
Share Exchange

the Company’s operation; and (j)
$Share Exchange.

If any director is an
interested party with
respect to any agenda
item, the director shall
state the important
aspects of the interested
party relationship at the
respective meeting;
where proposals are
under consideration
concerning a proposed
M&A by the Company, &
Director who has a
personal interest in the
proposed transaction
shall disclose at the
meeting of the Board of
Directors and the geners:
meeting the nature of
such director’s personal
interest and the reason(
for the approval or
objection to the propose
resolution. The Compan
shall specify the materia
content of the director’s
personal interest and th¢

Article 30.5 of the amended Articles
of Association: A Director who has 3
personal interest in the matter unde
discussion at a meeting of the
Directors, shall disclose to the meet
Ithe material information of such
interest; provided that in the event a
Director’s spouse or any relatives
within the second degree of kinship
with a Director, or company(s) which
has controlling and subordinating
\relationship with a Director, has a
personal interest in the matter unde
discussion at a meeting, the said
Director shall be deemed to have a
personal interest in such matter. A
Director who has a conflict of intereg
avhich may impair the interest of the

voting rights on behalf of another
SDirector; the voting right of such

Director who cannot vote or exercis{
cdny voting right as prescribed above
yshall not be counted in the number ¢
lvotes of Directors present at the boa
meeting. Where proposals are unde
consideration concerning a propose

Company shall not vote nor exercise

The 2023 shareholders’ meetin
Lwill be revised based on the late
version of the Checking List of
Protecting Rights of
Bhareholders. According to the
lawyer’s opinion, Articles 30.5 of
the Articles of Association should
have no significant adverse
impact on shareholders’ equity.
|

—

D

14

L

f
ard

[®X

reason(s) for the approv

dM&A by the Company, a Director
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

or objection to the
proposed resolution in th
meeting notice of the
general meeting and the
content may be placed ¢
the website specified by
the R.O.C. competent
authorities of securities
by the Company, and th
website address link shé
be indicated in the notic
Where the spouse, a
blood relative within the
second degree of kinshi
of a director, or any
company which has a

controlling or subordinat&Company, and the website address

relation with a director
has interests in the
matters under discussio
in the meeting of the
preceding paragraph,
such director shall be
deemed to have a
personal interest in the
matter.

A Director who has a
personal interest in the
matter under discussion
at a meeting, which may
impair the interest of the
Company, shall not vote
nor exercise the voting
right on behalf of anotheg
Director. In passing a
resolution at a Board

who has a personal interest in the
proposed transaction shall disclose

guch director’s personal interest ang
the reason(s) for the approval or
objection to the proposed resolution
The Company shall specify the
enaterial content of the director’s

the approval or objection to the
proposed resolution in the meeting
notice of the general meeting and t
content may be placed on the Webg
specified by the R.O.C. competent
authorities of securities or by the

shall be indicated in the notice.

-

meeting, directors for

the meeting of the board of Directors
and the general meeting the nature pf

lbersonal interest and the reason(s) for

e
te
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Association

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢

Description

which voting right canno
be exercised as provide
in foregoing provision
shall not be counted in
the number of votes of
directors present at the
meeting.

O~

The Directors shall
faithfully carry out their
duties with care, and mg
be held liable for the
damages suffered by thg
Company for any
violation of such duty. In
case a director does
anything for himself or
on behalf of another
person, the meeting of
shareholders may, by a
resolution, consider the
earnings in such an act
earnings of the Compan
The Directors and the
Company shall jointly
and severally indemnify
the third party for any
losses or damages
incurred by such third
party if such loss or
damage is incurred as a
result of a Director’s
breach of laws or
regulations in the course
of performing his duties.
Managers and
supervisors of the

dsenefit of the Company. The Directd
yshall indemnify the Company for any

2of a Director’s breach of laws or

Article 26.5 of the Articles of
Association: The Directors shall
iyaithfully carry out their duties with
care, and may be held liable for the
rdamages suffered by the Company
any violation of such duty. The
Company may by Ordinary Resoluti
of any general meeting demand the
Directors, who violate such duties, t
disgorge any profit realised from suc
violation and regard the profits
realised as the profits of the Compa
as if such violation was made for the

losses or damages incurred by the
Company if such loss or damage is
incurred as a result of a Director’s

breach of laws or regulations in the
course of performing his duties. The
Directors and the Company shall

jointly and severally indemnify the
third party for any losses or damage
incurred by such third party if such
loss or damage is incurred as a resu

regulations in the course of performi
his duties. The aforementioned dutie
of the Directors shall also apply to t

Company shall bear the

According to the lawyer’s
opinion, Article 26.5 of the
Articles of Association has beer
formulated in accordance with t
foevised content of the “Checkin
List of Protecting Rights of
Jroreign Issuer’s Shareholders i
the Country of Registration”.
pAccording to the lawyer’s
tbpinion, Article 26.5 of the
Articles of Association should
fyave no significant adverse
2impact on shareholders’ equity.
fBhe Director’s duties include the
execution of
merger/consolidation. Thus, the
Board of Directors shall, in the
course of conducting the
merger/consolidation or
acquisition, in the best interest of
the Company, fulfill its duty of
care. Any director involved in
glecision-making for a merger/

consolidation or acquisition sha
lve liable for any damage to the
Company in accordance with
maragraph 1 and 2, Article 5 of
2Business Mergers and
Acquisitions Act.

managers of the Company.
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

same liability for
damages as directors of
within the scope of their
duties.

Before any resolution of
merger/consolidation an
acquisition by the Board
of Directors, the
Company shall have an
Audit Committee or forn
a special committee to
review the fairness and
reasonableness of the
plan and transaction of
the merger or acquisitiot
and then to report the
review results to the
Board of Directors and
the general meeting.
However, if it is not
necessary to convene a
general meeting for the
resolution of merge or

Article 32.8 of the Articles of
cAssociation: Prior to the
commencement of the meeting of
Board of Directors to adopt any
resolution of M&A, the Company
shall have the Audit Committee
review the fairness and reasonabler
of the plan and transaction of the
M&A, and then report the results of
the review to the Board of Directors
nand the general meeting unless the
resolution by the general meeting is
not required by the Statute. During t
review, the Audit Committee shall
seek opinions from an independent
expert on the justification of the sha
exchange ratio or distribution of cas
or other assets. The results of the
review of Audit Committees and

acquisition according tepinions of independent experts sha

the laws and regulations
of the country where the
foreign issuer is
registered, it may not be
reported to the general
meeting.

When an Audit
Committee or special
committee reviews
matters, it shall seek
opinions from an
independent expert on t

the notice of the general meeting. In
the event that the resolution by the
general meeting is not required by tl
Statute, the Board of Directors shall
report the foregoing at the next clos
general meeting.

Article 32.9 of the Articles of
Association: With respect to the
documents that need to be sent to tf
Members as provided in the precedi
narticle, in the event that the Compar

justification of the share

be sent to the Members together with

According to the lawyer’s
opinion, Article 32.8 and 32.9 of
the Articles of Association shou
have no significant adverse
impact on shareholders’ equity.
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Checklist items for the _ _ _
Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢

protection of shareholder . Description
. Association
equity
exchange ratio or website designated by the R.O.C.

distribution of cash or |securities competent authorities, and
other assets. also prepares and places such
The deliberation results |documents at the venue of the general
of the Audit Committee | meeting for the Members’ review, th
or special committee anghose documents shall be deemed as
the opinions of having been sent to the Members.
I

independent experts sha
be sent to the
shareholders together
with the shareholders’
meeting notice; however,
if it is not necessary to
convene a general
meeting for the resolutign
of merger or acquisition
according to the laws and
regulations of the country
where the foreign issuer
is registered, it shall
submit a merger or
acquisition report at the
latest general meeting.
With respect to the
documents that need to
be sent to the Members
provided in the preceding
Article, in the event that
the Company posts the
same documents on the
website designated by the
R.O.C. securities
competent authorities,
and also prepares and
places such documents |at
the venue of the genera
meeting for the
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Association

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢

Description

Members’ review, then
those documents shall b
deemed as having been
sent to the Members.

e

Shareholder(s) who
has/have been
continuously holding 1%
or more of the total
number of the
outstanding shares of th
Company over six
months may request in
writing the supervisors @
the Company to institute
for the Company, an
action against a director
of the Companyand the
Taipei District Court,
R.O.C., may be the
first-instance court with
jurisdiction.

If the Supervisors fail to
bring such action within
thirty days after the
request by the Member,
such Member may bring
the action in the Taipei
District Court, R.O.C.,
as the court of first
instance in the name of
the Company.

In addition to the
condition that the Board
of Directors does not or
unable to convene a
meeting of shareholderg

Article 18.7 of the Articles of
Association: Nothing in the Articles
shall prevent any Member from
issuing proceedings in a court of
competent jurisdiction for an
@ppropriate remedy in connection w

meeting or the improper passage of
fany resolution. The Taipei District
Court, R.O.C., shall be the court of t
first instance for adjudicating any
disputes arising out of the foregoing
Article 25.6 of the Articles of
Association: Any Member(s) holding
1% or more of the Company’s issue
Shares for at least six consecutive
months may in writing request any g
the Independent Directors of the Au
Committee to bring action against th
Directors on behalf of the Company
a court of competent jurisdiction as 1
court of first instance. If the
Independent Directors fail to bring
such action within thirty days after th
request by the Member, such Memb
may bring the action in a court of
competent jurisdiction as the court 0
first instance in the name of the
Company.

the supervisors may, for

the improper convening of any gene

The Articles of Association
should have no significant

equity.
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adverse impact on shareholders

- 263 -



Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

the benefit of the
Company, call a meetin
of shareholders when it
deemed necessary.

S

Upon convening a
general meeting of the
Members, the Company
shall include voting by
way of an electronic
transmission as one of t
methods of exercising
voting power.

The Company whose
shareholders may
exercise their voting
power in writing or by
way of electronic
transmission in a
shareholders’ meeting
shall describe in the
shareholders’ meeting
notice the method of
exercising their voting
power. A shareholder
who exercises his/her/itg
voting power at a
shareholders meeting in
writing or by way of
electronic transmission
shall be deemed to have
attended the said
shareholders’ meeting i
person, but shall be
deemed to have waived
his/herl/its voting power
in respective of any

Article 19.6 of the Articles of
Association: Upon convening a
general meeting of the Members, th
Company shall include voting by wal
of an electronic transmission as one
e methods of exercising voting
power as well as voting by written
ballot. Where these methods of
exercising voting power are to be
available at a general meeting, they
shall be described in the general
meeting notice given to the Member
in respect of the relevant general
meeting, and the Member voting by
written ballot or electronic
transmission shall submit such vote
the Company two days prior to the

In case that there are duplicate
submissions, the first received by th
Company shall prevail. A Member
exercising voting power by way of a
written ballot or by way of an
electronic transmission shall be
deemed to have appointed the
chairman of the general meeting as
proxy to exercise his or her voting
right at such general meeting in
accordance with the instructions
stipulated in the written or electronic
document; provided, however, that
such appointment shall be deemed

extemporary motion(s)

date of the relevant general meeting.

The 2023 shareholders’ meetin
will be revised based on the latg
version of the Checking List of
WProtecting Rights of
Shareholders. According to the
lawyer’s opinion, the amended
Articles of Association should
have no significant adverse
impact on shareholders’ equity.

his

not

to constitute the appointment of a

St
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

and/or the amendment(s
to the contents of the
original proposal(s) at th
said shareholders’
meeting.

If a shareholder elects tq
exercise his/her/its votin
rights in writing or by
means of electronic
transmission, his/her/its
declaration of intention
shall be served to the
Company 2 days prior tc
the scheduled meeting
date of the shareholders
meeting; if two or more
declarations of intention
on the same matter are
served to the Company,
the declaration of
intention first served sha
prevail, unless an explic
statement to revoke the
previous declaration is
made in the subsequent
declaration.
If a shareholder who hag
exercised his/her/its
voting rights in writing of
by means of electronic
transmission intends to
attend the shareholders’
meeting in person,
he/shelit shall, 2 days
prior to the scheduled
meeting date of the

proxy for the purposes of the
Applicable Public Company Rules.
e he chairman, acting as proxy of a
Member, shall not exercise the votin
right of such Member in any way no
pstipulated in the written or electronic
glocument, nor exercise any voting
right in respect of any resolution
revised at the meeting or any
impromptu proposal at the meeting.
Member voting in such manner shal
be deemed to have waived notice of
and the right to vote in regard to, an
ad hoc resolution or amendment to {
‘original agenda items to be resolved
the said general meeting. Should th
chairman not observe the instructior
of a Member in exercising such
Member's voting right in respect of
any resolution, the Shares held by s
IMember shall not be included in the
calculation of votes in respect of sug
resolution but shall nevertheless be
included in the calculation of quorun
for the meeting.

Article 19.7 of the Articles of
5Association: A Member who has
submitted a vote by written ballot or
electronic transmission pursuant to
Article 19.6 may, at least two days
prior to the date of the relevant gene
meeting, revoke such vote in the sa

the vote and such revocation shall
constitute a revocation of the proxy

manner previously used in submitting

g
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deemed to be given to the chairman of

shareholders’ meeting

the general meeting pursuant to Arti
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

and in the same manner
previously used in
exercising his/her/its
voting rights, serve a
separate declaration of
intention to revoke
his/herl/its previous
declaration of intention
made in exercising the
voting rights under the
preceding paragraph. In
the absence of a timely
revocation of the previot
declaration of intention,
the voting rights
exercised in writing or by
means of electronic

transmission shall prevajibroxy appointing a person of the

If a shareholder has
exercised his/her/its
voting rights in writing of
by means of electronic
transmission, and has a
authorized an agent to
attend the shareholders’
meeting on his/her/its
behalf, then the voting
rights exercised by the
authorized agent for the

shareholder shall prevalil.

19.6. If a Member who has submitte
a written ballot or electronic

transmission pursuant to Article 19.6

does not submit such a revocation
before the prescribed time, the prox
deemed to be given to the chairman

the general meeting pursuant to Article

19.6 shall not be revoked and the
chairman of the general meeting sh:
exercise the voting right of such
Member in accordance with that
proxy.

Article 19.8 of the Articles of
Association: If, subsequent to
submitting a written ballot or
electronic transmission pursuant to
Article 19.6, a Member submits a

general meeting as his proxy to atte
the relevant general meeting on his
behalf, then the subsequent
appointment of that person as his
sooxy shall be deemed to be a
revocation of such Member’'s deeme
appointment of the chairman of the
general meeting as his proxy pursua
to Article 19.6.

of

=

d

int

The general meeting of
shareholders must be
convened at least once
year; it should be held
within six months after
the end of each fiscal

Article 16.2 of the Articles of
Association: The Company shall hol
/A general meeting as its annual gen
meeting within six months following
the end of each fiscal year, and sha
specify the meeting as such in the

The 2023 shareholders’ meetin
dvill be revised based on the latg
graision of the Checking List of
Protecting Rights of
IShareholders. According to the
lawyer’s opinion, the Articles of
Association should have no

year. Shareholders’

notices calling it. At these meetings,

St
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

meetings are convened
the Board of Directors.
The Company may
explicitly provide for in
its Articles of Associatio
that its shareholders’
meeting can be held by
means of visual
communication network
or other methods
promulgated by the
central competent
authority. Under the
circumstances of
calamities, incidents, or
force majeure, the centr
competent authority may
promulgate a ruling that
authorizes a company,
which has no above
provision in its Articles
of Association , within a

the report of the Directors (if any)
shall be presented.

Article 16.3 of the Articles of
Association: The Company shall hol
an annual general meeting of
shareholders every year.

Article 16.4 of the amended Articles
of Association: The general meeting
shall be held at such time and place
the Directors shall appoint, or by vid
conference or in any manner
prescribed by the Applicable Public
Company Rules. Unless otherwise
provided by the Statute or this Articl
A16.4, the general meetings shall be
physically held in R.O.C. For geners
meetings to be physically held outsi
R.O.C., the Company shall apply to
the TWSE to obtain its approval
within two days after the board of
Directors resolves to call a general

certain period of time cammeeting or within two days after the

hold its shareholders’
meeting by means of
visual communication
network or other
promulgated methods.
In case a shareholders’
meeting is proceeded vi
visual communication
network, the shareholde
taking part in such a
visual communication
meeting shall be deeme
to have attended the

shareholder(s) obtain(s) the approva
from competent authorities to conve
the same. In addition, where a gene
meeting is to be held outside R.O.C
the Company shall engage a
professional securities agent in R.O
#o handle the administration of such
general meeting (including but not
remited to the handling of the voting
proxies submitted by Members).
Where a general meeting is held
adhrough video conference, the
conditions, operating procedures an

meeting in person.

o

significant adverse impact on
shareholders’ equity.

as
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other matters for compliance with
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

The Company shall
comply with the
prerequisites, procedure
and other compliance
matters to be complied
with in accordance with
the securities regulation
of the Republic of China
The convening of the
shareholder meeting of
the Company shall be
held within the R.O.C.
territory. If a shareholde
meeting is held outside
the Republic of China, it
shall report to the TWSH
for approval within two
days after the resolution|
of the Board of Directorg
or the shareholder obtai
the permission from the
competent authority.
Shareholder(s) holding
one percent (1%) or mo
of the total number of

respect to the video conference sha
be in accordance with the regulation
f the Applicable Public Company
Rules. Participation by a shareholde
through video conference in a gener
meeting is treated as presence in
person at that meeting.

Article 17.1 of the Articles of
Association: At least thirty days'
notice to each Member shall be give
of any annual general meeting, and
least fifteen days' notice to each
rMember shall be given of any
extraordinary general meeting. The
Company may make a public
fannouncement of a notice of generg
meeting to Members holding less th
1,000 Shares instead of delivering a
written notice to such Members.
nisvery notice shall be exclusive of th
day on which it is given or deemed t
be given and of the day for which it
given and shall specify the place, th
relay and the hour of the meeting, the
manner in which the meeting shall b

outstanding shares of th
Company may propose

the Company a proposaland shall be given in the manner

for discussion at a regul
shareholders’ meeting,
provided that only one
matter shall be allowed
each single proposal.
Where the subject (the
issue) of the said
proposal cannot be settl

eonvened, the general nature of the
tbusiness and other relevant matters

drereinafter mentioned, or be given
electronic means if agreed thereon |
the Members, or be given in such ot
manner as may be prescribed by thg
Company, provided that a general

meeting of the Company shall, befo
the Company has acquired public

company status, whether or not the

=
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at

o
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or resolved by a

notice specified in this regulation ha
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

resolution to be adopted
at a meeting of
shareholders; where the
number of shares of the
Company in the
possession of the
shareholder making the

said proposal is less tharrticle 18.9 of the Articles of
Association: Subject to the Applicable

one percent (1%) of the
total number of
outstanding shares at th
time; where the said
proposal is submitted or]
a day beyond the
deadline fixed and
announced by the
Company for accepting
shareholders’ proposals
and where the said
proposal containing mor
than 300 words or more
than one matters in a
single proposal, it may
still be included in the lis
of proposals to be
discussed at a general
meeting of shareholderg
by the Board of
Directors. A shareholdel
proposal proposed for
urging the Company to
promote public interests
or fulfill its social
responsibilities may still
be included in the list of
proposals to be discussg

been given and whether or not the
provisions of the Articles regarding
general meetings have been compli
with, be deemed to have been duly
convened if it is so agreed by all the
Members (or their proxies) entitled t
attend such general meeting.

[®)

Public Company Rules, Member(s)
éolding 1% or more of the total

number of issued, allotted, outstandjng

Shares immediately prior to the
relevant book closed period may
propose to the Company proposal(s
for discussion at an annual general
meeting in writing or by means of
electronic transmission to the extent
and in accordance with the rules and
g@rocedures of general meetings
proposed by the Directors and
approved by an Ordinary Resolution.
Other than any of the following
isituation occurs, proposals propose
by Member(s) shall be included in the
agenda where (a) the proposing
Member(s) holds less than 1% of thé
total number of outstanding Sharg@s),

|

1%

where the matter of such proposal may
not be resolved by a general meeting,

(c) the proposing Member has

proposed more than one proposal, (d)
such proposal contains more than 300

words, or (e) such proposal is
submitted on a day beyond the
deadline announced by the Company

at a general meeting of

for accepting the Member’s proposals.

1%
o
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

shareholders by the
Board of Directors.

Any or a plural number
of shareholder(s) of the
Company who has (hav
continuously held 3% or
more of the total numbe
of outstanding shares fo
a period of one year or g
longer time may, by
filing a written proposal
setting forth therein the
subjects for discussion
and the reasons, reques
the Board of Directors tg
call a special meeting of
shareholders. If the Boa|
of Directors fails to give
a notice for convening &
special meeting of
shareholders within 15

days after the filing of thgoreceding Article 16.5 are Member($)

request, the proposing
shareholder(s) may, aftg
obtaining an approval
from the Competent
authority, convene a
special meeting of
shareholders on his/thei
own.

Member(s) holding more
than 50% of the total
issued and outstanding
Shares for at least three
consecutive months ma
themselves convene an

HPoard of Director may include such

raccordance with the Applicable Pub
rCompany Rules.
|

forthwith proceed to convene an

rd

2Article 16.8 of the Articles of

ydispatch the notice of an extraording

extraordinary general

If the proposal(s) proposed by
Member(s) is intended to improve the
public interest or fulfil its social

responsibilities of the Company, the

proposal(s) in the agenda in

Article 16.5 of the Articles of

Association: The board of Directors
may call general meetings, and they
shall on a Member’s requisition

extraordinary general meeting of the
Company.

Article 16.6 of the Articles of
Association: Member(s) who are
entitled to submit a Member’s
requisition as provided in the

of the Company holding at the date pf
deposit of the requisition not less than
3% of the total number of the
outstanding Shares at the time of
requisition and whose Shares shall

have been held by such Member(s) [for
rat least one year.

Association: If the board of Directors
do not within fifteen days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition

general meeting, the requisitionists
may themselves convene an

c

ry
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

(1) Election or discharge of
directors and supervisoryr terminating any contract for lease
(2) Alteration of the Articles

(3) reduction of capital;
(4) application to cease

(5) Company dissolution,
merger, share exchange

meeting. The calculation]
of the holding period of

Shares and the number
Shares held by a Memb
shall be determined bas
on the starting date of th

book closed period of theghan 50% of the total issued and
outstanding Shares for at least three

Register of Members.
Matters listed below sha
be itemized in the causeg
or subjects to be
described and the
essential contents shall
explained in the notice t
convene a meeting of
shareholders, and shall
not be brought up as

extemporary motions; thérticle 17.5 of the Articles of
essential contents may bAssociation: Matters pertaining to (&

posted on the website
designated by the
competent authority in
charge of securities
affairs or the Company,

and such website shall b&erger), Share Exchange (other tha

indicated in the above
notice.

of Association;

public offering;

extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the Applicable Pub
@ompany Rules.

er

palticle 16.9 of the Articles of
dssociation: Member(s) holding mor

Iltonsecutive months may themselve
gonvene an extraordinary general
meeting. The calculation of the
holding period of Shares and the
beumber of Shares held by a Membe|
nshall be determined based on the

of the Register of Members.

election or discharge of Directors, (b
alteration of the Articles, (c) reductio
of capital, (d) application to cease
public offering, and (e) (i) dissolution
Merger (other than a Short-form

Short-form Share Exchange) or
Spin-off (other than a Short-form
Spin-off), (ii) entering into, amending

the Company’s business in whole, o
the delegation of management of th
Company’s business to others or thg

with others, (iii) transfer of the wholg
or any material part of the business

C

[

=

starting date of the book closed peripd

~— =

na

s
of

D bl
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L

regular joint operation of the Company

or

assets of the Company, (iv) acceptance

division;

of the transfer of the whole business

or
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

(6) Enter into, amend, or

terminate any contract fomaterial effect on the business

lease of the Company’s
business in whole, or fo
entrusted business, or fq
regular joint operation
with others;

(7) Transfer the whole or ar
essential part of its
business or assets; or

(8) Accept the transfer of
another’s whole busineg
or assets, which has gre
bearing on the business
operation of the
Company;

(9) Issuance of equity
securities through privat
placement;

(10)Approval of competing
with the Company by

directors;

(11)Have the surplus profit
distributable as
dividends and bonuses
whole or in part
distributed in the form @
new shares;

(12)Distributing the legal
reserve and the premiu
in excess of the par
value of the shares

issued, donated surplus

to original shareholders
by issuing new shares (

assets of another person, which has

operation of the Company, and (f)
ratification of an action by Director(s
owho engage(s) in business for
him/her/itself or on behalf of another
person that is within the scope of thé
Yompany'’s business, (g) distributior
of the whole or a part of the surplus
profit of the Company in the form of
new Shares, (h) capitalization of the
svhole or a part of Legal Reserve an
anpital reserve derived from issuang
of new shares at a premium or from
gifts received by the Company, and
the Private Placement of any
equity-type securities issued by the
gCompany, shall be indicated in the
notice of general meeting, with a
summary of the material content to |
discussed, and shall not be brought
as an ad hoc motion, and the mater

specified by the R.O.C. competent
@uthorities of securities or by the
Company, and the website address
shall be indicated in the notice.

m

cash.

content may be placed on the website
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Checklist items for the
protection of shareholder
equity

Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢
Association

Description

Thirty days before the
Company convenes a
regular shareholders’
meeting or 15 days
before a special
shareholders’ meeting,
the Company shall
prepare files of the
meeting announcement
proxy form, explanatory
materials relating to
proposals for ratification
matters for deliberation,
election or dismissal of
directors or supervisors,
and other matters on thd
shareholders’ meeting
agenda.

Where voting powers at
shareholders’ meeting &
to be exercised in writing
a print version of the
materials referred to in
the preceding paragrapk
and a printed ballot shal
also be sent to the
shareholders.
Twenty-one days before
the Company is to
convene a regular
shareholders’ meeting, (
15 days before it
convenes a special
shareholders’ meeting,
the Company shall
prepare a manual for

Article 17.3 of the amended Articles
The Company
shall, at least thirty days prior to any

of Association:

annual general meeting or at least
fifteen days prior to any extraordinar
general meeting (as the case may b
make public announcement of the
notice of such general meeting,
instrument of proxy, the businesses
and their explanatory materials of ar
sanction, discussion, election or
,removal of Directors and transform
such information into electronic
format and transmitted the same to
Market Observation Post System in
raccordance with the Applicable Pub
Company Rules. If the voting pows
in any general meeting will be
&xercised by way of a written ballot,
réne written ballot and the
aforementioned information of such
general meeting shall together be
delivered to each Member. The
\Directors shall prepare a meeting
handbook of relevant general meetir
and supplemental materials in
accordance with the Applicable Pub
Company Rules at least twenty-one
days prior to any annual general
meeting (or at least fifteen days prio
Dto any extraordinary general meetin
send to or make it available for the
Members and transmitted the same
the Market Observation Post Systen
If, however, the Company has the
paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or

The 2023 shareholders’ meetin
will be revised based on the latg
version of the Checking List of
Protecting Rights of
yhareholders. According to the
gawyer’'s opinion, the Articles of
Association should have no
significant adverse impact on
shareholders’ equity.
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more as of the last day of the most
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Checklist items for the : : :
, Contents stipulated in the Articles ¢ .
protection of shareholder . Description
: Association
equity

proceedings and shall |current fiscal year, or the total
disclose such manual |shareholding of foreign investors and

together with other the Mainland Area Investors reaches
information related to the30% or more as recorded in the
said shareholders’ Register of Members of the general

meeting in a public notigeneeting held in the immediately
to be published prior to |preceding year, transmission of these
the scheduled meeting |electronic documents shall be made by
date of that shareholdergat least thirty days before the annual
meeting. If, however, thegeneral meeting.
Company has the paid-in
capital of NT$10 billion
or more as of the last day
of the most current fiscal
year, or the total
shareholding of foreign
investors and the
Mainland Area Investors
reaches 30% or more as
recorded in the Register
of Members of the
general meeting held in
the immediately
preceding year,
transmission of these
electronic documents
shall be made by at leas
thirty days before the
annual general meeting

—
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Chapter IX Matters that have a significant impact on

shareholders’ equity or securities prices

None.
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